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Letter of compliance

QUEENSLAND POLICE SERVICE .ﬁ

COMMISSIGNER'S OFFIGCE

200 AOMA STAEET BRIGBANE QLD 4000 AUSTAALIA
GRO BOK 1440 BRISEANE LD 4001 AUSTHALIA

TELEPHOHNE: 07 3364 &£88 FACTIMILE: 07 3364 4850

Yimd A

14 September 2016

The Honourable Bill Byrme MP

Minister for Police, Fire and Emergency Services and
Minister for Corrective Services

Level 24, State Law Building,

BRISBANNE QLD 4000

Dear Minister

[ am pleased to submit for presentation to the Parliament the 2015-16 annual report
including the inancial statements for the Queensland Police Service,

I certify that this annual report complies with:

. prescribed requirements of the Finencial Accountability Act 2009 and the
Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009

. detailed requirements set out in the Annual report requirements for Queensland
Government agencies.

The annual report requirements checklist is included in the appendices of this
report.

-

/
Yours sincgrely
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Commissioner’s message

During 2015-16, the Queensland Police Service (QPS) continued to progress work in the areas of
child protection, domestic and family violence, drugs and alcohol, counter-terrorism, mental health
and road safety, contributing to the safety and security of the communities of Queensland.

Highlights for the year include:

¢ the appointment of an additional 294 police officers. As at 30 June 2016, there were 11,877
police officers

o the launch of the Amber Alert system to help locate abducted or high-risk missing children in
imminent danger. From the system’s launch in August 2015, seven Amber Alerts have been
issued (to 30 June 2016), with the safe recovery of all these children

¢ the establishment of the Domestic, Family Violence and Vulnerable Persons Unit to support the
implementation of the QPS-led recommendations from the NOT NOW, NOT EVER report into
domestic and family violence

e the launch of a new referral process that enables police at an incident scene to refer a person in
need to an appropriate support service for assistance via their mobile QLITE device (a suite of
QPS developed Applications available on an iPad mini) or back at the station

e the priority rollout of 300 body-worn video cameras for police officers on the Gold Coast and the
commencement of associated training

e the development of the Security and Counter-Terrorism Network to strengthen QPS’ capability
statewide. The network provides a platform for enhanced community engagement, reporting,
investigations and intelligence-sharing

¢ the establishment of at least one Community Policing Board in each of the 15 police districts,
providing the opportunity for local organisations and individuals to work together with police on
strategies to address crime and safety issues.

Also, for the first time in 20 years, Queensland recorded a zero fatality rate during the Easter period.
This is significant considering there was an alarming increase in the Easter road toll in 2015. During
the 2016 Easter period, QPS focused on high risk road user behaviour with more than 95,000 random
breath tests and roadside saliva tests conducted and more than 6,000 infringement notices issued.
The QPS operations assisted in ensuring the safety of drivers and their passengers.

In late 2015, the QPS celebrated 50 years of women in policing for the period 1965 to 2015. In 1965,
eight plain clothes policewomen were sworn into the Service. There are now more than 3,000 female
police officers in Queensland. In addition, the first two Queensland female officers qualified to become
police motorcycle officers.
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We also farewelled former Deputy Commissionar Ross Bamett after a long and distinguished career
in the QFS spanning almost 40 years. Mr Barneit was appointed to the role of Queensland Racing
Integrity Commissionar in February 2016, | wish Mr Barmett all the best in his future endeavours.

As always | was honoured to lead the QPS during the year and | am commitied to continuing to work
with members of the Service and the community to stop crime and make Queensland safer.

The business of policing continueas to incraase in complexity and | wish to acknowledge the outstanding
work, commi egé and dedication of all QPS members in maintaining our focus on the safety and
securify of the broader community, In particular, | wish to acknowledge the exceplional effort to engage
aoross the community and to maintain the confidence of the public in their police service,

A

IAN STEWA
COMMISSIONER

14 September 20116
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Overview

Public safety portfolio overview

The public safety portfolio, under the Minister for Police, Fire and Emergency Services and Minister
for Corrective Services, consists of the:

o Office of the Inspector-General Emergency Management (IGEM)
o Public Safety Business Agency (PSBA)

¢ Queensland Fire and Emergency Services (QFES)

e Queensland Police Service (QPS).

The portfolio structure is designedto support an integrated and collaborative approach to service
delivery.

Office of the Inspector-General
Emergency Management
Inspector-General
lain MacKenzie AFSM

Public Safety Business Agency
Chief Executive Officer
Anthony Reilly (Acting)

Minister for Police, Fire and
Emergency Services and Minister

for Corrective Services
The Honourable Bill Byrne MP Queensland Fire and Emergency
Services
Commissioner
Katarina Carroll APM

Queensland Police Service
Commissioner
lan Stewart APM

Office of the Inspector-General Emergency Management

The Office of the IGEM was formally established as a public service office on 1 July 2014 under
amendments to the Disaster Management Act 2003. The Office of the IGEM providesindependent
assurance and advice to enable confidence in Queensland’s emergency management arrangements.
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Public Safety Business Agency

PSBA was established on 1 November 2013 under the Public Service Act 2008 with the

renaming of the Department of Community Safety (Public Service Departmental Arrangements

Notice (No.8) 2013). On 21 May 2014, with the assent of the Public Safety Business Agency Act 2014,
PSBA was established as a public service office.

PSBA provides strategic and corporate services to Queensland’s public safety agencies — the Office of
the IGEM, QFES and QPS - allowing them to concentrate on frontline service delivery. It also
performs operational functions including Queensland Government Air (QGAIr) services, State
Government Security and administration of the Blue Card system.

An independent review of the PSBA was undertaken by the Public Service Commission in 2015. The
final report Review of the Public Safety Business Agency (November 2015) was tabled in Parliament
in February 2016. The review considered the scope, function and structure of the PSBA to ensure it
effectively supported public safety service delivery to the community. The review recommended the
PSBA narrow its focus to corporate support and made eight recommendations. The government
accepted the review's recommendations, with the exception of recommendation six (to transfer the
Police Air Wing to the QPS). Further work will be progressed on this recommendation.

A PSBA Interim Board of Management was subsequently established (inaugural meeting held

16 May 2016) to progress the review recommendations and provide peak governance and
coordination until a mature governance framework and organisational structure is in place. An Acting
Chief Executive Officer, PSBA was also appointed in April 2016 to assist the PSBA Interim Board of
Management.

The Public Safety Business Agency and Other Legislation Amendment Bill 2016 was introduced into
Parliament on 24 May 2016. The Bill proposes to implement various recommendations of the review,
including establishing a PSBA Board of Management and changing the role of the PSBA Chief
Executive Officer to Chief Operating Officer. The Bill was referred to the Legal Affairs and Community
Safety Committee for consideration. The committee is required to report back to Parliament on the Bill
by 2 August 2016.

For further information regarding the review refer to pages 66-67.

Queensland Fire and Emergency Services

QFES was established as a department on 1 November 2013 under the Public Service Act 2008
(Public Service Departmental Arrangements Notice (No. 8) 2013). QFES is the primary provider of fire
and rescue, emergency management and disaster mitigation programs and services throughout
Queensland, and includes the Fire and Rescue Service, the Rural Fire Service and the State
Emergency Service (SES). Through Service Agreements, QFES also supports other emergency
response volunteer organisations/agencies including Surf Life Saving Queensland, Royal Life Saving
Society Queensland, Australian Volunteer Coast Guard Association and Volunteer Marine Rescue
Association Queensland.

It is the role of QFES to provide leadership, mitigation planning and response services to the
community. QFES aims to protect persons, property and the environment through the continued
delivery of emergency services, awareness programs, response capability and capacity, andincident
response and recovery for a safer Queensland.

Queensland Police Service

The Police Department was initially established by the Police Act of 1863 which took effecton

1 January 1864. The QPS works with the community to stop crime and make Queensland safer. The
QPS is responsible for service delivery 24 hours a day, seven days a week, focused on preserving
peace and good order, protecting the community, preventing and detecting crime, administering the
law fairly and efficiently, and bringing offenders to justice. This is achieved by using technology and
innovative strategies to enable a mobile, flexible and agile delivery of services to address community
needs.
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Legislation administered by the portfolio

In accordance with Administrative Arrangements Order (No. 3) 2015, during 2015-16 the portfolio
administered the following legislation:

Agency Legislation administered

PSBA e Public Safety Business Agency Act 2014
e State Buildings Protective Security Act 1983
o  Working with Children (Risk Management and Screening) Act 2000

QFES e Disaster Management Act 2003
Fire and Emergency Services Act 1990

QPS Australian Crime Commission (Queensland) Act 2003
Child Protection (Offender Prohibition Order) Act 2008
Child Protection (Offender Reporting) Act 2004

G20 (Safety and Security) Act 2013

Police Powers and Responsibilities Act 2000

Police Service Administration Act 1990

Public Safety Preservation Act 1986

Queensland Police Welfare Club Act 1970

Summary Offences Act 2005

Terrorism (Preventative Detention) Act 2005
Weapons Act 1990
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Machinery-of-government changes

Date Changes

1 July 2015 The transfer of Community Helicopter Providers from Queensland Health to the PSBA
became effective.

1 July 2016 As a result of the Review of the Public Safety Business Agency (November 2015),
the following machinery-of-government changes will occur as outlined in the Public
Service Departmental Arrangements Notice (No. 2) 2016:

PSBA Media (QPS) will transition to QPS

PSBA Media (QFES) will transition to QFES

PSBA Content and Multimedia will transition to QFES

Training and Development (including training academies) will transition to QPS and

QFES

PSBA Recruitment will transition to QPS and QFES

o PSBA Strategy Division will transition to QPS and QFES; including the Office of the
General Manager, the Office of the Executive Director (Strategy and Consulting),
Policy, Engagement (including the Drug and Alcohol Coordination Unit), Planning,
Performance, Innovation, Governance and Legislation

o PSBA Ministerial and Executive Services will transition to QPS and QFES

PSBA Ethical Standards will transition to QFES with one position remaining with

PSBA

PSBA Executive Services will transition to QPS and QFES

PSBA Legal Services will transition to QPS and QFES

PSBA Cabinet Legislation and Department Liaison will transition to QPS and QFES

PSBA Right to Information will transition to QPS and QFES

PSBA Levy Management Unit and Business Performance Analysts will transition to

QFES

PSBA Safety and Wellbeing will transition to QPS

PSBA Workforce Engagement will transition to QPS and QFES

PSBA Library Services will transition to QPS

PSBA Calibration Laboratory will transition to QPS

PSBA Evidence Management will transition to QPS

PSBA Forensic Services, Technical Support will transition to QPS.

In addition, in line with the Review of the PSBA recommendations, the Public Safety Business Agency
and Other Legislation Amendment Bill 2016 (the Bill) was introduced into Parliament on 24 May 2016.
The Bill proposes to implement various recommendations of the review by amending legislation
including finalising the machinery-of-government changes that will allow Blue Card Services to
transition to the Department of Justice and Attorney-General and allow for the comprehensive
integration of State Government Security into the QPS.



2015-16 Annual Report
Queensland Police Service

Public safety portfolio committee

Within the public safety portfolio, each agency has its own corporate governance framework (refer
pages 58-63). In addition, there is a portfolio-wide corporate governance committee — the Public
Safety Portfolio Audit and Risk Committee, which provides independent assurance on risk, control
and compliance frameworks and ensures the portfolio’s operations are carried out efficiently,
effectively and economically.

The former Public Safety Portfolio Innovation Committee and Public Safety Executive Coordinating
Committee will no longer convene as the objectives of these committees will be achieved by the
PSBA Interim Board of Management (the Board). The Commissioner, QPS (Chair) and
Commissioner, QFES are members of the Board along with an external member, Mr Geoff Waite,
Assistant Under Treasurer, Queensland Treasury.

Public Safety Portfolio Audit and Risk Committee

The Public Safety Portfolio Audit and Risk Committee has been established under, and operates in
accordance with, the terms of its charter that was developed in line with Queensland Treasury’s Audit
Committee Guidelines: Improving Accountability and Performance.

The committee governs audit and risk matters for the public safety portfolio agencies. It provides
independent assurance and assistance through prompt and constructive reports directly to each
accountable officer in the portfolio, particularly when issues identified present material risk or threat to
the portfolio.

The committee is chaired by an independent external expert appointed to the role. Each public safety
portfolio agency is represented by one member. A second external member also forms part of the
committee. The Chair may invite or give approval for other persons to attend a committee meeting.

The committee meets quarterly and met on four occasions during 2015-16.

The independent external Chair received $8,250 (including GST) in remuneration for services provided
in 2015-16. The second external member received $3,300 (including GST). There were no other
on-costs.

Committee Members
e Graham Carpenter, Chair (external member)

¢ lan Stewart APM, Commissioner, QPS represented by Brett Pointing, Deputy Commissioner,
Strategy, Policy and Performance, QPS

e Katarina Carroll APM, Commissioner, QFES represented by Doug Smith, Deputy Commissioner
and Chief Strategy Officer, Capability and Performance Division, QFES

e lain MacKenzie AFSM, Inspector-General Emergency Management
e Rod Wilson, Deputy Chief Executive Officer (Acting), PSBA

e Marita Corbett (external member)
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Achievements

During 2015-16, the committee’s achievements included:

oversight of progress on Queensland Audit Office (QAO) issues and the status of the QAO Audit
Program

reviewed and endorsed the Annual Financial Statements and the Chief Finance Officer
Assurance Statements

monitored compliance with the 2015-16 Annual Internal Audit Plan and oversaw the status of
open recommendations

approved the:
- Internal Audit Charter

- Audit and Risk Committee Charter and Structure
- Audit and Risk Committee 2016-17 Workplan

endorsed the Annual Internal Audit Plan 2016-17, incorporating the Internal Audit Strategic Plan
2016-2019.




2015-16 Annual Report
Queensland Police Service

About us

The QPS is the primary law enforcement agency for Queensland. It fulfils this role throughout the
state, 24 hours a day, seven days a week, upholding the law and providing assistance to the
community particularly in times of emergency, disaster and crisis.

The QPS has two service areas as outlined in the 2015-16 Service Delivery Statement (a State
Budget Paper): Crime and Public Order, and Road Safety.

Police Services also include a range of activities designed to promote ethical behavior, discipline and
professional practice to ensure Queensland residents and visitors have confidence in, and respect for
the QPS.

Our vision:

Members of the community work with Queensland police to stop crime
and make Queensland safer.

Our mission:

To stop crime, make the community safer, including reducing road
trauma, and build relationships with the community.

Our environment

The continuing growth in Queensland’s population, combined with its diversity and broad dispersal
across the state, provides a challenge to policing the needs of all Queensland communities. A
predicted increase in the severity and frequency of natural disasters as well as crime and safety
threats resulting from technological advancements, globalisation and violent extremism add additional
layers of complexity that necessitate an agile organisational response. In response:

e the QPS has grown by 1,182 officers (over and above attrition) since 1 July 2012

e emerging technological advancements are also expected to greatly benefit police by improving
interoperability between public safety agencies and enhancing operational effectiveness

e adaptable and flexible policing approaches are required to respond to an organised crime
landscape that is increasingly diverse and complex. The government’s commitment of an
additional $39.1 million over four years (commencing in 2016-17) will ensure the QPS has the
resources to tackle serious and organised crime through implementation of the response to the
Organised Crime Commission of Inquiry report and by undertaking operational and
intelligence-driven activities

¢ the QPS continues to work collaboratively with police in other jurisdictions to address serious
criminal activity. The Joint Anti-Child Exploitation Team (JACET) will combine the resources of
the Australian Federal Police’s child protection agents with QPS’ Taskforce Argos to combat child
exploitation

e the government has committed an additional $16.2 million over four years (commencing in
2016-17) to enhance QPS’ counter-terrorism capabilities enabling police time and resources to
continue to be directed to terrorism prevention, response and investigation activities. This
includes high visibility policing at major events and building social cohesion through community
policing

10
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o the QPS is committed to building safer and more resilient communities through streamlining
disaster management operations in Far North Queensland. The existing Cairns and Mareeba
District Disaster Management Groups amalgamated in February 2016 to form the Far North
District Disaster Management Group to create a single coordination point for government during
emergencies. The merged group will increase efficiencies by providing more coordinated support
to local disaster management groups in the Mareeba and Cairns communities.

Our accountabilities

Under the Police Service Administration Act 1990, the QPS is responsible for:
e preserving peace and good order in all areas of Queensland
e protecting and supporting the Queensland community

e preventing and detecting crime

e upholding the law

¢ administering the law fairly and efficiently
e bringing offenders to justice.

Queensland Government objectives

The Queensland Government works closely with all Queenslanders to deliver its objectives forthe
community. Integrity, accountability and consultation underpin everything the Queensland

Government does.

Creating jobs and
a diverse economy

 increasing workforce participation

* ensuring safe, productive
and fair workplaces

® stimulating economic growth
and innovation

» delivering new infrastructure
and investment

Protecting
the environment

* protecting the
Great Barrier Reef
* conserving nature and heritage
*» ensuring sustainable
management of natural resources
» enabling responsible
development

Delivering quality
frontline services
* achieving better education
and training outcomes
* sirengthening our public health system

* providing responsive and integrated
government semvices

* supporting disadvantaged Queenslanders

Building safe, caring and
connected communities

* ensuring an accessible and
effective justice system

* providing an integrated and
reliable transport network

* encouraging safer and
inclusive communities

* building regions

Consultation

The Queensland Plan is the community’s 30-year vision for the state. The Queensland Government’'s
Interim Response (the Interim Response) outlines the key services, programs and partnerships that
will help improve Queenslanders’ way of life today and proactively position Queensland for the future.

The Interim Response supports the Queensland Government’s objectives for the community and
identifies the priorities and key initiatives that will contribute towards implementing Queenslanders’
vision. The Queensland Plan and the Interim Response are available online at:
www.queenslandplan.qgld.gov.au/.

11
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QPS’ policies, programs and services align with the Interim Response. Information about QPS’
policies, programs and services can be found in the 2015-16 Highlights (refer pages 28-55).

Our objectives
The QPS is committed to supporting the government’s objectives, particularly delivering quality
frontline services and building safe, caring and connected communities, by:
e reducing and preventing the incidence of crime, public disorder and road trauma
e collaborating and consulting with all sectors of the community to deliver a problem solving
approach to crime reduction
¢ using technology and innovative strategies to be more mobile, flexible and capable of working
across boundaries to deliver services the community needs
e focusing resources to identify and deliver effective and efficient services that maximise public
safety

e taking a lead role to prepare the community for managing major events and disasters

e implementing an environment of continuous improvement based on learning, development and
empowered leadership

e delivering services with fairness and integrity.

Strategies

The QPS achieves its objectives through a range of strategies:

«» ..  Frontline services — implement an integrated service delivery model, underpinned by
;'_3—5 improved intelligence capabilities and expanded options for community consultation and
* engagement with police

¢, Culture - manage a program of cultural renewal to improve transparency and trust; devolve
.4 authority to the frontline; and to embed a values based culture of innovation, accountability,
- and quality customer service

don People — implement strategies to ensure safe delivery of services; improve community
&0 engagement; increase diversity; apply contemporary performance measures; and continuing
professional development and training to improve capability

'“Q Processes — implement strategies to improve job allocation; reduce process complexity;

Q/ provide improved technology and safety equipment to the frontline; better use of assets;
improve performance through organisational reporting; and improve cross agency
collaboration

=T Systems — implement strategies to improve data management and maximise analytics
f},@j capabilities and improve productivity.

The QPS also contributes to a range of national, state and local strategies and initiatives on matters
including drugs and alcohol; domestic and family violence; mental health; child protection;
counter-terrorism; and road safety.

Our values
QPS members value:
e Courage: by always doing the right thing

e Fairness: in making objective, evidence-based, consistent decisions and by treating people with
respect

e Pride: in themselves, the QPS, the work they do and the community they serve.

12
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The QPS shares the Queensland Public Service values:

Customers first

« Know your customers

e Deliver what matters

« Make decisions with empathy

Ideas into action

« Challenge the norm and suggest solutions
o Encourage and embrace new ideas

e Work across boundaries

Unleash potential

e Expect greatness

o Lead and set clear expectations

« Seek, provide and act on feedback

Be courageous

« Own your actions, successes and mistakes
« Take calculated risks

e Act with transparency

Empower people

o Lead, empower and trust

« Play to everyone’s strengths

o Develop yourself and those around you

Our risks and challenges

Key risks and challenges identified as potentially impacting the QPS during 2015-16 included:

e improving responses to calls-for-service from people who experience domestic and family
violence, mental iliness, and substance abuse disorders

¢ identifying technological, environmental and financial trends that impact on public safety

¢ reducing alcohol-fuelled violence and targeting serious and organised crime including major
drug, fraud and cyber crime

e preventing and responding to threats of terrorism and other security issues

e managing demand and allocating resources to ensure police services are directed at those who
are most in need or a greatest risk to public safety

e establishing multidisciplinary taskforces that target places, cases and crime types that pose risk
to the community and identifying new crime

e maintaining strong, collaborative partnerships with the community, private sector,
non-government organisations and government organisations.

13
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2016-17 Outlook
Key risks and challenges that may impact the QPS during 2016-17 include:

a reduction in community confidence and engagement in policing

an increase in the frequency and severity of extreme weather conditions and natural disasters
predicted for Queensland and the impact on policing services

disruptions to major events, which may be caused by threats of terrorism or the actions of
issue-motivated groups

the growth, diversity and complexity of organised crime demands new adaptable approaches,
capabilities and relationships between law enforcement agencies, government and the private
sector

maintaining and improving QPS’ level of response to vulnerable persons, domestic and family
violence, mental iliness and substance abuse disorders

work through collaborative partnerships with the community, private sector and government
agencies to reduce alcohol-fuelled violence and target the organised criminal supply and
production of illicit drugs, including ice and the diversion of pharmaceutical drugs for
non-therapeutic use.

To address these risks and challenges, the key priorities for the QPS during 2016-17 include:

continuing to provide a safe and secure community by responding to threats including terrorism,
disasters, and risks associated with major events

creating better workplaces and improving workforce capability

targeting crime hotspots throughout the state, and issues such as organised crime,
alcohol-fuelled violence and the drug, ice

undertaking intelligence-led policing in late night entertainment precincts
providing improved safety equipment for police including body-worn cameras

supporting the implementation of the Queensland Government’s Domestic and Family Violence
Prevention Strategy 2016-2026 and implementing the government's response to the NOT NOW,
NOT EVER report into domestic and family violence

continuing to plan the police response for the Gold Coast 2018 Commonwealth Games

continuing to contribute to the child safety reform agenda initiated by the Queensland Child
Protection Commission of Inquiry final report

continuing to implement the QPS-led recommendations from the Queensland Organised Crime
Commission of Inquiry and the Queensland Taskforce into Organised Crime

continuing to review the police complaints system and implement a new disciplinary system
continuing to make improvements to ensure the promotions system is truly merit-based
continuing to implement an integrated service delivery model

developing an improved performance management framework to improve customer service.
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Locations

QPS delivers its services from various locations throughout the state including:
e Police stations 335
e Police Watchhouse/Sober Safe Centre 59
e Police Neighbourhood Beats and Shopfronts 90
e District offices 15
e Regional offices 5
e Communication Centres 14
e Police Academies located in Brisbane (Oxley and Wacol) and 3

Townsville

o Police Assistance Centre (Policelink) located in Brisbane (Zillmere) 1
¢ Rapid Action and Patrols (RAP) located at Gold Coast and Townsville 2

In addition, most large police stations house a Child Protection and Investigation Unit (CPIU), a
Criminal Investigation Branch and an Intelligence Unit, whilst 35 major stations include a Scenes of
Crime Unit. There are also purpose-built investigation centres to respond to major incidents located at
various stations and district offices throughout the state.

A list of contacts and key locations for QPS is included in the appendices of this report.
Partners

QPS works closely with its public safety portfolio partners — the Office of the IGEM, PSBA and QFES.
The QPS also has strong relationships with its partners in the community including the Community
Policing Boards, Queensland Police-Citizens Youth Welfare Association (QPCYWA), Neighbourhood
Watch Queensland (NHWQ) and Crime Stoppers Queensland. These partnerships help Queensland
police to stop crime and make the community safer.

e Community Policing Boards

Community Policing Boards provide the opportunity for local organisations and individuals to
work together with police on strategies to address crime and safety issues in the community. The
boards are made up of local police and community representatives such as not-for-profit
organisations, local businesses, chamber of commerce and relevant state, local and Australian
government agencies, as well as other individuals who can help address specific issues.

The primary objectives of Community Policing Boards are to:

- promote community safety and security

- find strategies to address societal issues associated with crime and community safety
- identify opportunities to, and where possible, integrate services at a local level

- develop partnerships to support government, industry and community working together
- promote evidence-based solutions (utilising statistical data and empirical research).

Community Policing Boards complement existing community crime prevention frameworks
including: NHWQ; Crime Stoppers; and Multi-faith, Cultural and Indigenous Community/Police
Consultative Groups.

For more information or to contact your local board visit http://mypolice.gld.gov.au and follow the
links.
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Queensland Police-Citizens Youth Welfare Association

The QPCYWA, commonly known as Police-Citizens Youth Club (PCYC), is a non-government,
not-for-profit, charitable organisation that provides appropriate, affordable and accessible youth
development programs and services to support young people in making positive life choices.

Every PCYC is managed by a QPS Sergeant as its Branch Manager. This encourages positive
relationships in the community and fosters unique interactions and experiences between QPS
officers and young Queenslanders. The PCYC was first established in 1948 and there are

54 PCYCs and more than 60 QPS officers working to manage and coordinate its operations
across the state.

For more information or to find a club near you, visit the PCYC website at www.pcyc.org.au.

Neighbourhood Watch Queensland

NHWAQ is a joint partnership between the QPS and the Queensland community to reduce crime
and improve community safety. It encourages communities to join together in small informal
groups to improve the safety of their families and other people who live, visit and do businessin
their neighbourhood. NHWQ is focused on improving home security, reducing the fear of crime
and reporting suspicious activity to police. There are approximately 400 local NHWQ groups
located throughout Queensland.

The NHWQ myPolice blog provides daily NHWQ information from around the state.
For more information or to find your local NHWQ, visit the NHWQ website at www.nhwg.org.
Crime Stoppers Queensland

Crime Stoppers Queensland is a community volunteer organisation that believes the general
public can help make a difference in solving and preventing crime. It provides an avenue for the
community as a whole to assist police to solve crimes.

Crime Stoppers Queensland provides a telephone hotline and website for members of the
community to provide anonymous information about criminal activity. This information is sent
electronically to the relevant police establishment in the area where the crime is occurring for
investigation.

The QPS assists Crime Stoppers Queensland through the following mechanisms:

- the Assistant Commissioner, State Crime Command is on the Board of Directors as the
Commissioner’s representative

- a dedicated police unit manages the partnership deliverables, administers intelligence
reports, handles investigator inquiries and assists Crime Stoppers State Office personnel with
promotional displays and presentations as required

- police officers act as partnership representatives on each of the 31 Volunteer Area
Committees spread throughout the state.

For more detailed information, visit the Crime Stoppers Queensland website at
www.qld.crimestoppers.com.au.
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Volunteers

Volunteers are critical to the successful delivery of frontline services and support the QPS in
keeping the Queensland community safe.

Volunteers in Policing

The aim of the Volunteers in Policing (ViP) program is to recruit and train local community
members (ViP) to carry out a range of voluntary tasks that complement but do not compete with
the established responsibilities of police officers and other paid staff members. In general, these
tasks assist police to deliver a range of services designed to reduce crime and to help people
feel safe. ViP are based in local police establishments where they work with police to address
customer service, community safety and crime prevention needs in the community. ViP also
support victims of crime, often attending with police to speak with and provide support to people
who have gone through difficult and traumatic experiences. ViP also assist Police Recruiting with
the overall recruiting process. There are approximately 300 ViP throughout the state.

For more information or to become a ViP, visit the QPS website
(www.police.qld.gov.au/join/vip/default.htm).
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Regional Operations

Northern Region

Far North District
Mt Isa District
Townsville District

Central Regicon

Capricornia District
Mackay District
Sunshine Coast District
Wide Bay Burnett District

Southern Region

Darling Downs District
Ipswich District
Moreton District

South West District

South Eastern Region

Gold Coast District
Logan District

Brisbane Region

North Brisbane District
South Brisbane District

Our structure

Specialist Operations

Community Contact
Command

Communications Group
Policelink and Programs Group
Information Management
Services Group

Intelligence, Counter-

Terrorism and Major
Events Command

el COvert and Specialist Operations
Group

Security and Counter-Terrorism
Group

State Intelligence Group

Operations Support
Command

Forensic Services Group
Specialist Response Group
Specialist Services Group

Road Policing Command

Heavy Vehicle Road Operations

. State Traffic Taskforce Group
Traffic Camera Group

Traffic Operations Group

Traffic Programs Group

State Crime Command

Child Safety and Sexual Crime
Group

Drug and Sericus Crime Group
Fraud and Cyber Crime Group
Homicide Group

] COMMonwealth Games Group

1
Strategy, Policy and
Performance

Crime and Corruption
Commission {CCC) {(Police

CCC Crime
CCC Witness Protection and
Operations Support

Ethical Standards
Command

Integrity and Performance
Internal Investigations

Legal Division

General Counsel
Legal Services Group

Operational Capability
Command

Engagement, Performance and
Procedures Group
Renewal and Governance Group

Regional Operations is responsible for the provision of strategic direction, leadership, overview and
review of the delivery of policing services to the community across the five regions statewide.

Specialist Operations is responsible for the provision of specialist police services including
Community Contact Command, Intelligence, Counter-Terrorism and Major Events Command,
Operations Support Command, Road Policing Command, State Crime Command and Commonwealth

Games Command.

Strategy, Policy and Performance is responsible for continuous improvement andreview,
organisational efficiencies and better service provision to the Queensland community.
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Financial summary

Summary of financial performance

The following table summarises the operating result and financial position for QPS 2015-16 and the
previous financial year.

Statement of comprehensive income 20:15'16 20?4'15
$°000 $°000
Total income from continuing operations 2,111,929 2,043,056
Total expenses from continuing operations 2,110,783 2,042,061
Total other comprehensive income 221 381
Total comprehensive income 1,367 1,377
Statement of financial position 22:1056;6 22,1:0(1)5
Total assets 228,374 213,015
Total liabilities 128,055 106,413
Net assets/equity 100,319 106,602

Income and expenses from continuing operations

QPS is funded to deliver crime and public order, and road safety services principally through
parliamentary appropriations.

QPS also receives income from other revenue sources including user charges and fees comprising
special services and sale of goods and services, services provided by PSBA below fair value,
government grants and contributions.

QPS incurs expenses to deliver crime and public order, and road safety services in partnership with
the community. These expenses are summarised below.

For 2015-16, QPS received income from continuing operations totalling $2,111.9 million and incurred
total expenditure from continuing operations of $2,110.8 million. This was comprised of:

Income

e appropriation services revenue $1,716.7 million

e user charges $32.5 million

e grants and other contributions $358.2 million (including goods and services provided below fair
value from PSBA $317.6 million)

e other revenue $4.5 million.

Expenses

employee expenses $1,529.7 million

supplies and services $185.9 million

grants and subsidies $5.9 million

depreciation and amortisation $13.4 million

impairment losses $0.5 million

other expenses $375.4 million (including goods and services provided below fair value from PSBA
$317.6 million).

QPS reported an operating surplus of $1.146 million for 2015-16.
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Summary of financial position

QPS was in a positive financial position at the end of the financial year. The total net assets/equity of
QPS at the end of 2015-16 were $100.3 million. This was comprised predominantly of:

Assets

cash and cash equivalents $95.2 million
trade and other receivables $63.7 million
inventory $5.4 million

other assets $3.0 million

intangible assets $20.1 million

property, plant and equipment $40.9 million.

Liabilities
e trade and other payables $28.4 million

e accrued employee benefits $69.1 million
e other current liabilities $30.5 million.

There were no events occurring after balance date that could be expected to have a material impact
on the operating result for QPS for the year ended 30 June 2016.
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Performance

Key performance measures

The services provided by the QPS focus on reducing and preventing the incidence of crime, public
disorder and road trauma to build safe, caring and connected communities. These are delivered
through two service areas — Crime and Public Order, and Road Safety.

The objective of Crime and Public Order is to uphold the law by working with the community to stop
crime and make Queensland safer. A range of services are provided by the QPS to support this and
include:

o protect personal safety and prevent and detect related offences including homicide, assault,
sexual assault and robbery

e protect property and prevent and detect related offences including unlawful entry, other property
damage, motor vehicle theft, and other theft

e maintain public order and safety including during major events and natural disasters (from
planning to recovery); address public space enjoyment, street and nuisance offences; liquor
licensing issues; and environmental design to reduce crime including alcohol-fuelled violence.

Road Safety’s objective is to undertake activities designed to reduce road trauma including targeting
the prevention and detection of speeding, red light offences, driving under the influence of alcohol or
drugs, driving while fatigued and not wearing seatbelts.

The services delivered by the QPS are designed to promote ethical behavior, discipline and
professional practice.

The following tables provide an overview of the key performance measures for the QPS for2015-16.
Data for 2014-15 is sourced from the Queensland Police Service 2014-15 Annual Report unless
otherwise stated in the Notes.

Service Area: Crime and Public Order

Performance measures 2014-15 2015-16 2015-16
Actual Target/ Actual
Estimate

©
D =
S
S o
=
0p]

Rate (per 100,000 people) of | 1, 2, 4 4

personal safety offences 3

reported:

e Homicide 1 2-4 1

e Assault 4 371 350-438 417
e Sexual assault 4 125 100-125 128
e Robbery 4 27 25-31 28

e Total personal safety 4 586 550-688 641
Percentage of personal 2,3 v v

safety offences cleared within

30 days:

e Homicide 85% 70-88% 75%
o Assault 65% 55-69% 66%
e Sexual assault 59% 55-69% 58%
e Robbery 62% 55-69% 62%
e Total personal safety 63% 55-69% 63%
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Service Area: Crime and Public Order (cont’d)

Performance measures 2014-15 2015-16 2015-16
Actual Target/ Actual
Estimate

©
D =
Y
S o
=
0p}

Rate (per 100,000 people) of | 1, 2, v 4

property security offences 5

reported:

o Unlawful entry 660 650-813 673

e Other property damage 4 666 650-813 694

e Motor vehicle theft 4 189 180-225 208

e Other theft (excluding 4 2,016 1,900-2,375 2,120
unlawful entry)

e Total property security 4 4,149 4,000-5,000 4,286

Percentage of property 2,5 v 4

security offences cleared

within 30 days:

o Unlawful entry 19% 16-20% 20%

e Other property damage 27% 24-30% 28%

e Motor vehicle theft 35% 30-38% 38%

e Other theft (excluding 28% 25-31% 29%
unlawful entry)

e Total property security 30% 25-31% 31%

Rate (per 100,000 people) of 1, 2, 4, 4 4 1,263 1,100-1,375 1,274

good order offences detected 6

Percentage of good order 2,6 4 4 89% 85-100% 86%

offences cleared within

30 days

Public satisfaction with police | 7 v v 75.2% 270% 72.4%

dealing with public order

problems

Public satisfaction with police | 7, 8 v v 90.5% >85% 84.6%

dealing with emergencies

and disasters

Percentage of code 1 and 9 v - 280% 83.9%

code 2 incidents attended
within 12 minutes

Notes:
1. Queensland population data is sourced from the Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS) Catalogue
No. 3101.0 Australian Demographic Statistics.

2. The 2015-16 Target/Estimate takes into account recent results and any known factors that are
likely to have an impact in the forthcoming 12 months. The range is standardised so that the
upper end of the range is consistently 25% higher than the lower end.
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Notes (cont'd):

3.

The offence categories reported separately are those classified as ‘violent’ crimes and are the
most significant personal safety offence categories in terms of their impact on the community.
The ‘total personal safety’ offences figure also includes the offence categories of extortion,
kidnapping, abduction and deprivation of liberty and other offences against the person. Homicide
includes the offence categories of murder, attempted murder and conspiracy to murder.

Data for 2014-15 is sourced from the Annual Statistical Review 2015/16 Queensland Police
Service.

The offence categories reported separately are considered high volume property security
offences. The total property security offences figure also includes arson, fraud and handling
stolen goods.

Good order offences include offences relating to public nuisance, obstructing police and other
offences against good order. An increase in good order offences generally indicates anincrease
in policing activity around public spaces and major events, and a range of related proactive
policing strategies often focusing on liquor-related enforcement.

Public satisfaction is measured against the results of the National Survey of Community
Satisfaction with Policing. The National Survey of Community Satisfaction with Policing is a
general community survey. Respondents to these questions may or may not have had contact
with police in the last 12 months.

An amendment has been made to this measure to ensure alignment with a wording change in
the national survey on 1 July 2015. Respondents were previously asked about their satisfaction
with police dealing with ‘disasters and major events’. No changes were made to the methodology
of this measure. Emergencies and disasters includes maintaining public order and safety during
natural disasters and major events such as tropical cyclones, flooding, Schoolies Week and Gold
Coast 600.

New performance measure in 2015-16. This performance measure reports the time taken to
attend code 1 and code 2 incidents. Data includes geographic areas covered by the Queensland
Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) System. Code 1 and 2 incidents include very urgent matters
when danger to human life is imminent and urgent matters involving injury or present threat of
injury to person or property. The benchmark of 12 minutes was chosen for comparability with
New South Wales police, who use similar methodology, business rules and systems.

Key

RoGS — Report on Government Services

SDS — Service Delivery Statement

Strategic Plan — Queensland Police Service Strategic Plan 2015-2019
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Service Area: Road Safety

Performance measures 2014-15 2015-16 2015-16

Actual Target/ Actual
Estimate

©
D =
L
S o
=
0p}

Rate (per 100,000 people) 1, 4 4 4.95 5.4 5.03
of road crash fatalities 2,3,

Rate (per 100,000 people) 1, v v 131.5 145 -

of people hospitalised 2,4

following a road crash

Notes:

1. There are many factors which can cause or contribute to road crash fatalities and
hospitalisations. Key causal factors include drink and drug driving, fatigue, speeding,
unrestrained occupants, and distraction and inattention. The 2015-16 Target/Estimate, developed
in consultation with the Department of Transport and Main Roads (DTMR), included
consideration of recent trends, economic indicators and the potential effects of road safety
initiatives. Queensland population data is sourced from the ABS Catalogue No. 3101.0 Australian
Demographic Statistics.

2. Datais sourced from DTMR. The 2014-15 Actuals have been updated.
The 2015-16 Actual is preliminary and subject to change.

4. The 2015-16 Actual was not available at the time of reporting due to the time it takes to
investigate and finalise crash information. Data is expected to be available in November 2016.

w

Key

RoGS — Report on Government Services

SDS - Service Delivery Statement

Strategic Plan — Queensland Police Service Strategic Plan 2015-2019
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Service: Police Services

Performance measures 2014-15 2015-16 2015-16
© 9 Actual Target/ Actual
g = 3 Estimate
S
)
Rate of complaints 1 v v v 1908 <9.8 10.8
against police per 100
sworn (operational) staff
Public perception of police 2 v
professionalism and
image
o Police perform their job Y 87.8% >85% 86.3%
professionally
e Police treat people fairly s 16.5% =75% 75.7%
and equally
e Police are honest v | 76.4% >75% 74.2%
¢ | do have confidence in the v 88% >85% 87.3%
police
Satisfaction of members of 3 v v v | 85.2% >85% 83.7%
the public who had contact
with police in the last
twelve months
Cost of policing services 4 4 v v $434 $442 $445
per person
Percentage of 5 4 4 v 1 0.01% <0.05% 0.005%

prosecutions where costs
were awarded against the
police

Notes:

1. Sworn operational staff refers to a police officer employed by the QPS who has sworn the Oath of
Office under the Police Service Administration Act 1990, and whose primary duty is the delivery of
police or police-related services to an external customer, including officers seconded to PSBA and
the Crime and Corruption Commission. ‘Complaints’ are defined as statements by members of the
public regarding police conduct, including officers on, off or unknown duty, when a person was in
police custody or had voluntary dealing with the police. RoGS 2016 reported that Queensland had
the second lowest rate of complaints against police per 100 sworn staff out of the eight reporting
jurisdictions in 2014-15.

2. Public perception is measured against the results of the National Survey of Community Satisfaction
with Policing. The National Survey of Community Satisfaction with Policing is a general community
survey. Respondents to these questions may or may not have had contact with police in the last
12 months.
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Notes (cont'd)

3. Public satisfaction is measured against the results of the National Survey of Community
Satisfaction with Policing. The National Survey of Community Satisfaction with Policing is a general
community survey. Respondents to this question had contact with police in the last 12 months.

4. The Cost of policing services per person is calculated by dividing real recurrent expenditure by
Queensland population. Population data is sourced from the ABS Australian Demographic
Statistics Catalogue No. 3101.0 Australian Demographic Statistics. The increase in the 2015-16
Actual, from the 2015-16 Estimated Actual of $439 reported in the 2016-17 SDS, is primarily due to
below fair value services for the Government Wireless Network (GWN), implemented for the QPS
by the Department of Science, Information Technology and Innovation.

5. This performance measure represents the sum of all prosecutions where costs were awarded
against the QPS, divided by the sum of all prosecutions. In RoGS, this is considered a measure of
police efficiency in preparing evidence that is relevant to, and supports, a prosecution. Court costs
are generally awarded against police when a criminal action against an offender hasfailed; in this
respect, it represents at least some of the resources expended when a prosecution fails. A low or
decreasing proportion of prosecutions where costs are awarded against police in criminal actions is
therefore desirable. RoGS 2016 reported that Queensland had the lowest percentage of
prosecutions where costs were awarded against the police out of the eight reporting jurisdictions in
2014-15.

Key

RoGS — Report on Government Services

SDS — Service Delivery Statement

Strategic Plan — Queensland Police Service Strategic Plan 2015-2019
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2015-16 Highlights

This section reports on the objectives of the QPS Strategic Plan 2015-2019. To drive delivery of its
objectives, the QPS focusses on five main strategies: Frontline services, Culture, People, Processes
and Systems (refer page 12 for further information).

This is a sample of performance highlights from 2015-16 and is not representative of all work
undertaken during the reporting period.

Objective One

Reducing and preventing the incidence of crime, public disorder and road
trauma.

Putting an end to domestic and family violence

During 2015-16, the QPS achieved its First Action Plan (2015-16) deliverables of the Queensland
Government’s Domestic and Family Violence Prevention Strategy 2016-2026. These deliverables have
laid the foundation for the QPS to achieve its future vision of delivering best practice policing prevention
and response services to improve victim safety and hold perpetrators to account.

Key achievements during 2015-16 include:

e appointing Deputy Commissioner Brett Pointing as the QPS Domestic and Family Violence Cultural
Change Champion and Assistant Commissioner Paul Stewart as the QPS Domestic and Family
Violence Senior Responsible Officer

e reinstating the QPS State Domestic and Family Violence Coordinator role

e establishing the QPS Domestic, Family Violence and Vulnerable Persons Unit to support the
implementation of the QPS-led recommendations from the NOT NOW, NOT EVER Putting an End
to Domestic and Family Violence in Queensland report (2015)

e hosting the inaugural QPS Domestic and Family Violence Forum on 23 July 2015 to define
prevention and first responder best policing practice in Queensland. Forum outcomes have been
used to guide and inform decision making around domestic and family violence. A further forum
was held in February 2016 to continue discussions on domestic and family violence prevention and
first responder best practice, to facilitate Domestic and Family Violence Coordinator information
sharing and develop ways to increase officers’ awareness and understanding of domestic and
family violence

e conducting Vertical Slice Workshops in late 2015 with operational police in Brisbane, Cairns,
Rockhampton, Townsville and Gold Coast districts to explore the challenges facing frontline officers
in responding to domestic and family violence

e inducting a number of White Ribbon Ambassadors, Champions and Pledges at Executive
Leadership and District Officer level, and progressing measures for the QPS to become an
accredited White Ribbon workplace

e releasing the Australia and New Zealand Police Commissioners — Protecting Women and Children
from Family Violence Leadership Statement in March 2016. The QPS Commissioner is a signatory
to the statement
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e hosting the District Officers Domestic and Family Violence Conference in May 2016, to continue
discussions regarding the QPS cultural change process to better address domestic and family
violence

e progressing implementation of changes to police procedures that strengthen the legal processes
and increase accountability for domestic and family violence offending. Changes arising from the
Criminal Law (Domestic Violence) Amendment Act 2015 and the Criminal Law (Domestic Violence)
Amendment Act 2016 have also been implemented and it is anticipated further changes to police
procedures may result from the forthcoming amendments to the Domestic and Family Violence
Protection Act 2012

e commencing an independent, external audit of domestic and family violence police training
products.

For further information, refer to pages 68-69.
Child safety reform agenda

The QPS continued implementing recommendations in 2015-16 from the Queensland Child Protection
Commission of Inquiry final report Taking Responsibility: A Roadmap for Queensland Child Protection
(June 2013) and the Child Protection Reform Amendment Act 2014.

The QPS also continued to participate in a joint working party with the Department of Communities,
Child Safety and Disability Services (DCCSDS) to establish a streamlined process for the exchange of
domestic and family violence information between the QPS and DCCSDS (recommendation 4.4 of the
Inquiry’s report). The information exchange process should provide both agencies with the ability to
easily retrieve, access and store information.

In a further collaboration with DCCSDS, the QPS aims to develop an information technology platform to
facilitate and streamline the information exchange process as a long term solution. In the interim, the
QPS is working with DCCSDS to develop appropriate arrangements for requesting police information, in
accordance with the business requirements of each agency.

The QPS is also providing ongoing resources to the Royal Commission into Institutional Responses to
Child Sexual Abuse. In May 2015, the QPS provided a full-time investigator to the Commission as part
of the Office of the Solicitor Assisting for 12 months. Due to the success of this collaboration, the
Commission extended the secondment to May 2017.

Child protection

The QPS is one of the primary agencies which provide first response services, 24 hours a day, seven
days a week, for child protection matters. The statewide CPIU structure provides a specialist policing
response to children, both as victims and offenders. CPIU officers are provided with specialist training in
the investigation of child abuse, sexual offences, youth justice and forensic interviewing of children.

CPIUs are centrally supported by the QPS Child Safety Director, Child Safety and Sexual Crime Group
in State Crime Command. The Child Safety Director is also responsible for working across government
and non-government agencies to ensure child protection issues receive a statewide, coordinated
response.

The QPS employs a range of mechanisms to help protect children by enforcing legislation, responding
to Commissions of Inquiry, continuing the important work of Taskforce Argos and the Child Trauma
Taskforce, and a child alert system for child abductions.
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Child protection offender reporting

The Child Protection Offender Registry, Child Safety and Sexual Crime Group which includes

22 centrally functioned regional investigators, is responsible for the management of Reportable
Offenders in Queensland. During the reporting period, the QPS continued to ensure offenders
against children complied with reporting obligations under the Child Protection (Offender
Reporting) Act 2004. The Act requires people who commit serious offences against children to
register their personal details and inform police of their whereabouts. These details are then
recorded on the Child Protection Offender Register. The legislation requires an offender to provide
police with this information for anywhere between five years and life, depending on their age and
the seriousness of the offence. For juvenile offenders the reporting period is reduced by half. The
QPS ensures offenders comply with these obligations.

As at 30 June 2016, Queensland’s register contained the details of 3,157 offenders. During
2015-16, proceedings commenced against 701 reportable offenders for a total of 1,809 charges
associated with reporting conditions.

Child Trauma Taskforce

The Child Trauma Taskforce provides high-level specialist investigative and operational assistance
to regional investigators on sudden, unexplained deaths of children, and serious injuries and
deaths resulting from suspected child abuse and neglect.

This group of highly skilled officers are well experienced in child abuse and suspicious death
investigations. The taskforce can be deployed within Queensland to assist regional and
metropolitan investigations and is supported by the QPS Behavioural Analysis Unit. The taskforce
uses diverse investigative techniques to provide additional capability to these often complex
investigations. It also provides an immediate response to Amber Alerts (a public alert system used
to help locate abducted or high-risk missing children in imminent danger) and engages with the
Police Communications Centre (PCC) to facilitate the timely release of information to regional
investigators to assist in the safe recovery of abducted children at the earliest opportunity.

The taskforce has developed networks with a diverse range of experts in the field of child trauma
and is able to draw on these networks during investigations. It provides the conduit for
multi-faceted and multi-jurisdictional investigations involving government and non-government
assistance and expertise.

From its inception in 2013 to 30 June 2016, the taskforce has been engaged in 44 cases of
significant injury and child death which have resulted in individuals being charged with serious
crimes including murder.

Sexual Crimes Unit

The Sexual Crimes Unit targets sexual offenders that pose the highest risk to the community by
disrupting serious and serial offending throughout Queensland. Its staff complete risk assessments
and proactively target high-risk recidivist sexual offenders who are the subject of supervision orders
under the provisions of the Dangerous Prisoners (Sexual Offenders) Act 2003. The Sexual Crimes
Unit is the lead investigative agency for the Royal Commission into Institutional Responses to Child
Sexual Abuse, the Defence Abuse Response Taskforce and other community initiatives relating to
the sexual abuse of children and the community.
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¢ Tackling child exploitation material

Following the release of the Queensland Organised Crime Commission of Inquiry report
(October 2015), the Queensland Government provided $3.2 million to the QPS to crack down on
the online sharing of child exploitation material and to build on the existing work of the QPS to
arrest and charge these offenders.

To support this, Taskforce Orion commenced on 1 January 2016 and will operate over an 18 month
period in conjunction with regional CPIU officers, Taskforce Argos officers and the Crime and
Corruption Commission. The taskforce will target Queenslanders sharing child exploitation material
on peer-to-peer networks, as well as those offenders using the Darknet to share images
anonymously.

From the commencement of Taskforce Orion to 30 June 2016, 60 offenders have been charged
with 238 offences.

Offender prohibition orders

On 5 January 2016, the government tabled its response to the Crime and Corruption Commission
review of the operation of the Child Protection (Offender Prohibition Order) Act 2008 (CPOPOA). The
Crime and Corruption Commission reviewed the extent to which the CPOPOA had been used by the
QPS and the courts in its first five years of operations, and identified areas for improvement. All 17
recommendations were supported either in full or in-principle, by the government.

A major recommendation to enhance the operations and the efficiencies of the CPOPOA, is to
amalgamate the CPOPOA and the Child Protection (Offender Reporting) Act 2004 (CPORA)
(recommendation 1).

The CPOPOA allows police to apply for a prohibition order in circumstances where a relevant sex
offender has displayed concerning conduct that poses an unacceptable risk to the lives or sexual safety
of children. The purpose of the CPORA is to ensure reportable offenders who have been convicted of
sexual offences, or other serious offences, against children, inform police of their whereabouts at all
times, and any changes to their personal circumstances.

The amalgamation of the CPOPOA and the CPORA will strengthen and enhance the policing and
criminal justice system response, and the protection of children and the broader community. A significant
body of work has already been completed to progress this recommendation.

Another significant recommendation was the establishment of a Joint Working Group to review the
processes used by the QPS and Queensland Corrective Services (QCS) to manage reportable
offenders (recommendation 9). The aim of the working group is to achieve full legislative and policy
compliance and to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the management of reportable offenders.
The working group held its first meeting in May 2016 with representation from the Department of Justice
and Attorney-General including QCS. The working group will review processes used by the QPS and
QCS to manage reportable offenders and will consider other recommendations from the Crime and
Corruption Commission report.

In the long term, the working group will provide a forum for ongoing collaboration between key agencies
to ensure efficient and effective management of reportable offenders to enhance the safety of children
and the community.
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Taskforce Argos

Taskforce Argos is principally responsible for the investigation of organised paedophilia, child
exploitation and computer-facilitated child exploitation. Investigators proactively and reactively target a
broad range of websites and mobile applications utilised by child sex offenders to prey on children.
Taskforce Argos staff also identify and implement new strategies to combat computer-facilitated crimes
against children.

The taskforce continues to work with national and international law enforcement agencies, prosecutors,
technology providers, non-government agencies and child protection advocates in a collaborative effort
to protect children.

During the period 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016, Taskforce Argos detectives:
e contributed to the removal of 84 children from sexual harm nationally and internationally
¢ finalised one major international operation (on the Darknet)

o referred 441 targets to partner law enforcement agencies both nationally and internationally
e charged 147 offenders on 1,108 charges.

The major international operation on the Darknet, led by Taskforce Argos, resulted in:

e a South Australian child protection worker being sentenced to 35 years imprisonment with a
non-parole period of 28 years

¢ a male from the United Kingdom, convicted of abusing 23 children in Malaysia, sentenced to 22 life
sentences with a non-parole period of 25 years

e 300 other offenders being identified and referred for action to 50 countries including Australia,
Argentina, Austria, Belgium, Canada, Spain, Denmark, France, Germany, the United States and
Russia.

In addition:

o the Officer in Charge of Taskforce Argos was appointed as the Chair of an Interpol and Europol
working group relative to the coordination of international undercover engagements

e the manager of the Taskforce Argos Victim Identification Unit continued as the Chair of the Interpol
Specialist Group on Crimes against Children, coordinating global efforts to combat child
exploitation. In April 2016, the manager delivered a presentation at the Europol Annual Experts’
Seminar in the Netherlands on an international operation conducted by Taskforce Argos

e in May 2016, Taskforce Argos’ technical and special support officer travelled to the Netherlands to
attend the Europol European Multidisciplinary Platform against Criminal Threats (EMPACT)
meeting on Combating the Sexual Exploitation of Children on the Internet. The meeting enables
experienced online investigators to exchange ideas and techniques used in combatting the sexual
exploitation of children on the internet to enhance global cooperation

¢ in June 2016, Taskforce Argos delivered online training to law enforcement officers in Taiwan as
part of its commitment to establish best practice methodologies for law enforcement investigators
of child exploitation offences, across the globe.

Attendance and participation at these international meetings has ensured that Taskforce Argos
maintains national and international best practice in the engagement, identification and prosecution of
child sex offenders.
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Partnership to tackle child predators

A new joint taskforce between the Australian Federal Police and the QPS was established in April 2016
to combat the sexual exploitation of children. The JACET will combine the resources of the Australian
Federal Police’s Child Protection agents with QPS Taskforce Argos embedded within the Child Safety
and Sexual Crime Group.

The taskforce’s objective is to accelerate dissemination of information received from international
agencies to partner agencies regarding sexual predators who prey on children in the online
environment. The model has proven highly effective in other states and territories, and the expansion of
the JACET into Queensland will further boost these efforts.

Australian-first Amber Alert system

In August 2015, Queensland became the first Australian state to launch an Amber Alert system to help
locate abducted or high-risk missing children in imminent danger, replacing the Child Abduction Alert
(CAA) system.

Amber Alerts are issued by police when they need urgent public assistance and time is critical with a
missing child at imminent risk of death or serious harm. The new Amber Alert policy provides officers
with more flexibility and enables officers to initiate an alert if a child is missing in suspicious
circumstances rather than the alert being reserved purely for cases where there is evidence of an
abduction.

Alerts are broadcast to the public through the media, commercial billboard companies, child safety
community groups, a national emergency alerting company and social media, and have led to
information from the community which was pivotal in locating high-risk missing or abducted children.

From its launch to 30 June 2016, there have been seven Amber Alerts issued. In each of these cases
the children were located safely, with evidence showing the Amber Alert directly contributed to the safe
recovery of the children in the majority of the cases. Proactive community engagement has led to new
partnerships with secondary alerting partners, to increase the capacity of public messaging.

Youth, Technology and Virtual Communities Conference

In April 2016, the Child Safety and Sexual Crime Group within the State Crime Command hosted the
fourth Youth, Technology and Virtual Communities Conference at Bond University, Gold Coast. The
conference attracted expert speakers from across the globe in the fields of criminal investigation,
prosecution and sex offender psychology. The conference focused on child abductions and provided
delegates with the latest developments, strategies and challenges across all facets of investigations.

The conference attracted approximately 445 delegates, including representatives from law enforcement
agencies in Australia, 16 overseas countries and 70 external organisations. After the conference,
Taskforce Argos hosted an online practitioners meeting for 27 representatives from all state, territory
and federal law enforcement agencies including investigators from New Zealand, Canada, Germany
and the Netherlands, to determine key strategic issues impacting on computer-facilitated crimes against
children.

Tackling alcohol-fuelled violence

The Tackling Alcohol-Fuelled Violence Legislation Amendment Act 2016 was assented to on

4 March 2016. The Act includes an additional evidentiary provision ensuring blood alcohol content
readings lawfully taken by police are admissible as evidence in relevant prosecutions under the Liquor
Act 1992.

This amendment is one of a number of changes made to the Act that are being implemented to reduce
alcohol-fuelled violence. Training materials for frontline police have been updated in terms of the new
legislation with training commencing in 2016 and ongoing into 2017 as the relative legislative
amendments take effect.
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Intelligence-led policing in safe night precincts

During 2015-16, the QPS continued to support public safety in safe night precincts (SNPs) through a
range of proactive and operational activities. In addition to targeting public order, alcohol-fuelled
violence and the supply of dangerous drugs in SNP areas, the QPS provided expert advice and
practical assistance to local SNP boards’ Public Safety Consultative Committees.

Highlights during the reporting period include:

o targeted patrols of known pre-loading locations and Railway Squad operations at transport entry
points enhancing public safety and amenity and assisting in the identification and de-escalation of
high-risk behaviours

o the Mackay SNP commenced a partnership with Queensland Health to better manage offenders
who are seriously affected by alcohol and are taken to hospital for treatment

¢ the establishment of an alternative prisoner processing model within Surfers Paradise Division,
using police vans to transport arrested people directly to the Southport Watchhouse to de-escalate
situations

¢ the issuing of body-worn cameras to officers at Surfers Paradise and Broadbeach

e increased scrutiny of identified high-risk venues in the Gold Coast SNP through the training of
additional qualified Liquor Enforcement and Proactive Strategies Officers

¢ the installation of a hydration station during peak service periods in the Toowoomba SNP to
decrease alcohol-fuelled violence and raise awareness for responsible consumption of alcohol.
This was a joint initiative with METRO Care Toowoomba and Toowoomba Liquor Industry Action
Group. Glow in the dark wrist bands with alcohol safety awareness messages were also distributed
to serve as a reminder to patrons in darkened, licensed venues

¢ deployment of a drug detection dog as part of Operation Oscar Seaspray that resulted in the
apprehension of five persons on eight charges at Toowoomba SNP.

Calling last drinks on alcohol related harms

The ‘Last Drinks’ alcohol harm project, funded by the National Drug Strategy Law Enforcement Funding
Committee in May 2015, was aimed at supporting frontline police and researchers from Griffith
University as they engaged with, and surveyed more than 4,500 patrons as they entered and exited
entertainment precincts in the Fortitude Valley, Brisbane, Mackay and the Gold Coast between

July 2015 and June 2016.

The engagement model coincided with the peak movement of patrons and presented the opportunity for
participants to take an accurate, voluntary breath test, whilst research surveys delved into subjects such
as their involvement in violence, drug taking habits and other related factors.

There were high levels of participation and engagement, and strong messaging around alcohol harm
and night time entertainment precinct environments. The project increased public awareness of the risks
associated with preloading and portrayed the positive partnership and preventative approach of the
police and Giriffith University.

The operational elements of the project highlighted the value of regular ‘preloading patrols’ in
entertainment precincts.

The findings from the research project are being analysed by the academic team and initial trends were
presented at the Australian and New Zealand Addiction Conference in May 2016.
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Taskforce Maxima

Taskforce Maxima was established in October 2013 to disrupt, dismantle and eliminate Outlaw
Motorcycle Gangs (OMCGs) from Queensland through tactical and covert enforcement strategies and to
build relationships with other Queensland, national and international counterparts.

On 1 July 2015, Taskforce Maxima returned to the QPS State Crime Command. Whilst OMCGs remains
a high priority for the taskforce, the focus has been broadened to encompass all organised crime and
emerging crime gangs.

The National Anti-Gang Squad continues to work alongside Taskforce Maxima in the national fight
against criminal gang activity. This strike team provides a mechanism for the national coordination of
investigations, provides access to broader commonwealth capabilities in support of QPS activity, and
facilitates an enhanced ability to share information and conduct investigations in collaboration with
international law enforcement partners.

The squad is made up of members from the Australian Federal Police, state police forces, Australian
Crime Commission, Australian Taxation Office and Department of Human Services (Australian
Government).

Key achievements for 2015-16 include:
e noincreases in membership of OMCGs and no increase in chapters of existing OMCGs

¢ the continuation of project Ravelin, a partnership with the Australia Border Force targeting OMCG
members, which successfully resulted in a number of members being prevented from entering
Australia.

e successful operations targeting OMCG and organised crime resulting in 909 persons charged with
2,823 offences

o the seizure of 137 firearms including handguns, rifles and semi-automatic shot guns from OMCGs
and organised crime gangs.

In addition, the official QPS disassociation process has enabled 172 members to formally disassociate
from declared criminal organisations from October 2013.

Taskforce Maxima continues to have a statewide focus with operations in all 15 police districts resulting
in the dismantling of key OMCG chapters. These operations also include partnerships with interstate
and international law enforcement agencies ensuring a borderless and agile approach in targeting
unlawful activities.

Regional responses to target crime hotspots

The Sunshine Coast District had a number of taskforces targeting crime hotspots in 2015-16. These
taskforces were responsible for policing the property crime and organised crime networks which
included OMCGs. The district continues to work in partnership with QPS’ State Crime Command and
other agencies across a range of protracted major investigations.

The Sunshine Coast District Property Crime Taskforce, consisting of police drawn from the Criminal
Investigation Branch, the CPIU, State Intelligence and general duties, were responsible for undertaking
intelligence-led strategies based on place and case methodology. The development of timely
intelligence briefs and intelligence assessments on crime, to identify and target recidivist offenders and
identify crime hot spots, spikes and crime trends, supports the prevention and solving of crimes.

An assessment team was established in May 2016 with responsibility for the timely development of
intelligence analysis services towards problem place/case issues identified in the Sunshine Coast
District. The team provided an enhanced, timely analytical capability resulting in significant improvement
to policing strategies to reduce crime.
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Other taskforces include the Sunshine Coast District Drug and Serious Crime Taskforce and Sunshine
Coast District Gangs Team. In 2015-16, these taskforces worked collaboratively with QPS’ State Crime
Command, the Crime and Corruption Commission, the Australian Federal Police, the Department of
Immigration and Border Protection and other police districts on joint operations, with positive results.

Collectively, these groups provided a high level policing response to detect, combat, target and
dismantle organised crime networks with a focus on major, protracted and covert operations and
investigations utilising contemporary policing methodology, techniques and tactical actions.

Road safety

The QPS continues to work in partnership with the community and other road safety stakeholders to
make Queensland’s roads safer. Key road safety initiatives in 2015-16 included high-visibility policing
operations targeting road safety, and coordinated state and regional traffic policing operations focusing
on reducing the number and rate of road crash fatalities and hospitalisations.

These include:

e road policing operations such as Operation Crossroads (Easter and Christmas), Operation
Springbreak (September school holidays), Operation Coldsnap (June/July school holidays)
and Operation STATETRANS (May 2016). These operations collectively focus on the Fatal Five.
Operation STATETRANS is a heavy vehicle road safety compliance and enforcement operation,
designed to provide a collaborative multi-agency, and multi-jurisdictional approach

e expanding roadside drug testing capability to detect drivers who drive under the influence of drugs

e continuing to enhance road safety in partnership with the community including local road safety
advocacy and capacity-building activities across Queensland

e the provision of $7.2 million for Camera Detected Offence Program (CDOP) equipment.
Road Safety Week drives home the message

Following on from the success of Central Region’s inaugural Road Safety Week campaign in 2014, a
statewide campaign was launched in 2015. Queensland Road Safety Week ran from 17-21 August 2015
with the theme ‘Speak up for road safety’. The campaign saw government, industry and community
groups working together to address issues at a local level across the state. The week of activities
involved more than 500 individual, locally-hosted events, some of which were enforcement based,
facilitated by staff from QPS and the Queensland Trucking Association, bicycle and motorcyclist user
groups, and the campervan, motorhome and caravan association clubs. The week focused on five
themes drawn from the Fatal Five and sharing the road with a focus on vulnerable road users. The
campaign encouraged people to speak up about road safety with family, friends and work colleagues,
within their community and at work.

Safer Roads, Safer Queensland

In August 2015, the Queensland Government released Safer Roads, Safer Queensland: Queensland’s
Road Safety Strategy 2015-2021 and Safer Roads, Safer Queensland: Queensland’s Road Safety
Action Plan 2015-17.
QPS-led initiatives include:

e rollout of radars on police motorcycles

e on-road enforcement through overt and covert methods

¢ trials of innovative strategies and technologies

e expansion of training for road policing officers to better detect and deter broader criminal activities,
including enhanced drug driving operations across Queensland

e continuing high visibility policing operations, including Operations Menzel (random breath testing),
Plow (speeding, drink driving and distracted driving) and Barrier (Bruce Highway)
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e addressing dangerous, unregistered and unlicensed drivers (who are over-represented in crash
statistics), by expanding Automatic Number Plate Recognition technology in police vehicles

e updating remaining wet film mobile speed cameras to digital technology to enhance reliability
e enhancing roadside policing capability and efficiency by rolling out electronic ticketing.

Easter road safety operations

In a concerted effort to minimise road trauma over the 2016 Easter period, the QPS focused on high-risk
road user behaviour including the Fatal Five. Phase 1 of the Queensland Easter Road Safety Campaign
began on 24 March 2016 and continued until 28 March 2016. For the first time in 20 years there were no
fatalities on Queensland roads during the Easter period.

Other outcomes included:

o 94 505 random breath tests conducted, resulting in the detection of approximately 360 drink driving
offences

o 952 roadside saliva tests undertaken with 203 drivers testing positive for one or more relevant drugs
(one offender per 4.7 tests)

o 5,678 speeding infringement notices issued (excluding camera detected offences), 189 infringement
notices for not wearing seat belts and 213 infringement notices for using mobile telephones.

Camera Detected Offence Program

In April 2016, the QPS transitioned all mobile speed road safety cameras to a digital standard,
completing the removal of all film based cameras from the CDOP.

In May 2016, the QPS implemented a new mobile speed camera scheduling system to improve the
deployment of cameras at high-risk sections of road. The new scheduling system incorporates
functionality that utilises a full suite of evidence-based intelligence with a place and case management
approach.

Additional funding has been provided in 2015-16 and 2016-17 for CDOP. The QPS commenced site
installations in early 2016 for ten combined red light with speed cameras, and four new point to point
average speed cameras. A new enforcement strategy will also be implemented at high-risk sections
including road works, school zones and managed motorways through the deployment of a road safety
camera from a trailer based camera platform. The combined red light with speed cameras, point to point
average speed cameras and the temporary road safety camera are expected to be deployed in
September 2016.

Drug testing

During 2015-16, QPS’ Road Policing Command continued to increase roadside drug testing capacity
with an additional 133 officers trained to conduct roadside drug tests. This represents a capacity
increase of approximately 49%, bringing the total number of authorised officers trained to 407.

In addition, the QPS significantly increased the number of roadside drug tests conducted by 143%. In
2014-15, 20,389 roadside drug tests were conducted with 3,178 drug drivers detected (one in 6.4 tests);
and in 2015-16, 49,445 roadside drug tests were conducted with 10,804 drug drivers detected (one in
4.6); an increase of 29,056 roadside drug tests.

Road Policing Command also implemented technology enhancements to the Intelligent Tasking Analysis
System, specifically to detect hotspots to enable a more effective drug user targeting strategy.
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Police gain greater powers to keep Queensland safe

In April 2016, the Counter-Terrorism and Other Legislation Amendment Bill 2016 was introduced into
Parliament. The key objective of the Bill is to enhance public safety through enhanced counter-terrorism
and emergency management powers, ensuring police can rapidly and effectively respond to declared
emergencies to minimise the impact on the Queensland community. The proposed new laws will:

e enable police to require any person or organisation to provide information during a declared
emergency

e create an offence for refusing to provide information sought by police or to give false or misleading
information, with penalties of up to ten years imprisonment

o extend the power to search and seize vehicles as they leave or enter a declared area

e broaden the power for police to seize things from a person during a declared emergency to include
things that person may use to cause harm

e provide police with the powers to manage and control the evacuation of persons from a declared
area for a terrorist emergency and for their reception, identification and assessment at a terrorist
emergency reception centre.

The amendments are designed to protect Queenslanders by equipping QPS officers with the additional
powers they will need in an environment that continues to see an escalating global terrorism threat.

The Bill was referred to the Legal Affairs and Community Safety Committee for consideration and the
committee is required to report to Parliament on the Bill by 12 July 2016.

In addition, the Australian Crime Commission (Queensland) and other Legislation Amendment Bill 2016
was introduced to Parliament in May 2016 to ensure police have the powers necessary to keep
Queenslanders safe, and align Queensland with other states and territories. The objectives of the Bill
are to facilitate the merger of CrimTrac (Australia’s policing information sharing agency) into the
Australian Crime Commission, and ensure police have appropriate powers to direct and engage with
offenders in a given situation. As criminal activity changes and becomes more sophisticated, it is
imperative that police powers keep pace with these changes. Proposed amendments include (in part):

e permitting police to use a firearms and explosives detection dog without a warrant to carry out
explosive detection operations at licenced premises, in a public place or a tattoo parlour

e ensuring it is lawful under the Police Powers and Responsibilities Act 2000 for a police officer to
arrest a person without warrant at the instruction of another police officer, where there are lawful
grounds for the arrest.

The Bill was referred to the Legal Affairs and Community Safety Committee for consideration and the
committee is required to report to Parliament on the Bill by 2 August 2016.

Police helicopters

Police helicopters provide tactical aerial support to police operations, enhancing officer and community
safety and situational awareness to assist in the management of major events and critical incidents. The
QPS has two helicopters, one is based in South East Queensland in Brisbane and the other is based on
the Gold Coast. While routine operations are limited to the south east corner of the state, the aircraft are
capable of deployment statewide to respond to major incidents and natural disasters.

POLAIR 1 and 2 (the police helicopters) are available for tasking 24 hours a day, every day of the year.
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In 2015-16, services were provided in the form of:

e vehicle and foot pursuits

o daily High Visibility Patrols

e video and photographic recording of incidents

e searches for drug plantations, missing persons, vehicles of interest, objects, vessels, aircraft,
escapees and stolen motor vehicles

e air support for emergency situations

e public order support

e support at regional, district and divisional operations and events

o aerial surveillance and photography to assist in the suppression of criminal activity and to gather
intelligence and evidence to enhance a successful police prosecution.

During 2015-16, the two helicopters undertook:
e 1,879 flight hours
e 1,619 proactive tasks
e 2,352 reactive tasks.

The contract with Surf Life Saving Queensland has been extended to continue these services to 2022.

The QPS Helicopter Support Unit continues to work with interstate counterparts for benchmarking and
information sharing.

Safer railways

The QPS Railway Squad provides a visible dedicated uniform presence to target anti-social behavior on
commuter trains and at railway stations.

In January 2016, an additional eight police officer positions were assigned to the Railway Squad,
boosting its operational strength from 70 to 78 officers. The squad’s capability includes a dedicated
Intelligence Unit, Crime Prevention Coordinator, Police Liaison Officer and Firearms Explosive Detection
Dog who actively undertake enforcement operations throughout the Queensland Rail (QR) network on a
daily basis. Members are located across seven offices including Roma Street in Brisbane, Manly,
Beenleigh, Robina, Redbank, Ipswich and Petrie and provide an operational response within six police
districts across four police regions in the south east corner of the state.

There is also a Railway Squad Officer at the QR train operations centre to monitor closed-circuit
television (CCTV) cameras and act as a direct liaison between QR and QPS to effectively coordinate
police resources in response to incidents on the network. The Railway Squad Crime Prevention Officer
supports QR with personal and property safety initiatives for passengers and QR staff.

The network is also patrolled by regional police including general duties, tactical crime squads and
criminal investigation branch members, as well as specialist squads such as the Public Safety
Response Team (PSRT), Dog Squad and the Mounted Police. In July 2015, a Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU) was signed by the Commissioner and the Chief Executive Officer of QR. The MoU
provides the governance for this long standing partnership in managing crime and anti-social behaviour
on the rail network.

The Railway Squad continues to work with Crimestoppers Queensland to progress the Persons of
Interest Display project (PIDS) that commenced in 2012. This project displays unknown persons of
interest on the QR message information screens across the network.
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The squad’s effectiveness has contributed to a 16.5% decrease in the number of police recorded
assaults on the QR network in 2015-16 compared to 2014-15. Serious crime on the City Network
remains low with less than three police recorded assaults for every million passenger journeys. From
these incidents, serious injuries are not common and in many cases those involved are known to each
other.

In 2015, QR was rated the safest metropolitan railway network in Australia by independent research
agency Canstar Blue. It is the only Australian rail operator to receive five stars for safety, based on the
satisfaction of its customers.

Improving communication with the community

The public safety portfolio agencies, in particular QPS and QFES, have established award-winning and
best practice examples of social media use by government agencies during crisis situations such as
disaster management. The agencies have embraced the use of social media as a community
engagement strategy.

During 2015-16, the PSBA Media Division launched or managed a number of media and social media
campaigns on behalf of the QPS including:

¢ Queensland Road Safety Week in partnership with DTMR

e ‘That Could Be Me’— a female police recruitment campaign

e ‘Open Doors’ (Logan) — a domestic and family violence campaign.
The QPS Media Unit continues to provide statewide, 24 hours a day, seven days a week operational
support and advice. During the reporting period, the unit:

e received 63,638 calls (approximately 5,300 per month)

e created 10,323 media logs (approximately 860 per month)

o issued 3,477 media releases (approximately 290 per month)

e issued 631 written media responses (approximately 50 per month)

¢ held 306 press conferences (approximately 25 per month).
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Objective Two

Collaborating and consulting with all sectors of the community to deliver a
problem solving approach to crime reduction.

Creating Community Policing Boards

Community Policing Boards provide the opportunity for local organisations and individuals to work
together with police on strategies to address crime and safety issues in the community. The boards are
made up of local police and community representatives such as not-for-profit organisations, local
businesses, chamber of commerce and relevant state, local and Australian government agencies, as
well as other individuals who can help address specific issues.
The primary objectives of the boards are to:

e promote community safety and security

o find strategies to address societal issues associated with crime and community safety

¢ identify opportunities to, and where possible, integrate services at a local level

e develop partnerships to support government, industry and community working together

e promote evidence-based solutions (utilising statistical data and empirical research).
Community Policing Boards complement existing community crime prevention frameworks including

NHWQ; Crime Stoppers; and Multi-faith, Cultural and Indigenous Community/Police Consultative
Groups.

The boards will evolve over time, becoming a portal between the police district and the community, and
providing solutions and timely feedback.

A minimum of one Community Policing Board has been established in each of the 15 police districts and
as at 30 June 2016, each of the 15 police districts had conducted at least one Community Policing
Board meeting. A number of themes were addressed and included:

e tourist road safety

e cultural/immigration issues

e promoting safety through needs based crime prevention

¢ juvenile crime and anti-social behaviour

e domestic and family violence

improving youth employment and identifying engagement opportunities.

Each Community Policing Board will meet at least four times per year to address current, ongoing and
emerging issues. Community members are able to keep track of their district Community Policing Board
issues, discussions and outcomes, and provide comment via the Community Policing Board myPolice
blog.
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Elder abuse

Elder abuse can be defined as domestic violence, as the perpetrator is usually a family member and it
usually takes the form of financial abuse, threats, intimidation and sometimes assaults. Elder abuse can
sometimes be difficult to recognise as older people are often unable or unwilling to speak up.

In February 2016, the QPS appointed a Senior Project Officer to work with frontline officers, the Elder
Abuse Prevention Unit within DCCSDS and other key stakeholders to raise awareness of elder abuse
and to promote initiatives to address it.

On 13 June 2016, the QPS hosted the Elder Abuse Forum which coincided with World Elder Abuse
Awareness Day on 15 June 2016. The forum was attended by representatives from various government
agencies and external organisations.

Partners in drug and serious crime share expertise

The State Crime Command’s Drug and Serious Crime Group hosted two important events on the Gold
Coast in late 2015, bringing together practitioners in the field of drug investigation and illicit drug
manufacturing from across the country and internationally, to share information and ideas.

¢ National Chemical Diversion and Clandestine Laboratory Forensic Chemist Forum

The National Chemical Diversion and Clandestine Laboratory Forensic Chemist Forum was held
on 28 October 2015. The theme for 2015 was ‘Facing the Challenges — Building for the Future’,
highlighting the need for jurisdictions and agencies involved in drug related investigations to work
together to build more efficient strategies. The event was well-received as 73% of participants rated
the event as very good while 80% of participants indicated they were very likely to attend future
forums.

e 2015 QPS Drug Seminar

The forum was followed by the 2015 QPS Drug Seminar with the theme ‘Collaborative
Partnerships — Exploring the Possibilities’. The seminar had an exceptional line-up of national and
international delegates, as well as representatives from state and territory police who shared case
studies of drug investigations. The seminar was very successful with 72% of participants rating the
event as very good, while 95% of participants indicated they were very likely to attend any future
QPS drug seminars.

Crime Stoppers

The QPS Crime Stoppers Unit, in partnership with Crime Stoppers Queensland, continued to receive
information from the public on criminal activity. During 2015-16, Crime Stoppers Queensland collected
over 64,700 pieces of information from members of the public. As at 30 June 2016, this had resulted in:

e the apprehension of 2,438 people

¢ more than 6,900 charges being laid

e the confiscation of more than $6.3 million worth of drugs

e the seizure of approximately $533,000 in proceeds of crime
e the recovery of more than $164,000 worth of stolen property.

Neighbourhood Watch Queensland

NHWQ has traditionally focused on improving home security, reducing the fear of crime and reporting
suspicious activity to police. With the move to social media, NHWQ groups are also involved in broader
community safety issues along with community crime prevention activities. This includes local events
that aim to improve social cohesion within the community, engaging with broader demographics through
NHWQ blogs and promoting the program through a range of initiatives and activities across their
neighbourhoods.
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Each year, NHWQ holds a state conference to celebrate the achievements of the program, recognise
the outstanding efforts of regional and state award winners and discuss the future direction of the
program. It is also an opportunity for NHWQ members and police officers to network with each other to
share ideas and experiences. The 2015 conference was held in September 2015 and the theme of the
conference was Safe, inclusive and connected neighbourhoods and online communities. The
conference aimed to assist, empower and provide attendees with the tools and information necessary to
work together to protect and prevent crime from occurring in all areas of the community.

The NHWAQ blog is designed to keep communities up-to-date with crime prevention strategies,
community safety information and other relevant news. It also provides another channel for the QPS to
engage with the community. Community members are able to join the NHWQ conversation online.

Face to face social media training equips community volunteers with the skills to manage their local
NHWQ blogs. As at 30 June 2016, there were more than 340 trained blog administrators with access to
their local NHWQ blogs. There are 169 NHWQ blogs which have had over 649,000 page views (42%
via mobile or tablet), 25,412 published posts, 105 community authors, 241 QPS authors and over
10,370 community members that have joined as online members. The QPS has also partnered with
Volunteering Queensland to increase volunteer participation and retention to enhance NHWQ. This
includes facilitating access to a Certificate Il in Volunteering.

As at 30 June 2016, there are approximately 400 NHWQ groups with approximately 1,200 members
across Queensland. More groups are in the formation stage.

The University and TAFE based student e-Watches were rolled out in July 2014. Following the trial
of e-Watch in Capricornia District known as the Callide Rural e-Watch, there are now more than 10 rural
e-Watches across Queensland.

Information sharing bridges the gap in Anakie

Located in the Gemfields of central Queensland, on Capricornia District’s western edge, the patrol area
of Anakie is largely made up of mining claims which are generally 30 metre x 30 metre plots of land
pegged out within designated fossicking areas. Mining claims are registered by the Department of
Natural Resources and Mines (DNRM) with a claim number, GPS coordinates, lessee’s name and date
of birth; however, until now this information has not been shared with police.

Many of the lessees live on their claims, few of which are serviced by gazetted roads or even by
unnamed dirt tracks, let alone street numbers. Directions such as - turn off the road near the rusted out
drum, veer left after the upturned car, turn right at the thong tree, cross the creek and then look for the
mining claim with the blue bike - are commonplace in Anakie and have been an endless source of
frustration for police responding to calls for service.

In January 2016, QPS officers worked with DNRM to bridge the intelligence gap. DNRM has since
provided its data on mining claims for input into the Queensland Police Records and Information
Management Exchange (QPRIME). This information will allow police to link mining claims to people,
vehicles, occurrences, and intelligence and respond more quickly to issues of community safety.

Once this information has been incorporated into QPS systems, community members will be able to
provide their mining claim number to communication room operators when requesting assistance.
Officers responding to a call will enter the number on their mobile QLITE device (a suite of QPS
developed Applications available on an iPad mini) and be presented with a GPS map showing their
location in relation to the mining claim, as well as gazetted roads.

Although the project was initiated in Anakie, the data from DNRM had a far broader scope and will
benefit police in 36 divisions (police station areas of responsibility) throughout Queensland in
2016-17. It is an extra resource for police in all these areas, and will support officer safety and service
delivery.
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Objective Three

Using technology and innovative strategies to be more mobile, flexible and
capable of working across boundaries to deliver services the community
needs.

Government Wireless Network milestone reached as police radios switch over

The GWN is operating throughout South East Queensland with more than 17,500 frontline emergency
services personnel accessing the network as at 30 June 2016. Full implementation in South East
Queensland is expected by 31 December 2016.

The GWN rollout provides significant improvements in resource management and officer safety. It has
significantly improved radio voice clarity, coverage and in-building signal penetration across service
areas in South East Queensland, increasing the operational confidence of police and communications
centre operators. The integrated and secure digital radio communications network brings the QPS,
QFES and the Queensland Ambulance Service (QAS) onto the same radio communications platform so
when required they can communicate and share information instantly.

In addition, location and duress information is available from every GWN radio improving the personal
safety of police officers in dangerous environments. Previously, the QPS did not have these capabilities.
GWN radios now give QPS the ability to know the location of every vehicle and officer. This provides a
faster and more targeted response capability to direct the most suitable resource to any call for service
from the public. It also provides a safer environment for officers who may be in duress or calling for
urgent assistance. The location and duress capabilities have already been used multiple times and
provided a faster response to officers in distress including QAS officers who may be requesting QPS
assistance.

The GWN has also enabled interoperability of the radio network with the PCCs in Brisbane, Beenleigh,
Toowoomba, Ipswich and Maroochydore and the Police Operations Centre in Brisbane. The PCCs can
now immediately handle any voice radio calls to and from any police officer or patrol group in South
East Queensland. The system also enhances accountability by providing voice logging/recording
systems.

Rapid Action and Patrols

The RAP Policing Model trial continued in 2015-16. This hub policing strategy represents a
contemporary and innovative approach to tackling crime across Queensland. The first RAP was formed
in June 2014 on the Gold Coast and the Townsville RAP commenced operations in November 2014
undertaking proactive and targeted patrols. The Gold Coast and Townsville RAP models were designed
to provide a rapid response and highly agile crime-suppression service delivery model. This model is
focused on intelligence-led, high-visibility policing of problem places, cases and crime types. The initial
model was modified to address the needs of the Townsville community. The main focus of the Townsville
RAP continues to be the suppression of property crime in the Townsville metropolitan area.

The flexibility of the RAP model enables a policing response to be developed to address changing crime
and other issues in any location, promoting a borderless approach to deploy resources to the right place
at the right time. Ongoing engagement and consultation with relevant stakeholders at each trial location
ensures better integration of services to meet the needs of the community.

During the reporting period, the Gold Coast RAP achieved significant results with 5,597 persons
arrested on 12,218 charges; 6,762 traffic infringement notices issued; 26,373 random breath tests
conducted; and 455 search warrants executed.
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Policing on the northern Gold Coast received a boost on 25 June 2016 when 20 officers from the Gold
Coast RAP at Varsity Lakes transitioned to Coomera as part of a pilot project to enhance the policing
services already provided to the coast’s northern suburbs. Having two teams of RAP officers based out
of the Coomera police complex will allow more effective deployment of officers.

The Townsville RAP performs intelligence driven patrols in identified crime hotspots and actively targets
identified offenders to prevent and solve crime. The RAP officers conduct rigorous checks of offenders
to enforce court, probation and parole orders. During the reporting period the Townsville RAP also
achieved significant results with 769 persons charged on 1,916 charges; 20,779 street checks
generated; 435 traffic infringement notices issued; and 2,621 random breath tests conducted.

An independent evaluation of both the Gold Coast and Townsville RAP policing models is being
conducted by Griffith University, and is expected to be finalised in 2017.

National lllicit Firearms Strategy

The national Serious and Organised Crime Coordination Committee determined that a national
law-enforcement strategy should be developed and implemented to strengthen existing operational
coordination, take a leadership role in supporting, and where possible facilitating, government
recommendations and achieve a nationally consistent approach to address the increasing threat of illicit
firearms in Australia.

The resultant National lllicit Firearms Strategy aims to achieve a more efficient focus by directing
collective efforts and improving coordination nationally to address the increasing threat of illicit firearms.

A National lllicit Firearms Strategic Advisory Group (NIFSAG), chaired by the QPS and comprising
representatives with operational command over illicit firearms response units in each respective
signatory agency, provide direction, expertise and advice on the activities under the strategy.

In 2015-16, NIFSAG held two meetings and discussed the architecture and development of the national
firearms strategy resulting in the creation of an action plan, which will see the initiation of nationally
coordinated activities to address firearm related offences.

eTicketing pilot

The QPS is undertaking an eTicketing pilot within the Road Policing Command, where officers are
issuing Traffic Infringement Notices to traffic offenders via the police mobile QLITE devices. At the time
of issuing a Traffic Infringement Notice, both the QPS and the DTMR systems are updated and the
Traffic Infringement Notice is auto-posted to the offender via Australia Post.

Since its inception in September 2015 to 30 June 2016, approximately 80,000 Traffic Infringement
Notices were issued using this process, significantly reducing the administrative overheads within the
QPS and DTMR. The functionality of this pilot will be further extended during the second half of 2016 to
allow for the issue of Traffic Infringement Notices via email and Multimedia Messaging Service (MMS).

Local Computer Aided Dispatch and Mobile Computer Aided Dispatch

The QPS has a CAD solution called Vision CAD operating in seven PCCs. A new suite of applications is
being developed for operational police and managers that builds on the Vision CAD solution. These
applications will include a Local CAD or ‘LCAD’ solution configured for station personnel (including
Client Service Officers) and operational police, and a mobile CAD or ‘MCAD’ solution for operational
police.

The LCAD application (in pilot stage) will be installed on computers located at police facilities and
provides a range of tools and information to assist operational police and managers to streamline
communication flow between the station and the PCCs.

MCAD is in the final testing phases and is due to be released as a pilot in October 2016.
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Mobile Services Program

From the commencement of the Mobile Services Program in 2012, the QPS has moved from wireless

laptops and analogue radio as its mobile technology to using smart devices integrated with enterprise

systems to deliver the right data and functions to frontline police in any place at any time. The program
is a collaborative partnership between the QPS and PSBA.

The program gives frontline officers access to mobile QLITE devices with tools and applications they
can use in the field. In 2015-16, the program delivered 5,000 mobile QLITE devices to frontline police,
with the remaining 400 devices to be deployed following the completion of the Frontline Mobility
Evaluation. This significant investment is directly improving the QPS’ ability to better serve the
community by allowing frontline officers to quickly and accurately identify who they are dealing with and
what action might need to be taken, as well as reducing the burden of administrative duties requiring
officers to return to a station. The devices reduce reliance on police radio and administration times at
the station enabling more proactive policing in the community.

Mobile Police Facility vehicles for the regions

In 2015-16, three Mobile Police Facility (MPF) vans were provided to the QPS regions. First launched in
2008, MPFs have proven to be invaluable assets, acting as instant command posts at crime scenes and
disasters.

As part of a $2.4 million build program, the additional vehicles have proven to be well-received in
regional locations. Mount Isa, Darling Downs and South West Districts have taken delivery of their
vehicles, and at 30 June 2016, the finishing touches are being applied to vehicles destined for Cairns,
Sunshine Coast and Capricornia Districts. While Cairns already has a MPF, it will receive an all-wheel
drive version and Logan District will take possession of Cairns’ existing 2WD MPF.

Following consultation with existing MPF managers from across the state, upgrades have included a
wi-fi hotspot surrounding the vehicle to enable the use of QPS mobile devices, dual roof mounted air-
conditioners, wall mounted computer screens and docking stations. Additionally, four of the vehicles
have all-wheel drive capability, to facilitate use in outback locations.

With further deliveries expected in the first quarter of 2016-17, there will be a total of 12 MPFs deployed
throughout the state by 30 September 2016.

Mobile Response Capability

The specialist PSRT conducted a six month Mobile Response Capability Trial in the Brisbane Region
between July 2015 and January 2016. The trial involved rostering the PSRT at peak times and having
the team available to respond and assist police crews at jobs where there was a risk of violent
confrontation. During the trial, the PSRT attended 1,114 jobs.

The PSRT has the capability, specialist skills and additional use of force options available to them that
may prove to be advantageous in resolving incidents. The aim is to de-escalate situations, enhance
policing confidence, and reduce the risk of injury to police and the community ensuring that public safety
remains paramount. Mobile Response Capability crews assist general duties officers by providing a
general force multiplier at incidents therefore creating a safer work environment platform for domestic
disturbances, alcohol-fuelled violence, psycho-social issues, active armed offender, out of control
events, critical infrastructure protection, and other critical incident responses where police officers may
require assistance. Mobile Response Capability also has the ability to assist with containment and
cordon placements of high-risk situations until the arrival of the Special Emergency Response Team
(SERT) and assist with hostage reception.

A Mobile Response Capability review report was completed after the trial. The success of the trial
resulted in the Mobile Response Capability being adopted as a standard deployment model for the
PSRT. A number of recommendations arising from the review of the trial regarding equipment, training
and procedures will be addressed in 2016-17.
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Forensic service providers to share common case management systems

The Forensic Register is a laboratory information management system first developed in-house by the
Forensic Services Group in 2003 and continuously upgraded and improved since that time. This
software application manages all case information, tracks exhibits, automates digital workflows and
enables rapid reporting of forensic identification. In 2013, the National Institute of Forensic Science
found the QPS was the most efficient and effective forensic service provider in the country which they
largely attributed to the register.

In 2015-16, significant improvements were made to the Forensic Register to enable automatic interface
with laboratory instruments. In addition, the Forensic Services Group extended the Forensic Register to
Forensic and Scientific Services within Queensland Health, who undertake all DNA and drug analysis
for QPS. These agencies are now able to work seamlessly, sharing information to enhance justice
outcomes including increasing the speed of analysis and reporting. This enables crimes to be solved
more rapidly and supports community safety by reducing the opportunity for offenders to re-offend.

Queensland Suicide Prevention Action Plan 2015-17

During 2015-16, the QPS undertook a number of activities that contributed to the government’s
commitment to ‘reducing suicide and its impact on Queenslanders’, as outlined in the Queensland
Suicide Prevention Action Plan 2015-17. Key achievements for the reporting period include:

e progressing the development of an action plan to enable the QPS to improve the management of
its response to mental health issues within the QPS. The action plan will focus on prevention and
post-vention planning, including procedures for post-incident management. A complementary body
of work being undertaken by the QPS included Heads Up Management Mental Health Information
Sessions focused on providing managers in the QPS with information about mental health in the
workplace and the development of organisational awareness campaigns designed to reduce
stigma and encourage police to seek help

¢ providing frontline police officers and civilians in a community contact role with training on suicide
prevention, risk reduction and other mental health-related issues through First Response Officer
Training, First Year Constable training, Mental Health Training and Applied Suicide Intervention
Skills Training (ASIST). Continuous knowledge improvement of mental health-related issues is
critical to ensuring the most appropriate response is provided to a vulnerable person in times of
crisis. This training also provided the opportunity for the QPS to re-emphasise relevant policy and
procedures through practical and desktop training simulations/scenarios

e undertaking risk assessments on all persons being detained in a police watchhouse with the aim of
preventing people committing suicide or self-harming

e supporting, in partnership with QR (lead agency), a body of work to identify strategies that would
allow the early detection of high-risk individuals on the QR network to ensure escalating behaviours
and recidivist offenders are identified more effectively and appropriate action is taken.

Early action Queensland Mental Health Promotion, Prevention and Early Intervention Action Plan
2015-17

Enhancing awareness of how police and service providers should interact with people with mental
illness during a crisis situation is crucial to delivering appropriate support pathways to vulnerable people.
During the reporting period, the QPS worked to improve the management of calls for service, with
emphasis on prevention and post-vention planning and management to better manage mental health
issues within the Queensland community. Implementation of the action plan will enable the development
of mental health intervention strategies, leading to an improved response to mental health incidents and
situations involving vulnerable people.
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Objective Four

Focusing resources to identify and deliver effective and efficient services
that maximise public safety.

Frontline resources

Between 1 July 2015 and 30 June 2016, an additional 294 police officers were appointed (over
and above attrition). As at 30 June 2016, there were 11,877 police officers. The QPS has grown
by 1,182 officers (over and above attrition) from 1 July 2012 when a government commitment
commenced to provide 1,100 additional police officers over four years. This commitment was
reaffirmed in February 2015 and has now been delivered. The police recruiting plan now aims to
stabilise the number of police officers around 11,800, in line with government commitments and
current priorities.

Building and improving police facilities

PSBA has responsibility for delivering most new and ongoing capital initiatives to support the operational
capability of QPS. This includes new or upgraded police stations across the state, new and replacement
police vehicles, and a range of information and technology initiatives.

Significant capital initiatives progressed or delivered during 2015-16 include:

e completion of the replacement watchhouse and commencement of the replacement police station
at Kingaroy

e completion of the upgrade to the Nanango police station
e completion of the upgrade to the PCC at Police Headquarters in Brisbane
e completion of the upgrade to the Thursday Island police station and watchhouse
e commencement of the upgrade to the Forensic Service facility in Brisbane
e progressing additional police housing in Bamaga
e upgrading CCTV at police watchhouses at Sandgate, Townsville, Ipswich, Rockhampton, Wynnum
and Gladstone.
Improving service in police stations

The QPS is continually seeking ways to improve customer engagement and identity efficiencies and
benefits to busy police front counter environments. As a follow on to the Policelink Application
technology and public assistance kiosks, Policelink has developed and installed next generation touch
screen devices which can be accessed from outside the police station. This allows 24 hour access to
non-urgent policing services and information. Next generation touch screen devices are basic and
simple to use and as well as providing information to clients, the devices allow for online reporting and a
process for bail reporters to notify police that they have appeared when the station is unattended.

Two touch screens were installed and activated in West End and Albany Creek Police Stations during
the reporting period. An evaluation regarding the use of these devices is expected to be undertaken in
February 2017.
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Police vehicles

PSBA, on behalf of the QPS, commenced introduction of the Hyundai Sonata into the vehicle fleet in
June 2016 after a 12 month trial under varied operating conditions in both rural and metropolitan
locations.

The vehicle was rigorously tested and evaluated against Australian New Zealand Police Advisory
Agency specifications and the QPS Vehicle Selection Framework. The vehicle has been evaluated over
two major categories which are ‘ergonomics’ and ‘on road performance’ and the vehicle has been
deemed capable of accommodating all operational equipment as well as providing ample space for
additional equipment.

The Sonata will progressively replace the current marked general duties vehicles and those used for
unmarked operations. The QPS will also conduct an evaluation of a turbocharged Hyundai ‘POLICE
SPEC’ Sonata in late 2016.

In 2015-16, the PSBA maintained and supplied the QPS vehicle fleet including ‘marked’, ‘unmarked’,
‘covert’ and purpose built ‘Tactical Response’ vehicles and delivered 779 replacement vehicles.

In June 2016, the government announced $32 million for new and replacement vehicles in 2016-17,
which will provide for around 700 new and replacement vehicles.

Bomb response vehicle to boost explosive response capability

The QPS Explosive Ordnance Response Team strengthened its arsenal with the arrival of Australia’s
first state-of-the-art armoured bomb response vehicle in January 2016. The Explosive Ordnance
Disposal Lenco Bombcat incorporates the latest advances in technology, especially in the fields of
tactical robotics deployment, remote lighting and ballistic protection.

This vehicle allows Explosive Ordnance Response Team officers to conduct a wide range of incident
response procedures, including rapid robotic deployment from inside the vehicle, which provides the
highest possible level of blast and fragmentation protection for the bomb technician.

New police vessel

The QPS vessel Damian Leeding is the third and final acquisition of three new generation police
catamarans constructed to meet the changing needs of policing a vast, decentralised and largely
coastal state.

Water Police vessels are increasingly being used to serve as incident command posts, mobile police
stations, and long range search and rescue platforms. The QPS vessel Damian Leeding will replace the
vessel based at the Whitsundays.

This new vessel was named in honour of Detective Senior Constable Damian Leeding who was killed in
the line of duty in May 2011. Detective Senior Constable Leeding served with the QPS for over eight
years.

Police curb youth crime in Mount Isa

Operation North Respect was established after the Pioneer Police Beat was deliberately burnt down in
August 2015. As part of a whole-of-government Mount Isa Action Plan, the QPS established Operation
North Respect to target youth crime, support local police, enhance community safety and restore
community confidence. The operational phase, which ran from 3 September to 18 October 2015,
concluded with the following results:

e police charged 316 people with 405 offences

e police conducted over 3,000 street checks and 222 curfew checks which resulted in 21 curfew

breaches

e 70 traffic infringement notices were issued.

In addition, the operation targeted underage consumption of alcohol and alcohol-fuelled incidents with
118 liquor infringement notices issued and nearly 900 litres of alcohol tipped out by police.
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Referrals system strengthened and streamlined

Frontline officers have millions of interactions with the community every year, providing operational
services including protecting life and resolving conflict. Many people that police interact with are
experiencing stress, distress and a range of social issues. The QPS has been connecting vulnerable
and disadvantaged people with support service providers for more than ten years, first with the
Coordinated Response to Young People At Risk (CRYPAR) program and then SupportLink.

Stage 1 of a new referral process was launched in December 2015, enabling police to refer a person in
need to an appropriate support service for assistance at the scene via their mobile QLITE device or
back at the station.

In May 2016, Stage 2 of the Police Referrals implementation commenced with the integration of the
system with QPRIME, helping to complete the picture for police responding to call outs and streamlining
the process by removing the need for duplicate data entry.

The Police Referrals system has received very positive feedback from police users and service
providers. Highly sought after referral categories include domestic and family violence, personal
counselling, parenting, mental health, drug and alcohol misuse, and victim support.

Integration with QPRIME delivers a valuable strategic tool for local police managers by providing

capabilities that will enable the comparison of referrals with local crime trends and repeat calls for
service. This insight will allow for more effective tactical responses, potentially in conjunction with

community partners, to address local social issues and crime trends.

Future staged enhancements will include access to a Service Provider Directory so police can provide
service provider contact details to people who choose not to consent to a formal referral.

A network of District Police Referral Coordinators has also been established to assist with the
coordination of the new Police Referral services.
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Objective Five

Taking a lead role to prepare the community for managing major events
and disasters.

Commonwealth Games 2018

During the reporting period, the QPS continued to work with the Office of Commonwealth Games and
the Gold Coast 2018 Organising Committee to prepare for the 2018 Commonwealth Games. The QPS
will also have responsibility for the security, planning and management of the Queen’s Baton Relay,
scheduled to commence in March 2017.

The security operation in support of the Games will be conducted over 29 days. During the 12 days of
competition, it is estimated up to 3,000 officers and support staff will be involved in Games-related
functions to support the 6,500 plus athletes and team officials from 71 Commonwealth nations expected
to attend. The Games will mostly be held on the Gold Coast, with some events to be held in Brisbane,
Cairns and Townsville. The QPS has established the Commonwealth Games Group to manage the
planning and delivery of the QPS responsibilities for the Games.

A key focus of the Group during 2015-16 has been the development of the Counter-Terrorism Security
Co-ordinators program. This work has been informed by learnings from the Glasgow 2014
Commonwealth Games and the G20 Leaders’ Summit (held in 2014) and provides a consistent and
efficient methodology to assess security risks. The program has also been used to conduct security risk
assessments of Games venues and events and to inform the design of the Games security overlay.

Work has also commenced on the design of a Joint Emergency Services Coordination Centre on the
Gold Coast which will be used to command the Games security operation, ‘Operation Sentinel’, and will
provide a lasting legacy for police and emergency services for the management of major events and
incidents on the Gold Coast following the Commonwealth Games.

Authorisations made relating to a terrorist act or threat

In terms of the Police Service Administration Act 1990 section 5.17(15) Authorisation of non-State
police officers, no authorisations were made relating to a terrorist act or threat during2015-16.

Counter-terrorism, crisis management training

During 2015-16, simulated counter-terrorism scenarios continued across Queensland, testing
emergency response capabilities. In total, 32 major exercises were conducted with approximately
1,590 personnel participating across multiple agencies including Exercise Gorgon - the largest counter-
terrorism exercise ever conducted by the QPS. The exercise activities were focused on testing and
validating existing procedures, policies and plans guiding the response to rapidly evolving multiple
terrorist threats.

During the reporting period, the QPS also implemented the Security and Counter-Terrorism Network.
This network, unique in national law enforcement, was developed to strengthen QPS’ capacity and
capability statewide, delivering an agile approach to security in the contemporary risk environment.
Through the network, frontline police were provided awareness training and a platform for enhanced
community engagement, reporting, investigations and intelligence-sharing. The QPS also increased
intelligence and investigation resources to the Joint Counter-Terrorism Team and Security Operations
Unit.

51



2015-16 Annual Report
Queensland Police Service

On 13 June 2016, the Queensland Government announced a commitment to provide increased funding
of $16.2 million over four years (commencing in 2016-17) to enhance QPS’ response to terrorism. This
new funding will help police deal with the increasing workload from the current security threat through a
reallocation of officers to meet counter-terrorism demands, supported by contracted specialist resources
and additional equipment. The funding will further enhance the QPS’ ability to case manage and assess
persons of a security interest and develop valuable intelligence, working closely with partner agencies
and the community.

Queensland Strategy for Disaster Resilience

The Queensland Strategy for Disaster Resilience, released in June 2014 and due for renewal in 2017,
was developed with the objective of building resilience against all hazards, to ensure resilience activities
are aligned with government priorities and to make Queensland the most disaster resilient state in
Australia.

Queensland’s goals for disaster resilience as outlined in the strategy are:
¢ understand the risks and proactively prepare for disasters
¢ minimise disaster impacts through flexible and adaptive planning
e the economy is able to withstand disaster events
e reduction of risk to the built environment
e the natural environment is recognised in planning and decision making
e essential infrastructure and transport systems are disaster resilient
e governments take a proactive approach to disaster risk reduction
o greater disaster resilience of public infrastructure after disasters.

Key QPS achievements in support of the strategy during 2015-16 include:

e working collaboratively with QFES and the Queensland Reconstruction Authority on a proof of
concept to produce a State Natural Hazards Risk Register. The new risk management process will
increase operational relevance and the explicit analysis of vulnerability will be included. This work
will continue in 2016-17

e coordinating the assessments of District and Local Disaster Management Plans in collaboration
with the Office of the IGEM. The results of these assessments provided an improvement strategy
for these groups. QPS also worked with the Office of the IGEM to review the assessment process
and provided recommendations for improvement for the 2016-17 assessments

¢ developing a revised District Disaster Management Plan template which is more concise and
provides for an operational and actionable plan. The new template aligns with the Office of the
IGEM’s Emergency Management Assurance Framework and assists local government groups by
clearly outlining trigger points for district support to these local areas.

Disability Service Plan 2014-2016

In accordance with the Disability Services Act 2006, each Queensland Government agency is required
to develop a disability service plan that includes actions to deliver the Queensland Disability Plan
2014-19: Enabling choices and opportunities (the Queensland disability plan). The Queensland disability
plan details priority areas which underpin the government’s vision of a community that is inclusive of all
citizens and where people with a disability are enabled to lead valued and fulfilling lives.

The Public Safety Portfolio Disability Services Plan 2014-2016 (the portfolio plan), released in
September 2014, includes actions for the development and improvement of services that are responsive
to the needs of clients and members with a disability and their families and carers. The portfolio plan
seeks to educate, inform and engage with Queenslanders with a disability to reduce the rate and impact
of public safety incidents including crimes, road crashes and fires. During the reporting period, the public
safety portfolio agencies continued to work with Queenslanders with a disability to build resilient
communities and ensure community preparedness for disaster events.
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Objective Six

Implementing an environment of continuous improvement based on
learning, development and empowered leadership.

QPS takes a lead role in the development of international standards

Forensic science plays a key part in all criminal investigations including those that cross international
borders. The quality of forensic science varies considerably around the world, particularly in some less
developed nations.

QPS, in partnership with the National Institute of Forensic Science and Standards Australia, is leading
the development of international standards designed to ensure the integrity of forensic analysis. This
partnership has resulted in the publication of the first international forensic standard (ISO 18385:2016)
designed to minimise the potential contamination of DNA evidence. A second standard that prescribes
how evidence is collected, packaged and stored is at draft stage. When complete, the series of ISO
(International Organization for Standardization) standards will provide confidence in the reliability of
results, regardless of where testing is performed. The standards will enable jurisdictions to work
together seamlessly to combat cross border crime and facilitate information sharing including
identification databases.

Future of Policing Symposium

The QPS and Griffith University’s Criminology Institute co-hosted the Future of Policing Symposium in
September 2015 at the Brisbane Convention and Exhibition Centre. The 2015 symposium followed the
success of the inaugural symposium held in 2014. The symposium brought together Queensland-based
and international academics including state, national and international policing practitioners. The
symposium was designed to identify and discuss challenges and issues around police health with key
themes including physical health and safety, mental health and wellbeing, and healthy police agencies.
The QPS was well represented by members of the senior executive as well as executive
representatives of the Queensland Police Commissioned Officers’ Union and Queensland Police Union
of Employees.

Presenters included a number of eminent academics, doctoral candidates, international law
enforcement officers as well as the QPS Commissioner and Assistant Commissioner, Operational
Capability Command.

The symposia, by bringing together local, national and international academics and police practitioners,
provides a confidential environment in which researchers and police leaders can interact and discuss
key problems, with the goal of forging stronger strategic and operational links between police agencies
and researchers. This event is an example of the longstanding Giriffith criminology/QPS partnership,
which spans multiple areas of research, education and engagement.

Establishment of Visiting Police Fellow Positions

Evidence Based Policing (EBP) is an important part of contemporary policing and the QPS is a strong
advocate and practitioner of EBP. The QPS has a long history of partnering with researchers at
universities in EBP research programs. A number of such programs of research have been with
researchers from Griffith University and the University of Queensland.

The QPS is also a leading law enforcement agency in the Australia & New Zealand Society of Evidence
Based Policing which was formed in 2013 and is a police practitioner-led society. The chair is a member
of the QPS senior executive. In 2016, the Commissioner approved the establishment of two full-time
Visiting Police Fellow positions for the Griffith University’s Criminology Institute and the School of Social
Science, University of Queensland, as a way to further embed EBP into the QPS practice and culture.
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Objective Seven

Delivering services with fairness and integrity.

Violent Confrontations Review and Taskforce Bletchley

On 25 November 2014, the Commissioner initiated the Violent Confrontations Review to review QPS’
policy, procedures and training involving violent confrontations, following several police shooting
incidents which occurred in relatively quick succession during 2014.

In August 2015, media reports highlighted allegations of excessive use of force by police on the Gold
Coast. The then Minister for Police, Fire and Emergency Services and Minister for Corrective Services
announced a review into complaints involving use of force allegations on the Gold Coast and statewide,
with that work to be undertaken by Taskforce Bletchley.

The Violent Confrontations Review and Taskforce Bletchley reports made a combined total of

55 recommendations addressing policy development, training, inter-agency collaboration, information
sharing, enhanced governance surrounding the response to use of force incidents, and complaint
handling reform. The recommendations are being delivered under the Professional Response
Engagement Project.

The Use of Force Review Working Party, comprising members of the QPS senior executive and the
Crime and Corruption Commission, has been formed to strategically and jointly manage the
implementation of the recommendations.

Implementation of the recommendations is underway with 17 of the 55 recommendations delivered in
2015-16 including enhanced inter-operability between police and mental health services, the delivery of
policy and training in the area of the response to active armed offenders, use of firearms, and
development of policy surrounding resolution of an incident which underpins all use of force actions.
Implementation of the remaining recommendations will continue in 2016-17.

Work is also underway addressing further policy development and training around responding to
potentially violent confrontations, including responses to persons in crisis who are acutely affected by
psycho-social issues including drug and alcohol use, domestic and family violence, and mental health
issues.

Process and practice enhancements will focus on leadership and supervision, information sharing,
mental health responses, communication including de-escalation strategies, decision making around
use of force, and governance surrounding reporting and oversight of use of force incidents.

Body-worn cameras for police

During the reporting period, QPS continued implementing the government’s commitment to provide
improved safety equipment for police including body-worn cameras, with $6.03 million in funding
provided over three years (2015-16 to 2017-18). The preferred option of an open public tender for a
commercial off-the-shelf solution for body-worn cameras was approved by the government in
September 2015 and the QPS Program Management Board approved contractual arrangements be
entered into with the preferred body-worn camera digital storage management supplier.

Priority rollout of 300 body-worn cameras for police on the Gold Coast and training occurred in
October 2015. The remaining rollout and training will commence in July 2016 with the launch sites of
Fortitude Valley Station and Rockhampton Station expected to be operational by 31 July 2016.
Remaining sites are expected to be operational by November 2016.
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First female police motorcyclists

In September 2015, the first two Queensland female officers qualified to become police motorcycle
officers after three weeks of rigorous training. Both officers were experienced motorcycle riders before
their training. The training prepares motorcycle officers for adverse conditions, for country riding and city
riding, and the unique hazards these situations can present. Being a police motorcyclist requires a level
of self-reliance and attentiveness while riding, above the normal requirements of traditional police patrol
work. The course has a focus on riders being able to assess a dynamic environment instantly and apply
a series of linked skills seamlessly.
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Governance

Executive management
Board of Management profiles

lan Stewart APM
Commissioner

The Commissioner is responsible for the efficient and proper administration,
management and functioning of the QPS in accordance with law.

The Commissioner provides the business direction and represents the
organisation atlocal, community, state, national and international forums as well
as ceremonial functions.

Brett Pointing APM
Deputy Commissioner, Strategy, Policy and Performance

The Deputy Commissioner Strategy, Policy and Performance has direct
responsibility for the Legal Division, Crime and Corruption Commission (Police
Group), Operational Capability Command and Ethical Standards Command
(ESC).

The Deputy Commissioner is responsible for continuous improvement and
review, organisational efficiencies and better service provision to the
Queensland community. This is achieved by adopting a coordinated approach to
cope with the increasing demands for service and the complexity of modern
policing, embracing innovation and reducing management process in favour of
service delivery to improve officer morale, officer safety and delivery of services
to the community.

The Deputy Commissioner is a member of the Public Safety Portfolio and QPS
Audit and Risk Committees, and the National Police Memorial Coordination
Committee. He is also the QPS representative on the Domestic and Family
Violence Implementation Council responsible for monitoring the implementation
of recommendations from the NOT NOW, NOT EVER report into domestic and
family violence.

Stephan Gollschewski APM
Deputy Commissioner, Specialist Operations

The Deputy Commissioner, Specialist Operations is responsible for the provision
of specialist police services including Community Contact Command,
Intelligence, Counter-Terrorism and Major Events Command, Operations
Support Command, Road Policing Command, State Crime Command and the
Commonwealth Games Command.

Nationally, the Deputy Commissioner is the QPS representative on the Australia-
New Zealand Counter-Terrorism Committee (ANZCTC) and Chair of the Public
Information Sub-Committee of ANZCTC.

The Deputy Commissioner is also the State Disaster Coordinator for
Queensland, the Inclusion and Diversity champion for the QPS and the chair of
the QPS Mobile Services Program.
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Bob Gee APM
Deputy Commissioner, Regional Operations (Acting)

The Deputy Commissioner, Regional Operations is responsible for providing the
strategic direction, leadership, overview and review of the delivery of policing
services to the community across the five regions statewide.

The Deputy Commissioner provides leadership to Regional Assistant
Commissioners to facilitate effective management of their areas of responsibility
including promotion and maintenance of an ethical and professional
organisational climate.

Margaret Allison
External member

Margaret has over 35 years’ experience in the Queensland and New South
Wales public sector, holding roles as the Chief Executive of the Public Service
Commission (Queensland) and Director- General of DCCSDS (Queensland).

In 25 years of holding a range of senior executive positions, her roles included
service delivery reform, social policy and planning, program development,
legislative reform, organisational review, resource management and planning,
strategic management and oversight of major change activities with a whole-of-
government and broader community focus.

Margaret has a great interest in, and commitment to, work in the
non-government sector. Margaret has worked as a volunteer, board member and
consultant to a number of non-government organisations. In recent years, she
has engaged in voluntary work in a small non-government organisation in
Cambodia and returns there regularly.

In 1999, Margaret was selected as the winner of the Telstra Business Woman of
the Year, Queensland, in the Corporate and Government Category. She is the
past President of the Institute of Public Administration Australia (IPAA)
Queensland. Margaret was appointed as a Fellow of IPAA in 2008.

Margaret now works as a consultant in her own business.
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Board and committees

The QPS Board of Management is the peak governance forum for the QPS and is supported by the
Demand and Resource Committee and the Audit and Risk Committee.

The QPS also maintained a Program Management Board (formerly Renewal Program Board) during
2015-16 as a temporary governance structure with decision-making authority to support the Board of
Management by providing governance oversight of QPS projects and programs.

The QPS Executive Leadership Team (ELT) is not a decision-making body, but plays an integral part in
the governance process by collaboratively assisting the Commissioner and Board of Management in
leading and driving standards and Service direction, operationalising strategy, acting as a consultative
forum to identify opportunities for improving efficiencies and quality of service delivery, and identifying
emerging risk internal and external to the QPS.

The QPS governance committee structure and the line of reporting with other bodies is as follows:

Executive

Commissioner
Leadership Team

Board of
Management

Demand and
Resource
Committee

Program Audit and Risk
Management Board Committee

There is also a public safety portfolio decision-making body — the Public Safety Portfolio Audit and Risk
Committee. This committee provides independent assurance on risk, control and compliance
frameworks and ensures the portfolio’s operations are carried out efficiently, effectively and
economically. For further information about the Public Safety Portfolio Audit and Risk Committee refer
pages 8-9.

The former Public Safety Portfolio Innovation Committee and Public Safety Executive Coordinating
Committee will no longer convene as the objectives of these committees will be achieved by the PSBA
Interim Board of Management (inaugural meeting held 16 May 2016). The Commissioner, QPS (Chair)
and Commissioner, QFES are members of the Board along with an external member, Mr Geoff Waite,
Assistant Under Treasurer, Queensland Treasury.
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Board of Management

The Board of Management (the Board) supports the Commissioner in discharging his responsibilities
as accountable officer under the Police Service Administration Act 1990, the Financial Accountability
Act 2009 and other legislation. The Board sets the strategic direction and provides oversight and
leadership to the QPS.

The Board provides support and expert advice to the Commissioner in making key decisions with a
strategic or Service-wide impact including organisational performance across frontline service delivery,
human resource management, financial performance, risk management and organisational reform.

The Board meets quarterly or as determined by the Chair. In 2015-16, the Board met on four
occasions and considered 12 urgent matters out-of-session.

The independent external member received $2,420 in remuneration. There were no other on-costs.

Board members
e lan Stewart APM, Commissioner (Chair)
e Brett Pointing APM, Deputy Commissioner, Strategy, Policy and Performance
e  Stephan Gollschewski APM, Deputy Commissioner, Specialist Operations
e Bob Gee APM, Deputy Commissioner (Acting), Regional Operations

e Margaret Allison (external member)

Achievements
In 2015-16 the Board approved a number of significant matters including:

o the Queensland Police Service Strategic Plan 2016-2020
o the Queensland Police Service Operational Plan 2016-17
o the 2016-17 Budget and five year Budget Plan

o the Internal Audit Charter 2016-2017 and Internal Audit Plan 2016-2017, incorporating the Internal
Audit Strategic Plan 2016-2019

o the Integrity and Performance Group Inspections Plan 2016-17

o the Queensland Police Service Risk Appetite Statement 2016

¢ the Business Continuity Planning Guide

¢ ajoint QPS and PSBA Frontline and Digital Services Governance Framework

¢ implementation of the recommendations from the external review of QPS Governance
e the appointment of a second external Board member for 2016-17

e the appointment of the Head of Internal Audit.
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Demand and Resource Committee

The Demand and Resource Committee supports the Board in managing organisational resource
requirements to meet demand. The committee supports the Board by considering matters and making
recommendations related to the resourcing of the Service’s strategic priorities. It oversees and
monitors the development and implementation of policies, plans and practices relating to the
management of QPS finances, people, assets and information and communications technology (ICT).

The committee meets monthly or as determined by the Chair. During 2015-16, the committee met on
12 occasions and considered five urgent matters out-of-session.

Committee members
e Brett Pointing APM, Deputy Commissioner, Strategy, Policy and Performance
e  Stephan Gollschewski APM, Deputy Commissioner, Specialist Operations (Chair)
e Bob Gee APM, Deputy Commissioner (Acting), Regional Operations

Achievements

In 2015-16, the committee supported a number of significant resolutions including:

¢ the business case and funding proposal for an integrated e-Rostering and Time and Attendance
system

¢ funding the upgrade of portable radios for compatibility with the GWN and the supply of the
Inbound Enquiry Display

e the creation of two temporary Senior Sergeant positions until 30 June 2017 to support the Mobile
Services Program

¢ the creation of a Senior Network Specialist within the Intelligence, Counter-Terrorism and Major
Events Command

o the allocation of a Senior Sergeant (Strategy and Performance) to Road Policing Command
¢ the allocation of a Senior Sergeant (Tactician) to Mt Isa District
o the reclassification of AO2 Police Information Centre positions

o the creation of two Legal Officer (PO3) positions in the Traffic Camera Office, Road Policing
Command

o the creation of 11 permanent positions within the Legal Division

¢ funding of new premises for the Oxley Police Beat

e the construction of a new Police residence at Halifax, Townsville

¢ funding for the leasing of accommodation on Thursday Island for staff.
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Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee was established to assist the Commissioner to fulfil management
responsibilities imposed on the Commissioner under the Police Service Administration Act 1990, the
Financial Accountability Act 2009, Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009 and other
legislation.

The committee supports the Board by reviewing and monitoring financial management and reporting
processes, risk management systems and controls as well as internal control and legal compliance.
The committee oversees the process to identify and manage significant business risks and emerging
compliance matters. It also oversees the implementation of appropriate and adequate control,
monitoring and reporting mechanisms to assess the performance of internal and external auditors.

The committee meets quarterly or as determined by the Chair. During 2015-16, the committee met on
four occasions.

The two independent external members collectively received $5,456 in remuneration. There were no
other on-costs.

Committee Members
e Jenny Walker, Consultant (Chair) (external member)
¢ David Evans, Consultant (external member)

e Brett Pointing, Deputy Commissioner, Strategy, Policy and Performance

Achievements
In 2015-16 the committee provided strategic advice and support to the Board by considering matters
including:

¢ the QPS Financial Statements 2014-15

e the Queensland Police Service Risk Appetite Statement 2016

o the Business Continuity Planning Guide

o the Internal Audit Charter 2016-2017 and Internal Audit Plan 2016-2017, incorporating the Internal
Audit Strategic Plan 2016-2019

o the Integrity and Performance Group Inspections Plan 2016-17

e Inspections Team, Integrity and Performance Group Internal Audit Function Charter 2016-2017

¢ the recommended appointment of the Head of Internal Audit.
The committee, under its terms of reference which reflects the committee’s charter and has due regard
to Queensland Treasury’s Audit Committee Guidelines: Improving Accountability and Performance,

considered the strategic risks and challenges impacting the QPS and this is reflected in the Strategic
and Operational Plans and in submissions to the Board.

The committee also considered the progress of audits undertaken by the QAO and Internal Audit,
PSBA and any recommendations provided.
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Program Management Board

The Program Management Board (formerly Renewal Program Board) was established in March 2014
as a temporary addition to the QPS Governance Framework to provide leadership and oversee the
successful and timely implementation of projects within the QPS Program. The QPS Program
encompasses the significant projects and bodies of work under four main subprograms: Processes
and Systems, Frontline Services, Regulatory, and People and Culture.

The Program Management Board meets monthly unless otherwise determined by the Chair.
Extraordinary meetings may be called at the discretion of the Chair. During 2015-16, the Program
Management Board met on 12 occasions and considered two urgent matters out-of-session.

Program Management Board Members
e Brett Pointing APM, Deputy Commissioner, Strategy, Policy and Performance (Chair)
e  Stephan Gollschewski APM, Deputy Commissioner, Specialist Operations

e Bob Gee APM, Deputy Commissioner (Acting), Regional Operations

Achievements
In 2015-16 the Program Management Board approved a number of significant matters including:

¢ the commencement of the Video Line Up Project

o the Use of Force online learning product

¢ the commencement of the Professional Response Engagement Project

o the commencement of the Offender Video Linking Project

¢ Advance 2 — Performance Module collaboration with the e-Learning project
e the Organised Crime Legislation Review Project

e contractual arrangements be entered into with the preferred body-worn camera digital storage
management supplier

e Active Armed Offender training
e an organisational restructure and workforce model changes to the Traffic Camera Office.

Executive Leadership Team

The ELT plays an integral part in the governance process by leading and driving standards and
Service direction, operationalising strategy, acting as a consultative forum to identify opportunities for
improving efficiencies and quality of service delivery, and identifying emerging risks internal and
external to the QPS.

The ELT holds a video conference each week and meets in person on a monthly basis or as
determined by the Chair. During 2015-16, the ELT met on nine occasions including meetings at
Bundaberg (Central Region) and South and North Brisbane Districts (Brisbane Region). Meeting
themes included Business Leadership, Future of Policing, EBP, Domestic and Family Violence, and
Sexual Harassment and Predatory Behaviour.
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ELT Members

lan Stewart APM, Commissioner (Chair)

Brett Pointing APM, Deputy Commissioner, Strategy, Policy and Performance
Stephan Gollschewski APM, Deputy Commissioner, Specialist Operations

Bob Gee APM, Deputy Commissioner (Acting), Regional Operations

Paul Alsbury, Executive Director, Legal Division, Strategy, Policy and Performance
Alistair Dawson, Assistant Commissioner, Central Region

Tracy Linford, Assistant Commissioner, Intelligence, Counter-Terrorism and Major Events
Command

Mike Condon, Assistant Commissioner, Operations Support Command
Peter Martin, Assistant Commissioner, Operational Capability Command
Maurice Carless, Assistant Commissioner, State Crime Command
Shane Chelepy, Assistant Commissioner (Acting), Brisbane Region
Clem O’Regan, Assistant Commissioner, ESC

Paul Stewart, Assistant Commissioner, Community Contact Command
Tony Wright, Assistant Commissioner, Southern Region

Brian Codd, Assistant Commissioner, South Eastern Region

Mike Keating, Assistant Commissioner, Road Policing Command

Paul Taylor, Assistant Commissioner, Northern Region

Peter Crawford, Assistant Commissioner, Commonwealth Games Group
Debbie Platz, Chief Superintendent, Training and Development — Police

Cameron Harsley, Chief Superintendent, Crime and Corruption Commission — Police Group

Achievements

In 2015-16 the ELT discussed significant matters including:

the QPS strategy regarding frontline services, organisational culture and QPS people, processes
and systems

identifying challenges and risks such as improving responses to calls for service, counter-
terrorism, technology, place and case management, public safety including alcohol-fuelled
violence and organised crime, and maintaining partnerships with the community, private sector,
and non-government and government organisations

identifying QPS priorities for 2016-17 including regional and command priorities.
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Government Bodies

There are three Government Bodies that were relevant to the QPS during 2015-16:
e Commissioner for Police Service Reviews

e Controlled Operations Committee

e Public Interest Monitor.

For further information about the Government Bodies refer to pages 113-116 within the appendices.

Ethics and code of conduct

The delivery of professional policing services must be underpinned by ethical decisions and actions.
These ethical decisions and actions provide the QPS with its most valuable asset, namely its reputation
and the confidence and trust that such a reputation inspires in the community. The QPS has a broad
range of programs and initiatives that support professional and ethical practice including an internal
complaints system, policies on gifts and benefits, as well as declarable associations, and discipline and
ethical awareness training. The QPS Values, Standard of Practice and Procedural Guidelines for
Professional Conduct supplement the Queensland Government values and the Code of Conduct for the
Queensland Public Service, and outline appropriate behaviour for all QPS staff.

Members of the QPS continue to operate under the organisation’s Integrity Framework. This framework
approach allows specific issues to be brought into focus more clearly by highlighting the principles that
drive integrity and ethics management in the Service. The framework seeks to promote an actionable
process of thinking about integrity and then integrating that thinking into all planning, implementation,
monitoring and evaluation processes across the QPS.

During 2015-16, the ESC continued to promote, monitor and enforce ethical behaviour, discipline and
professional practice across the QPS through education, deterrence and systems improvements. The
ESC is the principal work unit for communication between QPS and oversight bodies such as the Crime
and Corruption Commission.

Reported complaints are continually monitored and reviewed by the QPS to identify primary contributing
factors and/or trends which may arise from complaint types and/or the complaint data more generally.
All complaints are considered, actioned and investigated as required. In 2015-16, the QPS received
1,187 complaints by members of the public against officers on or off duty. When applying relevant
context to this figure, the QPS undertakes an inordinate number of interactions with people in the
community each day and moreover, each year. Comparatively, very few of those interactions result in
complaints relating to the conduct of police.

As part of the monitoring role ESC plays with regard to enforcing ethical behaviour, it also undertakes a
range of inspections and evaluations of operational establishments, including their functions and duties.
During 2015-16, the ESC performed four group audits including re-inspections and inspections. In total,
20 stations and establishments were inspected. From January 2016, ESC ceased conducting routine
station inspections and commenced a quality assurance process of overviewing regionally managed
inspection programs. The 2015-2016 Quality Assurance Program has overviewed the quality of

53 station and establishment audits conducted by Regions and Commands. The program has provided
feedback at district and divisional level to assist local compliance inspection practices and promote
continuous improvement.
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Alcohol and drug testing continues to be part of QPS’ commitment to enhance police wellbeing, safety
and integrity within the workplace. During 2015-16, 1,347 ‘relevant persons’ underwent a random
alcohol breath testand 312 recruits were subject to random alcohol and drug testing with nil positive
results (‘relevant persons’ refers to part 5A.3 of the Police Service Administration Act 1990 and includes
an officer or a staff member whose duties include performing functions in a critical area, watchhouse
officers, police radio and electronics technicians, recruits, etc.).

During the reporting period, following critical incidents, 26 alcohol breath tests and 26 urine drug tests
were conducted. While two positive drug results were detected, these were found to be because of
medical treatment or lawful use of over the counter medication.
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Risk management and accountability

Risk management

The QPS adopts the Enterprise Risk Management approach, where risk management is a management
process that is, ideally, fully integrated into the management of the organisation. The Commissioner and
Senior Executive are committed to the management of risk. The QPS has a risk management policy and
risk management guidelines which provide a framework and process for managing risk in the QPS.

International Standard ISO 31000:2009 Risk management — Principles and guidelines has been applied
to the QPS risk management framework and elements of the policy are drawn from the standard. The
standard has shifted the emphasis from something happening to the effect on objectives. Objectives will
have different characteristics (e.g. operational, financial, health and safety, and environmental goals)
and apply at all levels (e.g. corporate, statewide, project and local).

The QPS produces a yearly Risk Appetite Statement which outlines the nature and level of risks faced
by the QPS and also embeds risk management into all planning processes and activities.

Risk management in the QPS is managed by the QPS Audit and Risk Committee (for further information
regarding the committee refer to page 61). The ESC Risk Management Coordinator, promotes best
practice, identifies whole-of-state risk issues, scans for emerging risk and provides advice and service.

External scrutiny

This section provides information about external agencies and processes which examined the
operations of QPS or other agencies with findings/issues requiring consideration by, or impacting on,
QPS:

Review of the PSBA

The Public Service Commission undertook an independent review of the PSBA from May to
November 2015. The review considered the scope, function and structure of the PSBA to ensure it
effectively supports public safety service delivery to the community.

The review involved extensive engagement with frontline staff, including firefighters and police
officers, other employees within the portfolio, and relevant external stakeholders.

The final report was tabled in Parliament on 17 February 2016 and is available online at
www.qld.gov.au/about/how-government-works/government-structure/public-service-
commission/what-we-do/review-psba.html.

The final report identified eight recommendations, including revising the scope of the PSBA, and
implementing a new operating model and governance structure. The Queensland Government
accepted the recommendations of the review with the exception of recommendation 6 (to transfer
the Police Air Wing to QPS). Further work will be progressed on this recommendation.

The PSBA Interim Board of Management (BoM) was established in 2016 to progress the review
recommendations and provide peak governance and coordination until a mature governance
framework and organisational structure is in place.

The Interim BoM consists of the Commissioner, QPS, lan Stewart (Chair), the Commissioner,
QFES, Katarina Carroll and an appointed external member, Geoff Waite, Assistant Under
Treasurer, Queensland Treasury. The Interim BoM convened its first meeting on 16 May 2016 and
met again on 14 June 2016.

In line with the review recommendations, a number of functions transitioned to the QPS and QFES
by 1 July 2016, and all substantive police officer positions returned to the QPS from the PSBA.
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In addition, in order to implement key review recommendations, a number of legislative
amendments are required and on 24 May 2016, the Minister for Police, Fire and Emergency
Services and Minister for Corrective Services, introduced the Public Safety Business Agency and
Other Legislation Amendment Bill 2016 (the Bill) into Parliament.

The Bill proposes to implement various recommendations of the review by amending legislation to:

- amend the functions of the PSBA

- establish the PSBA Board of Management

- change the role of the PSBA Chief Executive Officer to PSBA Chief Operating Officer

- finalise the machinery-of-government changes that will allow Blue Card Services to transition to
the Department of Justice and Attorney-General, and allow for the comprehensive integration of
State Government Security into the QPS.

The Bill was referred to the Legal Affairs and Community Safety Committee for consideration. The
committee is required to report back to Parliament on the Bill by 2 August 2016.

Crime and Corruption Commission

The Crime and Corruption Commission is a statutory body established to combat and reduce the
incidence of major crime and corruption in the public sector in Queensland. Its functions and
powers are set out in the Crime and Corruption Act 2001. The Commission investigates both crime
and corruption, has oversight of both the police and the public sector, and protects withesses.

- Review of the operation of the Child Protection (Offender Prohibition Order) Act 2008

The CPOPOA is one of several pieces of legislation introduced to regulate the conduct of those
who have offended against children after their release from government detention. The
CPOPOA enables police to take action, through an offender prohibition order, to prevent
previous offenders from engaging in behaviour that could be seen as a precursor to a new
offence.

The Commission reviewed how the CPOPOA had been used by the police and the courts in its
first five years of operation, identified factors that were inhibiting its use, and recommended
legislative and policy changes to address these factors. The review report was tabled in
Parliament in December 2014.

Key findings relating to the QPS identified that the way the CPOPOA works in conjunction with
the CPORA may complicate the system for managing relevant offenders. To address this issue,
the Commission recommended combining the two Acts.

The Commission’s review also identified a number of barriers for police when applying for an
offender prohibition order, including limited resources and systems for identifying concerning
conduct and insufficient training in how to use the powers provided in the CPOPOA. Following
the review, the Commission made a number of recommendations aimed at improving training,
resources and powers available to police to monitor offenders and secure offender prohibition
orders, where deemed appropriate.

In January 2016, the Queensland Government tabled in Parliament its response to the review
supporting the recommendations made by the Commission. The Commission made

17 recommendations for change, including nine proposals for legislative amendments to the
CPOPOA and the CPORA. The legislative amendments are being progressed. For further
information, refer to page 31.

The review report and government response are available online at
www.parliament.qld.gov.au/work-of-assembly/tabled-papers/online-tabled-papers.
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- Accessing electronically stored evidence of child exploitation material offences

In October 2015, the Commission presented a research paper examining the limitations of
section 154 of the Police Powers and Responsibilities Act 2000 (the Act) in relation to the
investigation of offences involving child exploitation material and identified opportunities for
reform.

The progression of recommendations regarding amendments to section 154 of the Act arising
from the Organised Crime Commission of Inquiry are progressing.

The research paper is available online at www.ccc.qld.gov.au/research-and-publications.

- Confidential information

In May 2016, the Commission released a paper on confidential information examining
unauthorised access, disclosure and the risks of corruption in the Queensland public sector.
The paper contains examples of inappropriate access or use of confidential information, risks of
improperly using confidential information, case studies and findings of the Commission’s audit
into how agencies handle misuse of confidential information.

The QPS is considering the information and findings contained in the paper. The paper
highlighted the critical importance for units of public administration, including the QPS, to have
strong policy and procedural processes in place to deal with the risks associated with
inappropriate access to, and control of information.

The paper is available online at www.ccc.qgld.gov.au/research-and-publications.

Special Taskforce on Domestic and Family Violence in Queensland

The Special Taskforce on Domestic and Family Violence in Queensland, chaired by the
Honourable Quentin Bryce AD CVO, was established in September 2014. The Taskforce examined
Queensland’s domestic and family violence support systems and made recommendations on how
the system could be improved and how future incidents of domestic violence could be prevented.

In February 2015, the Premier announced the release of the Taskforce’s report and
recommendations into domestic and family violence in Queensland, NOT NOW, NOT EVER
Putting an End to Domestic and Family Violence in Queensland.

The Taskforce made 140 recommendations to inform a Queensland Domestic and Family Violence
Prevention Strategy to achieve a long term vision — where all Queenslanders can live free from
violence from a partner or family member, and where children do not have to see or experience
family violence.

In August 2015, the Queensland Government accepted all 140 of the report’'s recommendations
including the 121 directed at the government.

The QPS is the lead agency for the implementation of eight recommendations relating to improving
policies, guidelines, training and information sharing. As at 30 June 2016, the QPS has completed
its First Action Plan 2015-16 activities of the Queensland Government’s Domestic and Family
Violence Prevention Strategy 2016-2026.

Key achievements include:

- appointments of Deputy Commissioner Brett Pointing to champion best practice for police
prevention and response to domestic and family violence and Assistant Commissioner
Paul Stewart as the QPS Senior Responsible Officer for domestic and family violence

- reinstatement of a QPS State Domestic and Family Violence Coordinator to support District
Domestic and Family Violence Coordinators and drive policy change

- creation of the Domestic, Family Violence and Vulnerable Persons Unit within QPS to support
the QPS Domestic and Family Violence Cultural Change Champion, the Domestic and Family
Violence Senior Responsible Officer and the State Domestic and Family Violence Coordinator
to implement the QPS-led recommendations from the NOT NOW, NOT EVER report
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- improvement of processes to ensure that applicants, including police and private, for a
protection order or a variation of a protection order, provide information in relation to interpreter
requirements

- progressive implementation of changes to police procedures that strengthen the legal
processes and increase accountability for domestic and family violence offending.

These achievements enabled closure of three QPS-led recommendations from the NOT NOW,
NOT EVER report.

The QPS implementation of the remaining recommendations will be undertaken as part of the
Second Action Plan (2016-17 to 2018-19) of the government’s strategy.

The QPS also continues to contribute to the child safety reform agenda initiated by the Queensland
Child Protection Commission of Inquiry final report which has direct links to preventing domestic
and family violence and supporting people affected.

The Taskforce’s report and the Queensland Government response to the recommendations are
available online at www.communities.qgld.gov.au/gateway/end-domestic-and-family-
violence/queensland-government-response.

Queensland Organised Crime Commission of Inquiry

The Queensland Organised Crime Commission of Inquiry commenced on 1 May 2015 to make
inquiry into the extent and nature of organised crime in Queensland and its economic and societal
impacts. The Commission focused on four key areas:

- the major illicit drug and/or precursor markets

- online child sex offending, including the child exploitation material market

- financial crimes, primarily investment/financial market fraud and financial data theft
- the relationship between organised crime and corruption in Queensland.

The Commission was also required to investigate the extent to which organised crime groups use
various enabling mechanisms or services: in particular money laundering, cyber and
technology-enabled crime, identity crime, professional facilitators, violence and extortion.

In carrying out the Inquiry, the Commission was to examine the adequacy and appropriateness of
responses to organised crime by law enforcement, intelligence and prosecution agencies, as well
as the adequacy of legislation and of the resources available to such agencies.

The Commission’s report was presented to the Premier by Commissioner Michael Byrne, QC on
30 October 2015. The government accepted in full 35 recommendations, accepted in principle five
recommendations and did not accept one recommendation. The government’s position on two of
the recommendations is postponed until the government has considered the report of the
Queensland Taskforce on Organised Crime Legislation.

The Department of Justice and Attorney-General is the lead agency on implementation of the
recommendations and is working with the QPS and other agencies on implementation. The QPS is
responsible for implementation of 16 recommendations.

As at 30 June 2016, QPS has implemented four recommendations with the following outcomes:

- expanding the scope and operational priorities of Taskforce Maxima and other areas of the QPS
to encompass other crime types, strategies and threats in addition to policing OMCGs

- supporting Crime Stoppers with additional funding to support additional resources required to
receive, assess and process the increased workload experienced as a result of the Australian
Government initiative, Dob-in-a-Dealer telephone hotline, aimed at attacking the ice epidemic

- signing and implementing the JACET MoU between the Australian Federal Police and QPS

- commencing Taskforce Orion on 1 January 2016 and recruiting specialists to further address
the sharing of child exploitation material.

69


http://www.communities.qld.gov.au/gateway/end-domestic-and-family-violence/queensland-government-response
http://www.communities.qld.gov.au/gateway/end-domestic-and-family-violence/queensland-government-response

2015-16 Annual Report
Queensland Police Service

The report and the government response are available online at
www.justice.qld.gov.au/corporate/justice-initiatives/new-regime-to-tackle-serious-organised-crime-in-
queensland-in-all-its-forms.

Review of the Criminal Organisation Act 2009

In accordance with section 130 of the Criminal Organisation Act 2009 (the Act), on 2 October 2015,
the Attorney-General and Minister for Justice and Minister for Training and Skills, requested the
Honourable Alan Wilson QC conduct a review of the Act. Section 130 requires the Act to be
reviewed after five years to see if it is operating effectively and meeting its statutory objectives.

Coincidentally, a Taskforce on Organised Crime Legislation was reviewing the legislation
introduced by the 2013 Queensland Government, including the Vicious Lawless Association
Disestablishment Act 2013 (VLAD) (the 2013 suite).

There was a thematic and chronological connection between the Act and the 2013 suite.

The Review of the Criminal Organisation Act 2009 (15 December 2015) was tabled in Parliament
on 4 April 2016. The Terms of Reference for this review include advising the government on
whether any part of the Act should be repealed or amended and, if so, the form of any proposed
amendments.

The review report concluded that despite creditable intentions, the Act has not worked. A new
legislative framework is proposed which has a foundation in existing criminal law and
acknowledges its fundamental precepts, while also addressing the many shapes and facets of
modern organised crime in a relatively straightforward way: that is, by providing a mechanism
under which crimes committed by individuals in concert with others can be prosecuted (and
deterred) by making them the subject of special attention, in terms of their punishment. Some
elements of the Act and the 2013 suite have a place within the framework and may be preserved in
other existing legislation, with amendments.

The Queensland Government is considering the recommendations.

The report is available online at
www.parliament.qgld.gov.au/documents/tableOffice/TabledPapers/2016/5516T432.pdf.

Taskforce on Organised Crime Legislation

On 7 June 2015, the Terms of Reference for the Taskforce on Organised Crime Legislation was
signed by the Attorney-General and Minister for Justice and Minister for Training and Skills. The
taskforce was established to review the legislative provisions, introduced and passed in Parliament
in 2013 targeting organised crime (the 2013 suite). Those laws (the 2013 suite) were represented
to target organised crime but were principally directed at OMCGs and their members.

The Chair of the taskforce, the Honourable Alan Wilson QC, was simultaneously reviewing the
Criminal Organisation Act 2009.

The Terms of Reference required the taskforce to consider the repeal and replacement of the 2013
suite (whether by substantial amendment or new legislation) and also, in doing so, to consider
whether the provisions of the 2013 suite were effectively facilitating the successful detection,
investigation, prevention and deterrence of organised crime. The taskforce was also asked to
develop a new ‘serious organised crime’ offence, with mandatory penalties.

The Chair delivered the taskforce report containing 60 recommendations to the Queensland
Government in March 2016.

At 30 June 2016, the QPS is participating in a process of consultation with the Department of
Justice and Attorney-General in reviewing the recommendations of the taskforce report.

The report is available online at www.justice.gld.gov.au/ _data/assets/pdf file/0017/463022/report-
of-the-taskforce-on-organised-crime-legislation.pdf.
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Queensland Audit Office

The QAO supports the role of the Auditor-General of Queensland in providing the Parliament with
an independent assessment of the financial management and performance activities of public
sector entities. The QAO provides an independent audit service and reports to the Parliament to
enhance public sector accountability. QAO reports are available online at
www.gao.qgld.gov.au/reports-tabled-in-2015-16-financial-year.

Report to Parliament 1: Internal control systems 2014-15

The report summarises the results of QAQO’s evaluations of the systems of financial control and
its selective testing of the internal controls that operated within the 21 government departments
during 2014-15. The report also includes evaluations of the effectiveness of internal financial
management reporting and an examination of the disaster recovery planning used in four
departments to recover their computer systems after a disruptive event, such as floods or
power outages.

With regard to financial controls, QPS has considered the sector-wide report findings on internal
financial management reporting. In 2015-16, QPS commenced implementing reporting
improvements to better support good financial decision-making by management.

While QPS was not one of the four departments examined for disaster recovery planning, it has
considered the findings for application to its circumstances and future planning. PSBA’s
Frontline and Digital Services Division has an ongoing program of work regarding business
continuity planning and disaster recovery. The program focuses on critical systems used by
QPS, Office of the IGEM, QFES and the QAS and includes Disaster Recovery Plans for all
critical components of the systems, test strategies and plans. From a governance perspective,
the division has a Continuity Management Team and Disaster Recovery Management Group
who are the key players in a continuity event, and these teams are educated through scenario
testing and process familiarisation to ensure they are prepared for a critical event.

Report to Parliament 2: Road safety — traffic cameras

This audit examined the design, implementation and integrity of the CDOP and assessed its
operational integrity to determine how effectively the program contributes to road safety
outcomes.

The CDOP is a key road safety program and an important component of the Safer Roads, Safer
Queensland: Queensland’s Road Safety Action Plan 2015—-17. The CDOP is a joint agency
initiative with the DTMR as strategic lead, QPS managing operations and the State Penalties
Enforcement Registry (SPER) managing default payments.

The report recognised that the CDOP is an effective program that deters speeding motorists
and is successful in achieving its primary objective of reducing speed related crashes. The
report found a high level of integrity around the issued infringement notices and that the
expenditure of revenue is conducted in accordance with the legislation to fund road safety
programs. The report also identified a range of improvements to processes and systems
associated with the CDOP and listed eight recommendations.

The QPS has undertaken a range of actions in response to these recommendations, including:

o implementing a new Camera Scheduling and Reporting System which, in conjunction with
the introduction of a new road risk assessment process to identify high-risk sections of
road, will enhance the identification of sites and the deployment of cameras

o commencing the review of approved mobile camera sites for their ongoing appropriateness

o expanding the mobile speed camera fleet to allow for more covert road safety camera
deployments.
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- Report to Parliament 6: State public sector entities: 2014-15 financial statements

In 2014-15, Queensland’s state public sector delivered services and goods to benefit the public.
To demonstrate their accountability in managing public money on behalf of the Queensland
community, all state public sector entities must report on their finances and have them audited.
The Auditor-General of Queensland, supported by the QAQ, is responsible for providing
Parliament with an independent assessment of the financial management of public sector
agencies.

The report discusses the status and nature of the audit opinions QAO issues; comments on the
timeliness and quality of financial reporting; and explains how QAO assessed the key audit
matters disclosed by state public sector entities.

The report refers to the QPS as not meeting the statutory date for certification of the 2014-15
financial statements. QPS acknowledges that this was due to complexities related to
machinery-of-government changes, attributing amounts for below fair value services received
from the PSBA and also the introduction of a new SAP Finance system environment. In
2015-16, with support provided by the PSBA, QPS consulted with the QAO and implemented
strategies to facilitate certification of the financial statements by the statutory date of

31 August 2016.

- Report to Parliament 13: Cloud Computing

The audit examined how well departments are adopting the Queensland cloud computing
strategy in modernising their ICT assets and services to deliver business value while managing
risks.

QPS has adopted the strategy and is progressing cloud computing solutions for the Body-Worn
Video Project, where footage recorded on body-worn cameras is hosted on a secure public
cloud, and the Advance2 Learning Management System Project which will migrate QPS’ staff
learning management system from an on-premise to a cloud-hosted solution, while increasing
its functionality.

Queensland Coroner

In accordance with the Coroner’s Act 2003, the State Coroner is responsible for investigating
reportable deaths including deaths that were violent or unnatural, such as accidents, falls or
suicides, or where the death occurred in custody or as a result of police operations.

The Queensland Government’s coronial reporting requirements, implemented on 1 January 2015,
require departments to provide minister-approved responses to coronial
recommendations/comments within six months of the coroner handing down the findings of inquest
to the Attorney-General and Minister for Justice and Minister for Training and Skills.

Departments provide updates until implementation of the recommendations/comments are
delivered. These arrangements provide a timely response to the next of kin of the deceased, the
community and coroners of the measures being taken in response to coronial
recommendations/comments.

During 2015-16, the State Coroner delivered findings requiring consideration by QPS relating to
five Coronial Inquests with five recommendations.

The responses (including implementation progress if accepted) are accessible at
www.courts.qgld.gov.au/courts/coroners-court/findings.
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Internal audit

The PSBA Internal Audit Unit is an independent unit that provides advice across a wide range of
disciplines including risk, assurance, information technology, finance, compliance and general
consulting activities for the QPS, Office of the IGEM, PSBA and QFES.

The Head of Internal Audit, PSBA is also the nominated Head of Internal Audit for the QPS, Office of the
IGEM and QFES in accordance with the Financial Accountability Act 2009.

The work of the Internal Audit Unit is undertaken in accordance with the Institute of Internal Auditors’
standards and under an approved charter which is consistent with relevant audit and ethical standards.

In accordance with the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009, an annual audit plan
and four year strategic plan sets the direction of the unit. The portfolio Annual Internal Audit Plan
2015-2016 was endorsed by the Public Safety Portfolio Audit and Risk Committee and approved by the
former Chief Executive Officer, PSBA on 19 May 2015.

As secretariat to the Public Safety Portfolio Audit and Risk Committee, the unit ensures that all relevant
guidelines, particularly Queensland Treasury’s Audit Committee Guidelines: Improving Accountability
and Performance, are adhered to, and that the functioning of the unit complies with these guidelines in
all material respects.

The unit assists management to achieve its objectives by using a systematic, disciplined approach to
review and improve the effectiveness of risk management and internal control and governance
processes, improving the overall level of compliance and accountability. Under its approved charter, the
unit can undertake a series of review types including compliance (effectiveness), performance
(efficiency), financial management and information technology, to identify areas of risk and to improve
outcomes. Systems are in place to ensure the effective, efficient and economic operation of the audit
function.

Achievements for 2015-16 include:

o full delivery of the approved portfolio Annual Internal Audit Plan 2015-2016 through a combination
of in-house and co-sourced delivery. Specific QPS coverage included:

- review of Northern Region - QPS

- coordination and readiness — Commonwealth Games Group Review
- seized assets

- QPS grants to community groups

- motor vehicle impound and towing

- QPS rewards payments

e coverage also included the following ICT and PSBA corporate activities that had a direct impact on
QPS operations:
- portfolio information management — privacy and security
- cloud computing
- internal Operating Level Agreements — ICT
- ICT Project Governance

e no carry forward of 2015-16 audit activities. All planned reviews have commenced, fieldwork
completed and are at either draft or final report stage. All planned reviews are expected to be
finalised by the end of August 2016

e successful negotiation and management of a co-sourced delivery model for provision of QPS audit
services.
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Information systems and recordkeeping

PSBA, as the provider of strategic and corporate services to Queensland’s public safety portfolio
agencies including QPS, is responsible for recordkeeping and information systems across the portfolio.
PSBA has a dedicated records management team which provided advice and assistance to QPS during
the reporting period resulting in improved efficiencies.

As at 30 June 2016, all Police Regions and Commands with the exception of Northern and Southern
Regions, have access to the fully functional version of the Objective eDRMS. This system facilitates the
capture and storage of electronic documents. The remaining two regions are expected to have access
to the fully functional version of the system in 2016-17. The rollout of this recordkeeping system has
significantly reduced the duplication of records and the level of reliance on hardcopy documents.

Preliminary work to provide system users with ‘workflow’ functionality that assists users to track and
complete tasks in the system commenced in 2015-16 and is expected to be completed in 2016-17.

Initial scoping work on determining how Objective can be used to support the electronic archiving
(digitisation) of hardcopy documents relating to occurrences managed in QPRIME, the key operational
policing information system, was completed during the reporting period.

A number of amendments to simplify the QPS Records and Retention Disposal Schedule were
completed in 2015-16.

No records were transferred to Queensland State Archives during 2015-16.
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Human resources

Workforce planning and performance
Workforce profile
The total number of full-time equivalent staff for the QPS was 14,301.6 as at 30 June 2016.

Between 1 July 2015 and 30 June 2016, the QPS permanent separation rate for staff members was
6.1% and the permanent separation rate for police officers was 2.8%.

Balance
Balance is a program designed to enhance the skills and knowledge of female leaders in public safety
agencies. The program encourages:
e awareness of leadership strengths and how to use them to drive organisational performance
e ability to diagnose and negotiate the specific challenges for women in public safety leadership roles
and to use influence to shape solutions

¢ ability to balance the ways of established organisational culture with other approachesrequired to
meet needs

e increased internal capacity as a female leader and ability to bring others along on that journey.

Balance is a program developed by the Australian Institute of Police Management (AIPM) and involves
two residential workshops linked by three months of workplace development support. The first
Queensland-based program — Q-Balance — commenced in June 2015 at the QPS Academy at Oxley.
Across the public safety portfolio, women who identified as exercising significant leadership within their
organisation were encouraged to submit an expression of interest outlining how the program would be of
benefit to them as an individual and to their workplace.

A large number of applications were received which resulted in 21 successful portfolio nominations and
an additional six nominations from the Australian Federal Police and the QAS. The program was so well
supported that additional courses commenced in August 2015 with more planned for 2016.

Applications for the 2016-17 Balance program are being collated.
Domestic and family violence support package
On 25 November 2015, the Public Service Commission released a whole-of-government domestic and
family violence support package which details support options available in the workplace including:
¢ a minimum of ten days paid special leave
o flexible working arrangements
e reasonable workplace adjustments
e counselling support services.

It also outlines the roles and responsibilities of managers and employees.

To support the implementation of this whole-of-government initiative, the PSBA, in conjunction with the
Office of the IGEM, QFES and QPS, developed the Supporting Employees Affected by Domestic and
Family Violence Policy. The policy applies to employees engaged within the public safety portfolio and
includes a list of various support options available to employees affected by domestic and family
violence.

QPS, PSBA and QFES have enrolled in the 2016 White Ribbon Organisational Accreditation Program
which will assist these agencies in continuing to drive organisational change in preventing domestic and
family violence.
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An on-line learning product to improve employees’ awareness of domestic and family violence issues
has been developed and will be available for all staff in the portfolio agencies in late 2016. A managers’
face to face training package has also been developed for roll out in late 2016 for frontline leadership
and middle management levels.

Employee assistance

The Employee Assistance Service, managed by PSBA, helps prevent and manage mental health issues
for employees across the public safety portfolio by providing advice, counselling and referral to external
services for a full range of organisational and personalissues.

1800 ASSIST, established for QPS members and their partners in 2014, is a free, 24 hours a day, seven
days a week, confidential, short-term counselling service, provided by independent, qualified,
experienced professionals. The utilisation rate for this service, which has been operating for
approximately 18 months, is 0.8% which is below the State Government industry average of 5.9% and
below the internal QPS employee assistance service utilisation rate of 12%. The high utilisation rate of
the internal service relates to confidence and ease of access to the psychologists and social workers
performing counselling roles and their understanding of the working environment and challenges for
police employees.

Professional counsellors are available to assist QPS staff including a team of 25 internal psychologists,
social workers, chaplains and over 600 trained Peer Support Officers. Additionally, referrals are made to
external psychiatrists and psychologists as needed. Workplace interventions are provided to assist
managers to work more effectively with their teams and develop higher performing and resilient teams.

Psychological resilience sessions were delivered statewide during the reporting period with
approximately 1,200 police and their spousal partners attending the workshops.

During 2015-16, within the QPS, 4,544 contacts for assistance were made by employees to the
Employee Assistance Service, with a total of 1,851 members provided with assistance.

In addition, mental health executive briefing sessions were provided to the ELT and approximately 500
managers across the state. Mental health literacy is being addressed via the external facilitation of a
best practice program - Mental health first aid (MHFA). Six programs were rolled out during the reporting
period across several commands and work groups with approximately 125 employees attending. A
further 100 officers have completed the Black Dog Mental Health Training with half of the programs
conducted across Cape York stations. Additional education, screening and monitoring sessions have
been delivered to support employees working within the Child Sexual Crimes Group.

Enterprise Bargaining Agreement

The Queensland Police Service Certified Agreement 2013 has an expiry date of 30 June 2016.
Negotiations with the Queensland Police Union of Employees and the Queensland Police
Commissioned Officers' Union of Employees for the next agreement commenced in May 2016.
Negotiations are being undertaken by QPS representatives and Employee Relations, PSBA on behalf
of the Commissioner, and a Public Sector Industrial Relations representative on behalf of the
government.

The new QPS Enterprise Bargaining Agreement is expected to be signed by 31 August 2016.

The State Government Entities Certified Agreement 2015 was finalised on 1 June 2016 and provided
for a three year agreement with wage increases for public sector employees of 2.5% per annum
operative from 1 September 2015. An additional one off payment of $1,300 for all public sector
employees employed under the agreement as at 1 April 2016 was made in recognition of the period
that wage increases were not awarded.
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The State Government Security Certified Agreement 2013 has an expiry date of 30 April 2016. State
Government Security and the Together Queensland, Industrial Union of Employees reached in-principle
agreement on 30 May 2016 for a three year agreement and annual wage increases of 2.5% operative
from 1 May 2016. Consultation and balloting of employees is expected to be finalised in

September 2016.

Health and wellbeing

The QPS Psychological Wellbeing Steering Committee continued to meet and drive psychological
wellbeing during the reporting period within QPS with a focus on promoting awareness, reducing stigma
and supporting members with psychological health issues. Two examples of the work aimed at
de-stigmatising mental health issues are the development of the Blue Healers - live experience videos
(members own stories) and training of executives and 500 managers in mental health education and
awareness across the state.

QPS Healthy Workplaces Project

The Healthy Workplaces Project is a monitoring program to improve the health, performance and
wellbeing of QPS employees. In conjunction with Griffith University, monitoring is conducted by way of
an online employee survey which was conducted in 2008, 2010, 2011, 2014 and 2015.

The results of the 2015 survey will be used by the QPS to develop a holistic health, safety and wellbeing
strategy for the QPS including the development of new initiatives and priorities to improve health and
wellbeing outcomes for employees.

Working for Queensland Employee Opinion Survey

The Working for Queensland Employee Opinion Survey is the annual, whole-of-governmentsurvey
which measures workplace climate across the Queensland public service. The 2016 survey explored
employee perceptions of matters impacting three key outcomes: agency engagement, organisational
leadership and innovation, with the aim of identifying better ways of working.

The results serve as a benchmark which will assist with measuring changes in agency performance and
provide a guide to focus organisational improvement efforts.

The 2016 survey was conducted from 18 April to 11 May. The 2015 and 2016 results for QPS are:

Response Rate Agency Organisational Innovation
engagement leadership

2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016

35% 31% 57% 53% 46% 41% 47% 46%

Workplace health and safety

Workplace health and safety is a priority for the public safety portfolio agencies including QPS. The QPS
continues to invest in strategies and programs to improve the health and fitness of all employees and
prevent injury occurrence. This includes the allocation of specialist health and safety staff. Specialist
injury management staff are also available to assist employees with rehabilitation and return to work, in
the event of a work-related injury or illness.

During 2015-16, a total of 1,574 applications for workers’ compensation were lodged by QPS staff and
of these applications, 1,333 were accepted. Of these accepted claims for workers’ compensation,
526 resulted in a work absence of one or more days.
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The QPS’ Lost Time Injury Rate (per 100 employees) for 2015-16 was 3.57, a reduction compared to the
2014-15 rate of 3.87.

Throughout 2015-16, the PSBA Injury Management Centres for QPS continued to consolidate the
improved and integrated business processes of injury management. As at 30 June 2016, the PSBA
Injury Management Centre was achieving a 98% return to work rate for cases finalised.

Early retirement, redundancy and retrenchment

No early retirement, redundancy or retrenchment packages were paid to QPS employees during
2015-16.
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Financial statements

Queensland Police Service
Financial Statemenis 2015-16
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Contants

Hatement of comprehensive income

Statement of firancial position

atalemont of changes in eouity

Slatermant of cagh flows

Staternen of comprehensive meome by major departmental services
Slaterent of assets and labilites by major deparimental services
Mobiss to and forming par of the Financial Statemeants

Managerment Cerlificala

Indepandent Audit Repon

General Information

These financial statements covear the Cueensland Police Sarvice.

The Queensland Polics Servica is & Quesnsland Govermnment Deparment established under the Public Senvee Acf
2008 _ The department was first established by the Poiice Act of 1863,

T dezpariment i controlled by the State of Queensland, which | the ulimate perent.
Thwa hewsd office and principa! place of business of the deparirnent is:

200 Roma Sireet
Ensbane Cusensliznd 4000

& descrption of the naiure of te department’s operationg and ds pancipal aclivities & included in e noles o the
financial statements

For infermation in relalion io the Queensland Police Service financial stabements wisd the following website:
httpSferenw police.ghd.gov.au
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Statement of comprehensive income

Queensiland Police Service
Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2016

MNotes 2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Income from continuing operations
Depadmantal servicis revanus 2z 1,716.658 1,678,009
User charges and fees . 3 32 485 30,206
Granls and othaer condribulions 4 358,218 321,316
Char revenue 4,548 4,485
Total revenuse 211,908 2,043,016
Gains on disposalremeasurement of assels 20 40
Total income from continuing operations 2. 111,828 2043 056
Expenses from continuing operations
Employes expenses 5 1,529,730 1,488 007
Supplies and saricos ¥ 185,911 205,156
Granta and subsidies 5,862 3,724
Dapreciation and armorbsation 11,12 13,404 1,581
Impainment losses 452 L]
Cher expenses a8 375,423 323,564
Total expenses from continuing operations 2,110,783 2042 081
Operating result from centinuing operations 1,146 896
Other comprehensive income not reclassified
subsequently to operating result
Increasafdecrease) in asset revaluation surplus 221 SB1
Total other comprehensive income 221 FB1
1,367 1,377

Total comprehensive Incomg

The sccompanidng motes form pan of hese stalormends
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Statement of financial position

Queensland Poffce Service
Statement of financial position
as al 30 June 2016

Motas 2016 2015
5000 $'000
Ansels
Current assets
Cash and cash eguivalents oG, 242 Ta,682
Receivables f 63, 683 G2, 250
Irvenionias 5 466 4 537
Cher current assels 10 3,028 54588
Total current assats 167 419 150, 365
Mon-current assots
Intangibie assels 14 20,080 23 92T
Property, plant and equiprment 12 A0 866G 38123
Total non-current assets 50,955 62,050
Total assats 278,374 213,015
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Payvables 12 28,436 33,275
Accrued employes benalis 14 60,082 &A, 054
Oithesr currend liabilithes 15 30 6537 5, (54
Total current Habilities 128,097 106,413
Total liabilittes 128.055 106,413
Mot assots 1 IJ-UI3‘1 B 106,602
Equity
Accimulated sunplus 99717 106,221
Assed ravaluation surplus [k 351
Total equity 100,319 106,602

The accompamying nofes fonm part of hese stalemanis.
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Statement of changes in equity

Queensiand Police Service
Statement of cha nges in eguity
for the year ended 30 June 2016

2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Contributed aguity
Dpaning balance - B0, 0095
Transaclions with ocwners as cwners:

Appropriated eguity adjestments. Refer to Naoba 2, {8800} 4 655

Ned transfers infout) via machinery-of-govermnment change 1,150 (1,588, 18E6)

Ml fransfens ind{oul) from restruchuring 8,059

Transfers batwean Canges T EE0 1,007 £87
Ciosing balance = +
Accumulated surplusi|deficit)

Opening balance 106,221 403 84T
Ohperating result 1,146 ol ]
Transaclions with owners as owners:

Transfarse befwaen classes (75500 (298 622)
Closing balance 949,717 108,221
Assel revaluation surplus
Qipening balance aat 048, BES
Increasal{decrease) in assel revaluation surplus. Refer io Node 12, il 381
Fransaclions with ownens as owners:

Transfars batween classas - {708, BES)
Cloging balance 602 381
Total equity 100,315 106,602

The accompaniimg notes fomr pard of Mese sladermments
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Queensiand Police Saervice
Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 30 June 2016

Cash flows from operating sctivities
ey
Dapartmeantal services receipts
User charges and lees
Grants and other contributions
GST input tax credils from ATO
GET collected from customers.
Difhar
Owflows:
Ermployee axpanses
Supplies and services
Grantz and subsidies
ZFET paid to suppliars
GET remitied to ATO
CHher

Met cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

GCash flows from investing activities
inflows:;
Sales of propedy, plant and equipment
Ohntflowa:
Fayments for propery, plant and equiprment
Paymenis for intangibles

et cash provided by/lused in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Imffows;

Euaty wilkiirawals
Net cash provided byl\(used in) financing activities

Ml increasedacraasa) in cash
Adjusimant due b machinery-of-povernmeant change
Cash al beginning of financial yaar

Cash at end of financial year

The accompanying moles forms part of fese sfataments.

Notes

16

2016 2015
000 5000
1,720,976 1,559 503
27,151 &4, 306

B 8GT 4,393
27.853 24, 062
5. 742 T.r05
3,888 10, BES
{1,528,606) {1,500, 466)
(162, 718) [212,462)
{5, B62) (3,724)
(86 B (23, 822)
(5. 742) (B G5T)
(26,593} (9.210)
37,858 (5,487)

- 1,205

(8,251) {7,881
[1,148) {1.623)
{10,399} {8,399)
(5041 ) 10,585
{1,859} (1,612}
{10,200) B, 273
16555 {4,913)

- {2, 958)

THEGEZ B 553
95,242 TH, 682

84



2015-16 Annual Report
Queensland Police Service

Statement of comprehensive income by major
departmental services

Queensland Police Service
Statement of comprahensive income by major departmental services

for the year ended 30 June 2016

Crime and Public Drder Road Safaty Tuoital
2018 2015 2018 2018 2018 215
§7000 000 &'000 00D F0c0 byl
Income from continuing cperatsns
Deparimenial services revanue 1,095,583 1,340,729 078 337280 1,716,658 1,678,000
User charges and fees 26,400 31,326 B.076 T.850 32 485 39,208
Grants and obhar condrbutions 241218 206 731 BE.#9B a4 565 AGE. 218 321,316
Citivar revenus 3,607 3584 B51 001 .. 4548 4485
Tolal revenue 1,716,908 1,632,369 A28.001 410,647 2,111,909 2,043,018
Gain on salefremessurement of asssals 16 32 4 8 20 40
Total income from continuing operations 1,716,824 1,632 401 305 DOS 410,855 2.111,929 2 043 056
Expenses from continuing operations
Employes arponses 1,243,817 1,196.007 2BEA13 01,0098 1.529,730 1,498,008
Supplies and services 151,158 163,920 34,772 41,256 188,911 205,156
Grants and 5 ubsidies A, TEE 2874 1,096 74D 5,662 3,723
Dapreciation and amortisstion 10,887 9228 2507 2,322 13,404 11,5581
Irngairmend boss s 36T 48 BE 12 452 B0
Cither gxpanses 205,208 258 528 217 65,036 375423 323,564
Total expenses from comtinuing operations TS 92 1,631,605 294,790 410,455 2,110,783 2,042,060
Operating resull For he yoar a2 ToE 214 200 1,1405 096
Orthar comprehensive incoms nol
raclassified subsaquently by operating result
Increasatdecreasa) in assel revaluation surplus 180 304 a1 _ T 221 381
Total other comprehansive Income 180 304 a1 TT FFI] 381
Total comprahensive Income 1,111 1,100 2568 ITT 1,367 1,377

The department has systemes in placa o allocats income and expenses by depanmental servica. Crime and Public Order ncudes service standasds
maleled 1o parsonal salety, propeny securty and public order and safety. Road safety includes sendos standards related 1o iraffic policing.
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a_s_ag't 30 June 2016

Assgls
Currant assats
Cash and Cash aguivalents
Feceivables
Imeenbories
Oihesr current asseis
Total current assets

Mon-current assets
Intlangbla gssats
Property, pland and aquipmant
Total nom-current assels

Total assels

Liabilities
Curront liabilities
Favahbles
Agcrued employes benediis
Other
Total current liakilities

Total liabilities

Statement of assets and liabilities by major departmental services

Crime and Public Order Road Safety Total

2016 2015 216 2015 i 1] 2015
000 5000 $000 000 3000 5000
TT4E 62 BGT 17814 15,815 B5.242 78,682
S1.772 48 738 11.811 12,512 63,683 62,250
4 442 3628 1022 o912 5166 4,537

2 462 4,381 566 1,105 3,028 5,496
138,106 120,821 31,313 30,344 167 419 150,985
16,332 18,118 3,767 4 B0% 20,080 23,927
33,283 30,460 ¥ i3 7663 40,866 g3
A0 554 40, 578 11,4061 12,472 60,085 &2 050
185,660 170,199 714 42,816 228,374 213,015
23,118 26,587 5318 G688 28,436 33,275
56,167 S, 300 12,921 13,685 69,082 68,084
24,825 4,058 5,711 1016 30,537 5,051
104,104 BE,024 23,981 1,380 128,055 106,413
s, 104 B5,024 23,951 21,389 128,055 106,413

The Departmant has systems in place o allecale income and axpensas by depatmental senice, Crime and Public Order includes service standards
ralaled o personal safety, propery securty and public order and safety. Road safety includes sendce standerds relaled o trallic policing.
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Queensiand Police Service
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2015-16

Objectives and Principal Activities of the Department
Tive role of the Queensland Police Service (QPS) is to preserve peace and good order, pratect and sugport the
community, prevent and detact crime, wuphold the kaw, acminister the ke faily and efficiently, bring offanders to
justice and help those in nood of assistance. To deliver this, the OPS is commifted to #s vision of the community
working with Queensland polica o stop crime and make Oueensland safer.

The identity and purpoge of the major depadmental servces undeflaken by the departmant during the year are as
folloves:

Crimg and Public Ovder

. FT;TTMHEI s=fply and prevent and detoct reatod offences including homicide, assaull, sexual essaull and
Fi

- protect propedy and prestent and detect related offences ncuedng unlowful entry, othar property dameage, motor
wvedicle theft, and odher theft (excluding unlawful antry}

- maintain public order and safety during major events and nalural disasters from planning 1o recovery, addrass
public space enjoymenl, sireet and nusance offences, and liquor licensing issues and environmenial desion io
risdiaca critne including alcohol fuelled viclence.

Foad Salaly
Road safety services enforce traffic law and reduce rosd traums including through the: prevention and detection of
speeding, red Bohl afences, driving under the inflwence of alcohol or drugs, driving while fatigued and nol wearing
seabalts
The depariment is Tunded for the deparmental services it defivers principally by parkamentary appropriations. The
deparimonl alse cost recovers an a fee for service basis for special services Including:
= heavy vihich: moad escorts

Iraffi: conthol @t road works
- afditiens policing sanvices at lange sporting, entertainment and public events.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
{a) Statemeant of compliance

The depariment has prepansd these financial stalermants in complance with section 42 of the Ersnctal and
Performmance Managemant Standard 2008,

These financial stalerments are general purpose financial statements and have been prapared on an asorual basis
in accordanca with Australian Accounting Standards and Interprefations. In addilion, ihe financial stalaments
comply with Queensland Treasury's Minimemn Reporfing Regueremends for the year ending 30 Juna 2018 and ather
aulhoritalive pronouncemanis.

Unless otherwise siabed, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the histerical cost
CXaislian.

{b) Administered transactions and balances

The depardmeant administers, but does nod conbrol, cerzin resources an Behalf of the Government. In doing so, [t
hes responsibility and is accountabie for sdministerag related ransactions and itens, but does not have the
decreton to deploy the rescurces for the achisvement of the depariment’'s objactivas.

Administered tramsactons and balances are disclosed in Maole 19, These ansasctions and balances are not
significant in comparison 1o the departments ovarall financial pedormancefinancial position.

{e) Trustiagency transactions and balances

The deparment undertakes cenain rustes lransactions and maintaing relabid balances on behall of various parties
and aleg parfarms ceriain agency ransactions.

Ar the depariment acis only in a cusledial role in respect of these ransactons and balances, they are not
recognized in the deparmernd's linancial stalérments, but ane discosad in Note 20,
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Queensland Police Service
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2015-16 (continued)

(d) User charges, taxes, fees and fines

ser charges and fees condrollad by the depaniment are recognised as revenues when the revenus has been
earmad and can be measured reliably with & sufficient deoree of cartanty,

{e) Appropristion revenus

Appropriations forsarded under the Approprations Acf are recognised as revenue when received.
(T) Grants and contributions

Grants, contributions, donations and gifts that are non-reciprocal in nature ane recognised as revenue in tha year in
which the department oiiains control over them (control is generally obtained a1 the time of receipt). Whare granis
are recaived thal are reciprocal in nature, revenue is recognised over the term of the funding arrangements as it is

eamed.

Contributions of services are recognised only ¥ the services would have been purchased if they had not been
donated and their fair value can be measured reliably. Where this is the case. an equal amounl & recognised as
rEvEnue and an expense.

(@) Cash and cash eguivalents

Lash assats include cash on hand, all cash and cheques recaipiad bul nod banked at 30 June.

The depariment has authonsation to operate in overdraft with a specified Imit in accordance wilh he Financial
Avcounlabilfy Act 20058 .

(h} Receivables

Trade deblors ane recognised at the amounis due at the time of sale or service delivery La, he agresd
purchase’coniract price. The depariment's standard setflemaent terms i 30 days fram invoios date.

The colleciability of receivables is assessed periodically with allvwance being made for Impairment, AR known bad
didls wore wriien-off as &t 30 June.

Oiher receivables generally arise from transactions owside the usual operaling aclivities of the department and are
recognised al thelr assessed values,

(i} Acquisitions of assets

Actual cost is used for the Inilial recording of @1 nop-currend phiysic and intangitle asset acguisiiions. Aciual tost is
determined as the value provided as consideration plus costs incidantal fo the acquisition and costs incurmed n
getting the asset ready for uss,

Where assets are received free of charge from another Quesnslant Government depariment (wheiher 25 a resull of
a mathinery-of-Government change or other invaluntary transfer), the acquisdion cost is recognised as the groes
carryang amournt in the aocounts of the transferor immediatety prior io the transfer together with any acoumulatad
deprecialion,
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Queensland Police Service
Motes to and forming part of the financial statements 2015-16 (continued)

(i) Property, plant and equipment and intangible asset thresholds

Hesng of progerdy, plant and equipmenl. with & cost or other vaiue aqual o o in eocess of the follewing thresholds
are recognisad for financial reporing purposes in the year of acquisiton;

Major plant and eguipment 5,000
Plant and equipmant 5,000
Herdage and cultural 5,000
fntangibiles 1 00, 000

lems purchased or acquired for a lesser valve are expenssd in the year of acguisition.
{k} Ameortisation and depreciation of intangibles and property, plant and eguipment

Allimtangible assets are amortised on & stralight bine basis over ita estimated usedul life.

Property, plal and egquipmeant is depraciated on a straight-line basis less s estimabed residual value, progressivety
over its estimatad useful life fo the departmeant.

Assolbs under construction (work-in-progress) are not depreciated unt® thay reach service delivery capacity. Service
oelivery capacity relates 1o when construclion is comphete and the assel & first put to vse or s instalied resdy for
use in accardancn wilh its intended appication. These assets are thon reclassified o ihe rolevant assed classes
within property, plant and equipment.

Any expenditure hat increases the onginally assessed capacily or sendce polential of an asset is capitalissd and
the new depraciable amount is depreciatad owvar the remaining usaful life of the asset to the departrment.

Far aach class of depreciable 1 the fodlowing depraciation and amortisation rates are usad:
Class Rate (%)
Mlagior pliand g e prmssend 4% o 1% *
Flant and aquipment 2.5% o 50%
Indangitve asseds B% to 20%

* Aircraft are classified as major plant and agquipmeant.
{l) Revatuations of non-current physicel and intangible assats

Bdmjor plant and eguipment is measured at fair value in accordance with AASE 7716 Propeddy, Plant and Eguwiomend ,
AASE 13 Folr Valws Measwenmend and Queensiand Tressuny's Non-Current Assel Policies for the Quesnsiand
Purbric Sascdor,

Al olher assels are messured at cost n accordance with the Non-Cwrrant Assed Policies.

Mon-cummant physical assals ans maasured at fair value and revalued on an anmial basis by apprasals uncerkakaen
by an independent prohessonal vafeer,
Details of how Taor value was delerrnined as al 30 June 2006 are reported in Mots 12,
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Queensland Police Service
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 201516 {continued)

{m} Payables

Trasde creditors are racognisad upon receipd of the goods or senvices ordered and are measurad al the nominal
amount i.e. agreed purchaselcontract price, gross of applicable trade and other discounts. Amounts owing ane
unsecurad and are generally setbed on 30 day terms.

(n} Financial instruments

Frecognifion
Financial assets and financia! llabilties are recognized in the Statement of Financial Posibon when the doeparbmon

Deoomes pany o the contraciual provisions of the financial instrumant,
Classification
Financial ingstruments ame classified and measured as follows:
- Cash and cash eguivalents - hald at fair value through profi or loss
- Receivables - held at armorised cost

Payvables - held &t amortised cost

The deparimen: has not entered inlo iransactiions for speculative purposes, nor for hedging n 2006-16. Apar from
sl and cash aquivalants, the department holds no financial assets dassified ai fair valee through profit or loss.
All glher disciosures redating bo the measwunrement and dinancal risk managemsent of financial instrurnems hekd by (he
departrent are ncluded in Note 18,

(@) Employes benefits

Wages, salavies and sick leave
Wages and salanies due but unpaid at reporting date are recognised in the Staternent of Financial Posiion at bhe
current salary rales,

For unpaid entflernents expacted 1o be paid within 12 months of reporing date, the liabiities are recognised at their
undEsoounbed values,

Az sick leave i nom-vesting, an axpense s recognised for this leave 25 i is taken.

Al feave and long senice lkave

The department i5 a mambear of the Cusensland Govammant's Annuaf Leave Cantral Scheme (ALCS} A lavy is
payable o cover the cost of employess’ annual leave (including leave loadng and on-costs) and lomg service leave.
Amouwnls paid o employeas for annual leave and bong service keave are claimad from the scheme quartary in
ATEArs.

Superamnauaion

Emplayer superannuation contribulions are paid to 3Super, the superannuation scheme for Queensland
Gowernmeni employees, at rates determined by the Treasurer on the advice of the Sdate Acteary. Contributions are
expensed in the penod in which they ane paid or payable,

The QSuper scheme has defined benefit and defined contribution categories, The Eability for defined banafits is
held on a whole-of-governmeant basis and raported in thosa financial siatements purswant 1o A45E T2 Wihole of
Govarmmand and Gensral Governmen! Seclor Financkal Reportimg.
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Queensland Police Service
Motes to and forming part of the financial statements 2015-16 (continued)

{p) Allocation of revenues and expenses from crdinary acfivities to corporate services

The depanrment discloses income and expenses atinbutable o service delivery suppor in the Statement of
Comprabensive Income by Major Departmental Services.

Diract expenses are fully sliocated o the relevant major depanmeantal service However indirgcl expenses are

repored as gerite delivery support and are allocated o majer deparimental services based on the results of a
stafa-wide activity survey. Income s distribuled based on the allocation of sgpenses.

The expanses atiributeble o service delivery suppod includes information and lechnology costs, property and
transpor relabed operaling and mainlenance costs, PSBA costs incurred bebow @i valus, Queensland Shared
Sanvicns chargpes and other support costs.

{d) Inswrance

The majanity of the deparment's non-cument physlcal assels and other feks are inswered through the Quesnsliand
Government insurance Fund {QGIF), premiumes being paid on a fisk assessmend basis. The department privately
insures its Alr-wing pilois.

I adadion, the department pays sremiums o WorkCover Queensland in respect of its oblinatons for employes
compeansation.

(r) Other presentation matbars

Arncunis included in the financial statermants are in Ausiralian dollars and have been rounded to the nearest 51,000
ar, whers that amawnt is less than £500, to zero, unless disclosure of the full amount s specifically required,

(s} Taxation

The department is & Stale body as debned under 1he ncome Tax Assessman Aol 7936 and is axempt from
Commomeesalth taxabon with the exception of Fringe Benefita Tax (FBT) and Goods and Services Tax (GST),

(£} Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial slatements necessarily requires the determination and use of certain accounding
estimades, assumplions, and managemant judgemants that hawve the potential to cawse a material sadustment Lo he
camrying amounis of assets and labilites within the next financial year. Such eslimales, judgerments and wndarlying
amsumplions are roviewed on an ongong basis. Revisions o accounting estimates are recognised n the period in
which the estimate (s revised and In fulure periods as refevant.

Eslimales and assumgdions thal have a potential significant effect on the financial statemants ara outlined in the
following financial stalement notes:
- VWaluabon of Property, Plant and Bguiprment - Mode 12

Depreciation and Amodisation - MNote 12

Goods and sarvices below fair value - Mote 4
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GQueansfand Police Service
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 201518 (continued)

{u) Services received free of charge or for nominal value

Caontributions of services are recognised anly if the sarvices would have besn purchased il they had nol besn
donated and their fair valuve can be measured reliably. Where this s the case, an equal amownt is recognised as
revanue and an expensa in tha statemeant of comprehansive income:

The functions of the department responsible for provading corporatie services, education and reining servicas wara
transferred to the Public Safety Business Agency (PSBA) on 1 July 2014 The departmenit hos continued to receive
these services @t below feir value from the FEBA since that date. The value of these services for 201516 is

descloged in Mole 4,
[v} Future impact of accounting standards not yet effective

The department did not voluntanly change amy of IS accowing policies during 201516, As &l the date of
authorsaton of the financial repor., the following accountng standards and intkepratations have fulure
commencement dales and have been assessed as aither nol applicable or have mo material impact.

AASE 124 Relsfed Parfy Dieclosure | effectiee 1 July 20146,

The department already discloses detailed information abowt remunessation of its KMP, basad on Queensland
Treaswy's Financal Reporing Requirerments e Quesnsiand Govemnmmant Agencies, Due o the additional
guidance about tha KMP definition in the revisad AASE 124, tha depariment will be assessing whother ks
responsibie Mnister should be pai of its KMP from 2006-17, I the responsible Minister is assessed as mesting the
KMFP definiton, no associated remunaration Bgures will be disclosed by the depanment, a8 it does nol provide the
Minister's remuwneration. Comparative informabion will continue to be disclosed in respect of KMP rarmenerateon.
AAER 15 Revenus for Cantracts wilh Customers | effective 1 Jameary 2018,

AASR 8 Financial instrurmenls and AASE 2014-7 Armevdimas (o Austiralian Accounling Standards arisig from
AAEB 8 (Decembar 2014) , effectiee 1 January 2018.

AALB 16 Lewses, effective 1 Janusry 2019

AAZB 2HG-2 Amendments fo Austrafan Accounting Standards — Ouwscliosune inilalive. Amendments in AASBTOT,
effective 1 July 2017,
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GQueensland Police Service
MNotes to and forming part of the financial statements 2015-16 (continued)

2016 2015

$000 $'000
2 Reconciliation of payments from Consolidated Fund
Reconciliation of payments from Consolidated Fund fo appropriation revenus
recognised in Statement of comprehensive income
Eudgeted appropriadion revanus 1,710,728 1,704,904
Unforasean ampandiurs 10,247 !
Lapsed approprialion revenus _ - {45401}
Tetal approgriation receipts (cash) 1,720,978 1,650,503
Lese: Opening balance of apprapriafion revenus resaivable {4,318)

4,318

Plus: Closing balance of appropriation revaenue receivahie

Less: Closing balance of appropriation refundasie to Consolidated Fund [payable) (21,299) =
- 14,1848

Plus: Opening balance of deferred appropriation refundable to Consolidated Furd (payable) -

Net appropriation reavenuwe 1,685,350 1,678,009

Pilus: Deferred appropristion refundable to Consolidated Fund (expense) 21,260 -

Approgriation revenue recognised in Statement of comprehensive income 1,716,658 1,678,009

Reconciliation of payments from Consolidated Fund to equity adjustment

recognised in contributed equity

Budgeted equity adjustment approgriation 17,2859 8,157

Transfers fromiio) alber depardments . .

Lapsed equity adjusiment [2E,189) -

Unforesesn axpenditure - 218

Equity adjustment receipts (payments) {10, 800) 3973
4,318

Flus: Opeaning balance of equity adjustment payabe +
Less: Cloging balznce of aquily adjustiment payable {2,218) 4,.378)

Equity adjustment recognised in contributed eguity (B, 800} 4, 655

3 User charges and fees

Special Services 19 6866 26,852

Incident reporfing 1,128 1,233
11,472 11,021

Crominal History Checks

Todal 32 485 H&'Uﬂ

Comparative amounts Rave been restated following reclsssification of line Hems.

4 Grants and other contributions

Grans and contributions B,ya3 4,356
Services received below fair valua * 349 435 316,921
Total A58,218 321,318

" 201516 includes $317.605M {2014-15: 331 08664} of senice s received befow falr velue represanting cosls for Sendcas incumed by Dhe
Fublic Safefy Business Agency provided o e Quesnsland Folice Service. The amounl i@ ceioulatind using & cost atiribution model, that
attribdes the costs of sendces provided by the Public Salety Business Agency o s pafnar agences.
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Queensiand Police Service
Motes to and forming part of the financial statements 2015-16 {continued)

2016 2015
$000 $'000
5 Employee expenses
Employas benafits
Wages and salanes 1,143,328 1,138, 9040
Employar superannuation contribubons 177.738 171 651
Lorg senvics laave levy 26,472 26147
Annual leawve bevy 144 509 135, 764
Other employes benefits 6, 6,462
Employes related expenses
Payrall tax 150
Workers' compensation premium 30,802 18,825
Total 1,529 730 1,498,007

Comparalive amounts. have baen restated following redassiication of line dems.

Full-Time Equivalent Employess 14 B2 14,089

3] Key Management Personnel Disclosures
{a) Detalls of key management parsannel

The folowing detads for key management personnel, being the members of (ke QPS Board of Management are the positions
that had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the depertment during 2016-16
Furher information on these posilions can be found in the body of the Annual Report under the section refating to Exscutive
Managermen

An external mamiser was appointed to the QPS5 Board of Managemeni commencing 5 Juena 2074, For 201 5-16 the
indepandant eccamal member received $2 420 in remuneration. There were no other on-cosis,

(b  Remunsration policies
Remuneration policy fer the depardtment's key managemenl perscanel is et by the Gueensland Public Service Commission
as provided for under the Public Service Ac! 2008, The remuneration and ofbar ferms of employrment for the ey
maragemenl personnel are spedified in employment contracis.
Remuneratlion axpenses for Key mansgement parsonnel Comgnise Hhe ol lowing compensenits:
- Shori term employes expenses including: i
salaries, allowances and leave entitlements eamed and axpansed for the enlive yessr or for thal part of the year
during which the employes was a8 key managemant HOrSon
- parformance paymeants recognised as an expense during the year; and
- hof-monatany Benelis - may include provision of @ molor wehice and fringe benefits tax applicabls to benefits.
- Long lerm employes axpenses Include amounts expansed in respect of long service eave entiflaments aanmed,
Pos: employment esxpenses incluce armounts expensad in respect of employer superannuation obigalions,
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Motes to and forming part of the financial statements 2015-16 (continued)

G Hey Management Personnel Disclosures
) Remuneration expensas
1 Juby 2015 — 30 June 2016

Fost Total

FPosition

= Contract classification
= Appointment authority
« Dl appointed 1o

Short Term
Employee
Expenses

Long Term
Employment
Expenses

Employment
Expanses

Expenses

poaition
+ Date exited from position
CEQ Condract ({CEC)
Paolice Sanvice
Adrminigiration Acl 1990
Appointad 01711/2012
SES 4 Equivalent
Police Seriog
Admiristiraiion Acd 1900
Appainted 01AOT2013
SES 4 Equivalent
Paofice Servion
Adminmstraion Act 7950
Appoinied 010772013
Higher Duties SES 4
Eguevalent
Folice Service
Adrminisiration Acf 15350
ZR0AS 201 6 - 1g|'|.'.|ﬂ.|'.‘ll.'.|1ﬂ
SES 4 Equivalent
Palice Sarvica
Adrministration Act 1950
Appointed 01012010
Transferred to Qussensland
Racing 3V0&4/2016
Higher Duties SES 4
Equahvabent
Puoffce Sondce
Admindefration Act 1550
o 07082016 - 17/06/2016

" The incumbent ko this position was relisving at Queansland Racing for the period 29 February 20116 o 28 Apsil 201 6
Relieving arangemenss were established for this posilion during this lEme and afler the ransfer, and were still in place at 30
e 2016,

£'000 £°000
484 10 52

£'000

Cammisslonear

Dreputy Commissione: |Stralegy, 257 5 a7 299

Policy & Parformance)

257 5 a3F 595

Deputy Commissioner (Specialist
Operations)

Dazpsty Commissioneas {Spﬂdalié'
Operationa) - Acting

Cpuly Commissioner (Regional 286

Oparations}

Dreguty Commissionar {Regiona! 43 - &

Opperathons) = Achng
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Quesnsland Police Sarvice
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2015—-16 (continued)
a Kay Menagement Personnel Disclosures
fe} FRemuneration expenses [continued)
1 July 2014 — 30 June 20HE N
» Gontrect classification | Short Term| Long Term Post Total
Appointment authority Empioyss | Empleymant) Employment | Expanses
Poaftion = Date appolnied to Expinsd | EXpinkess Expanses
poaitton
v Dete aodied from £'000 2000 j il $000
Commiksione: CED Contract (CED) are| 10] GE] B4D
Poilfce Sanvoe
Aominefratior Ao 7900
Appointad 01112012
Dwpuly Commissionss (Siregy, BES 4 Eguivalent 252 B T 254
Folicy & Perfarmanca) Puofice Sandoe
Adminisfration Aaf T80
Appointed 01072013
| Deputy Commisicner [Spacaist BES 4 Eguivalert 252 & ar =T
Dperations) Palfice Sandce
Administration Acl 1880
Appolintad (41072010
Deputy Commissionsr (Regional SES 4 Equivalernt 200 4 F-+ H!T
Oparations) Police Service
Asiminisfraton Acf 7080
Appointed OO 203
Depuly Comamissioner (Regional Higher Dulles SES 4 27| i 3 ET]
Oparations) - Aofng Egquivalent
Folive Sandos
Administrabion Ao 1990
L 010712014 - CREZE01 4
2016 2015
S'000 000
T  Supplies and services
Contraciors 4 B55 & 581
Materisls 37,640 34,071
Repairs 8nd mManbenantcs 34,748 33,004
Transfor costs TED 1,052
Traval 13,631 3.4
Cormmidni calions 10,817 12,143
Accommadation and public utiliies 18,982 16,344
Minor Equipmient Purchases B.847 8,284
Operatng lease rartals 22575 22,541
Crirnbrass search fees T.TAT T.286
Aircrafi Hine o 5B2 4,600
S 20,708 23,958
Tedsl 1Ej 205,
Corrparalise amounts heve besn restated following reclasetfication of lino Bems.
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Queensland Folice Service
Motes to and forming part of the financial statements 2015-16 [continued)

2016 2015
£7000 000
a8 Other expenses
Audit feas * 3as 226
Insurancs pramiuvms-GIF 4, 7ag 6,740
Insurance premiums-other [als] 56
Sernces received below fair value ** 348,029 316,542
Deparimental services appeopriaton 21,288 o
IT5.423 323,564

Total

Comparative amounls have been restated following reclassification of fine ilems
® Total awdil fees paid to the Qusansiand Auwdit Office relgting to the 201516 financial statements are estimatad 1o be
S299.300 (201 4-16: £2008,300),

“* Included in the 201516 Servioes received balow fair value figura s $317.605M (201 4-15: $£310.865M) representing Public
Safaly Business Agency services provided to the COueensland Folice Senooe.

) Receivables

Current
Trade debtors 19,863 13,439
Less: Allowanca for Impalrment loss [ = T (BG3)
18, 748 12,776
GST mput tax credits receivable 1,688 2443
GST payable (= ) 2]
1,678 2,454
Annual leave reimbursements ar. o5 36,564
Long service leave relmbursameanta 4 834 5,048
Cepatmental serdces appropriabion receivable . 4,318
Lassns and advances 38 GB
Othar 1,332 G42
43,255 47,040
Tatal 64,683 62,250
Comaaralive amounls have been restated following reclassification of Ene Bems.
10  Other current assets
Propaymients 3,020 5,406
Todal 3 029 5,486

Comparativa amounts have bean restated following recassficaton of line ftems.
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Queensfand Police Service

MNotes to and forming part of the financial statements 2015-16 {continued)

11  Intangible assets

Giross value
Less: Apcumulated amortisation

Reconciliation

COpaning balance at {1 July 2016
Acquisitions

Amorisation

Closing balance at 30 June Z016

Gross value
Less Accumulated amortsation

Reconciliation

Cipsgeniing balanca 1 July 2014
Acquisitions.

Transfers ho other agencies
Armortisation

Closing balance at 30 June 2015

Software Software Software Total
purchased inbernalhy vk in
generated Progress
2018 20186 2016 2016
000 5000 000 5000
1,431 38,903 425 bl Bl 8
i1, 184% {19, 585} - (20, 759)
237 19,427 -IE Ell,m
247 23,680 . 23,93T
238 GH4 425 1,148
{249 {4, 737) o {4.886)
237 18,427 425 20,089
—————
Saltware Softwane Software Total
purchassad internal ly wrork in
generated pPrograss
2015 2015 2015 2015
] 000 §ooo 5000
1,181 38,821 - 40,013
[o44) 15,141) - _
24T 23,680 - 23,527
1,270 58,688 1,218 61,182
- 238 f.388 1.623
(62} (31, 286) (2.602) {34,652)
60 [3.957) - 14,226}
247 23,680 235'92?
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Queensiand Police Service
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2015-16 (continued)

12 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Bulldings  Heritageand  Plantand  Majorplant  Workin Land Infrastructure Total
cultural equipment and progress
equipment
2015 018 2018 2015 015 2015 2015 2015
3000 §'000 §000 $'000 §'000 5000 §'000 §'000
Grogs value k) 18 82,083 3,052 2131 . . 87,322
Less: Accumutated depreciation {1) - (47 63) (1,635) - - - (49,198)

% 18 Em._ 1517 313 . : 3813

100
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2015-16 (cont’d)

Reconciliation

Opening balance a 1 July 2014 669,518 i 2387 {208 18,02 46,809 842 1,683,208
Acquisitions : 6,608 . 1,006 . . 7,614
Donations raceived ¢ . an - . - 3
Transfers thraugh machinery-of-Govemment changs (969,478) (34.29)  (168,800) 10 (17 867) (446,980) (8.432)  (16450852)
Disposals : . {364) . - - - (364)
Nt revaluation increments/|decraments) . . . 381 - i
Dapraciation (4} (18) (7.280) (82) . (7,324)
Closing balance al 30 June 2015 3 18 E _WE i - - 3,12
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Queensland Police Service
Hotes to and forming part of the financial statements 2015-16 (continued)

12  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Major plant and equipment was independently revalued by Broca A McKanzie (AVAA Praclicing Valuar Mumber, £64) of JD
Dodde Flant & Machinery Valuers as al 30 Jure 2016, The revaluations were determined using curremnt market values.

Level 2 significant valuation inputs and relationship to fair value

Major plant and eguipmeant categonises as Level 2. Major plant and eguipment includeng aircraft are valued using the direct
comparison valustion method. Alrcraft heve been valued with regard o the amount considered achievable (falr markedt} if
sold on the open market, after investigating and analysing the sede prces of similar second-hand aircrall. Particular regand
has been givan to the aircraft’s general appearanca, condition and remaining fime laft bo run on &ll major components.

206 2015
$"000 5000
13 Payables
Current
Trade credibons 22,866 27,556
Equaty Adjustment Payable 2218 4,318
Other 3,352 1,401
Total 28,436 33,275
Comparaiive amounis have been resialed following reclassification of line items.
14 Accrued employee benefits
Currant
Annual leave levy payable 29,305 34,084
Long service keave levy payable 6,746 7160
Salaries and wages outstanding 28,611 21,855
Orthear 4,330 4 885
Total [N 68,084
15 Other current liabilities
Granls Payables 2,500 -
Unearmed Revense Ganeral 1,15F o7
Departmental services appropriation 1,299 .
intercompany Creditons _=b® o 4,380
Toatal 30,537 5,055
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Queensiand Police Service
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2015-16 {continued)

2016 2015

$000 §'000
18 Reconciliation of operating result to net cash from

operating activities

Operating reswull 1,148 B
Man-cash items included in operating result:
Deprecilion and amarisation 13,405 11,5651
Cranations (520 (370
Met gainfoss on sale of property, plant and equipment (200 147
Imgpairment lnssas 52 &l
Inventony write-offs > (484
Change in assete and labilities:
Incressedectense) in pocruisd emplayes benafils a8 (711}
[Inrease)decreass in annual leave reimbursemsant receivable {87} 1.937
{increase)decrease in appropriation revenue recelvable 4318 -
(Incresseldecrease in G5T input tax credils recsivabla 755 2 466
{Incresseldecrease in invaniories (229} 61
llmﬂ]ﬁﬂ&ﬂ"ﬂﬂiﬂ In bang Sensce leave fembursenen] recenabbe 23 65
{Incressalidecreass In oans and advances : 53]
(Incresse)decresae In other receivables {B60) 538
{Increasel/docrease in other current assatbs 2467 BA51
Increasaidecreasa) in payables (2,738 {34, 883)
{Increase)decreasa in trade recelvables (6,423) 14,010
Increasaldecrease) in olher current Eabilities 25483 (9.278)
Increasaf{decraasa) in accrusis ; (121}
Met cash from operating activities 37,858 {5.487)

17 Commitments for expenditure
[a) Mon-cancellable operating lease commitmeants

acsoums ane payable 25 follows:

Operating lease commitments inclusive of non-recoverable G57T contracied for at reporting date but not recognised in the

Mot later than one year 24570 24,718
Lafter than one year and nol laler than five years 43,015 31,357
Latar than frye yeses 8,126 1, B0E
Talal 75,711 57,884

Comparatve amounts have been resiated for 2014-15 to exclude mecoverable G5T.

{b) Capital expenditure commitments

ned recogrised in the accounts are payable as follows:

Class of assat

Uperating lesses are enfered into as B means of acguiring acoess io office accommodation and slorage faciliiies. Lease
paymenls 2re generally fed, but with inflabion escastion causes an which contingent rentals are determined.

Matlesial classes of capilal expendifure commitments inclusive of non-recoverable GET, contracied for al reporting date but

Total

Plant and equlprment 5TH 2175
Intangibles - T8
Testal E7a 2554
Mod later than one year a7 2,254

5TH 2,254

Comparative amounts have besn restated for 2014-15 to axclude recaverable GST,
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Queensfand Police Service

Mctes to and forming part of the financial statements 2015—16 (continued)

18 Financial instruments
Financial instrument categories

ard linancisl liabilities:

Financial assets

Cash

Recsvablas

Tatal

Financial liabilittes

Financial labllites measured al amorised cost:
Fayables

Tokal

Financial risk managemant
ja) Risk exposure

of the depariment,

MNote

Financial assets and financial labdities are recognised m me Siatement of Financial Pasition when the department becormas
party o the contraciual provisions of the financial instrumeant. The department has the folloaing categonies of financial assets

83,243 7i.682

9 63,683 62,260
156,825 140,932

13 28,436 33,275
28,436 33,273

Tre Police Servica's dapartmental activities exposs it to credit risk and Bguidity risk.
Financial nisk managerment is imglemented pursuand io Govermnment and Queensland Poice Serdce pollcy, These pobcies
focus on fhe unprediclebiity of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance

The department's activties expose it o & variety of financial risks 25 sel oul b

2015
3'000

2016
§'000

n the following table:

Risk exposuri Definiticn

Exposure

Credit risk exposure relers lo the silvation where the
agency may incur financial loes as a result of Bncther
party 0 a financial mstrument falng o discharge their
obligatior,

Cradit sk

The departmant is exposed o credi nisk in
respect of s recaivables (notbe 9).

Liguidizy rigk Liguidity risk refers fo the situation whera the agency

may encounter difficully in meeting obligaons
asaocialed with financial fabilites that are settled by
dalivaring cash or another financial assed.

Tha depadment is exposed to liquidity risk in
respect of its payables (note 13).

The risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of &
financial instrument will flucheale because of changes
I markel prices. Market risk comprises three types of
risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and olher price
risk. Interest rate sk s the sk that the fair valee or
Tuture cash flows of a fnancial instremant will luciuate
because of changes in markel nteres] rales

[Markel risk

The department does nol trade i foraign
currancy and ks not materially exposed o
commodity price chamngeas or other rrarket
prices,

The department ie exposed to inderest rate fisk

through s finance lesses and cash deposited in
inlents] bearing acoounts.
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Queensfand Police Service
Motes to and forming part of the financial statements 2015-16 {continued)

18 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial risk management {continued)
{b) Risk messurement and management strategies

The departmant measunes risk exposure using a vanety of methods as follows:

Rizk exposura Dafinition Exposurs
Credit risk Ageing analysis, department manages credit nisk through the use of a credit managemeant
eamnings af fisk sirabegy. This strategy aims 10 reduce 1he esposure to cradit default by ansuring

that {he department inwasis In sacura asesls and monitors &ll funds owed on a
timety nazis, Exposure o credil rigk ig moniloned o an ongoing basis,

L icpumictity risk Sensitvly analysis | The departmant manages Iil:|l.Tt:|-i‘t5.l nisk through the use of a iguidity managameant
atrategy. This strategy abms to reduce the axposure 10 iquidity risk by ensuring the
[Raency has sufficient funds availabile o maat ermployas and supplier obigations as
they fall due. This is achieved by ensuring that minierem levels of cash are held
within the varicues bank accounls o as to match the expecied duration of the
various amployes and supplier liablites.

Market risk Intaresd rabe Ther depariment does nol underdake any hedging in relation o interest riss and
sensitivity analysis  |manages ifs ek as per the department’s liquidity mak menagement strateoy
arliculated in the departmend's financial managamenl praciice manu:al,

i<} Maximum credit risk exposure where carrying amouwnts do not equal contractual amounts

Ceriain contractual obigations expase the depariment 1o credit risk in excess of the camrying amount of any asset or llabsity
recognised from enfering the trensaciion.

The mamum exposune bo credit dsk al balance date in relation to each class of recognised financial is the gross carrying
armount of those assels inclusive of any provision for impairment (refer note ).

[y Liguidity risk - contractual maturity of financial liabilities

The foliowing table s&ts out the Bguidity risk of financial habaliies held by the depariment. | represants. the contractusl
maifurity of financial liabilities, calculated based on s counted cash flows relating to the lablliies af reporing date,

2016 Payable in _
Financial liabilities Mote =1 year 1-5 yaars =5 years Tetal
| 5000 $'000 5000 5'000
Payables 13 ZB, 450 | - 2EB.436
Total 28,436 - - 26,436
2015 Payablo in B
Financial liabiities Mote =1 year 1-5 years =5 years Total
000 5000 £'000 $000
Fayables 13 33,276 - i 33,275 |
Total 33,275 = = B3,2TS
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Queensiand Police Service
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2015—16 (continued)

2016 2015
$'000 3000
18 Schedule of administered items
Adminisiered revanues
Taxes, fees and finas 12,450 13,493
Cither 272 178
lotal 12,722 13,672
Administered expensos
Travesfers of Administered Income to Gosermmsen 12,722 13,677
Total 12,722 13,672
Operating Surplus - -
Administered assets
Cumramt
Cash 1,551 1,064
Receivables {1} {5}
Todal 1,545 1,858
Tedal assets 1,544 1,958
Administered liabilities
Cerravf
Fayables G893 1,31
Cher B56 927
Total lsabilites 1,549 1,858
Met administered assets - -

20  Trust transaciions and balances

The depariment holds variows suspense monies temporarily before being transferred bo appropriale paries {o.g. exhibils or
drug money Rkl pending determination by a court and unclaimed and refurned Queensland Police Service chegues).

A5 he deparment pedormns only 8 custodial role n respect of these ransactions and balances, they are neilher conlrolied
nor administered by the depariment and accordingly, are nol recognised in the financial staternents. They are howaver,
disclosad n these notes for the nformation of users.

Trust assets and Habilities

Cunrer assels

Cash 20,557 17,808
Tokel F0,557 17,508
Curmant Nebilifles

Tota! current Fabilies 20,557 17 .85E
Taotal 20,557 17,868

The Quesnstand Audilor-Genaral performad the awdil of the departments trust transascions for 200516,

21 Ewvenls occurring after balance date

On 17 February 2006, Queensiend SGovemment accepted recommendatens related o the nevisaw of e scope, lunchan, and
atrciure of the Public Safely Business Agency (PSBA), which provides corporate suppor funclicns 1o three governmant
entities, incleding the Queansiand Police Serveca (QPS). The reniew wias commissionad by tha Public Service Commission
{PSC) In 2015. In accordance with the accepted recommendations, Public Service Degarimental Arrangemeanl Molice {MNo.2
2016) was made on 23 June 2016 and a number of functions will franster from PSBA to the OFS including operaonal
lunctions, strategy, moitment, education and training, media and other services, effective 1 July 2016

There were no evernts occurring &fler balance dabe, incugeng the evenl descrived above, thel manegemeant considers would
have a maberal impact an ihe information dsciesed i ihese linancial sialemenis
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Quesnsland Police Service

Motes to and forming part of the financial statements 2015-16 (continued)

22 Budgetary reporting

Income from continuing operations
Dsparimental services revenue
User charges and foes ZXa)
Granls and other contributions 22k
Ddhar rewvenue
Total rennsnue

Gains on disposalfremeasurement of assets
Total income from conmtinuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations

Employes expansas
Supobes and aervices Z2{c)

Grants and subsidies
Bpreciation and amorisation
mpairmeant losses
Oher expensss Z2(d}
Total expenses from continuing operations
Operating result from continuing operations
Operating resull for the year
Total other comprehensive incoms
Total comprehensive incomes

Explanation of major variances

downiurm in mining actvibes_

Staternent of comprehensive incame Variance
Maote

Driginal Actual Variance Varianocs
budgat percentage
2016 2018
$0:00 000 $'000
1.710. 729 1,716,668 5.929 .
B2.148 32,485 (19,663} (-38)%
315,254 as58.218 35,964 12 %
2,764 4, 5d8 1,784 65 %
2,084,805 2,111,809 27014 1%
2,084,895 2,111,929 27,034 1 %
1,482 447 1,520,730 37283 2 %
254 816 185911 (6&.905) (27 )%
2,961 5,852 281 Dol %
14,665 13,404 {1.261) (2%
452 452 -
F20, 015 375,423 55,407 17 %
2 84,895 2,110,783 25 888 1 %
. 1,148 1,148 .
- 1,146 1,146 -
- Fral 224 -
. 1,387 1,367 -

Z2(a) The variancea in user changes and lees is dwe to the lower than anticipated Special Sarvices revenue 25 & result of the

Z2{b) The variance in grants and other contribulions is due 10 &n increase in the fair value recognition of cost of sorvices to
QPS, as providad by the FSBA for corporale supporn services and by Q55 for the Government Wirelass Metwork

22z} Tha vadance in supplies and services is due to a realignrment of costs followng the finalization of the 201415
machinery-of-Govemnmaent (MOG) transfer to PSBA, decreasss in costs associated with Special Serdoss, and
transfers o PSEA for aclivibes dalivered on behall of the Duweenstand Police Sondos (QPS)

Z22(d} The variance in other expenses s mainly due to an increase in the fair value recogniton of cost of services 10 OPS, as
provided by the PSBEA for corporase suppor services and by Q55 for the Goverrmant Wirchess Network.
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Queensland Police Service
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 201518 (continued)

22 Budgetary reporting (continued}

Statement of financial position Variance Orriginal Al Variance Varianee
Hote budget percentage
2016 2016
5000 $°000 5000
Assels
Current assets
Cash and cash aguevalents FHe) 649,563 05 242 25,673 3T %
Fecavablies 22(1) 71.502 63,683 {7,819 (11)%
Imveories 4 4TS 5,466 291 o
Oither current gssata 2Mg) 14, 405 3,020 {11,467} (7o
Homcurrent asseis dassified as held for sale - - - -
Tatal current assets 160,036 167 418 7,383 5%
Mon-current assets
Intangible assets 22(h}y 8,007 20,089 (7.918) (28)%
FProperty, plant and eguipment 2240 70,629 A0, 866G [25,833) {421%
Total nen-current assets 98,706 60,955 {37, 751) (8%
Total assels 258,742 228374 {20,368) (12)%
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Payzhles 2210 61,2608 28,436 (32,833) (54
Ancrued amployes banefits B4, 350 G5 062 4,722 T
Crther current labilities IHk) ar 30,537 30,440 100 %
Total current liabilities 125,726 128,055 2,329 2%
Totat liabilities 125,726 128085 23w 2%
Met assets 133,016 100,318 (32,68T) [25])%
Total eqguity 133iﬂ1ﬂ- 100,319 {Eﬂf_ {25)%

Explanation of major variances

Zila) The variance in cash and cish equivalenls is dee o the movermenls in receivables, prapayrments, employes benelils,
and payables.

EHT) The wvarisnoe n receivables is due o the bming of receipts as at the end of the inancial yedr,

22{(gy The variance m othear current 3ss8ts is due to a reduction in pre-paymeants of supplies and senicas.

22n) The wanzence nintangible s3sels B due o the diference between the astimated and final balance transfermed 1o
FSBA as parl of the MOG change,

22(i} The varance in proparty, plant and equesment is dee to funding trensfers to PSBA for acguesition and management of
non-gurrend assels, including land and buildings

22(j) The variance in payables refiects anticipatad fiming of gayrmenls 1o trade credilons,

22{k) The vanance in other current liabilities reflecis the timing of expenditure reimbursements 1o other agencies within the
Public Safety portfalio,
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Gueenslfand Police Service

Motes to and forming part of the financial statements 2015-16 (continued)

22 Budgetary reporting (continued)
Statemant of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities
indfows:
Departrnenta! serdices recaipts
Lisar changes and fees
Grants and other conlribulions
GET inpul tax credits from ATC
Other
Ounffows:
Ermployes expanses
Supplies and services
Grants and subsidies
GST paid o suppliars
GST remitled to ATO
Crlfrer
Met cash provided by'(used in) operating activities

2241)

Cash flows from investing activities
Owufffows:
Payrments for property, plant and eguipment
FPayments for intangibles

Met cash provided byf|used i) investing activities

22mj)

Cash flows from financing activities.
Irfiowes:
Equity injections
Oatffows:
Equity withdrawals
Net cash provided byljused in} financing activities

Mot incroasofdecrensa) in cash
Cash af beginning of finencial year

Cash at end of financial year 2{m)

Explanation of major variances
22¢1)

Varianoe
Niote

Original Actual Wariance Variance
budget percentags
2018 2018

$'000 £'000 000
1,740,729 1,720,976 10,247 1%
52148 27 151 (24,097) (48)%
5,160 B BET 3,707 T2 %
x 33,395 33,395 =
2,764 3888 1,124 41 %
(1.492.447)  {1,528,606) (36,1590 (21%
(254,616) {1682,718) oz,008 36 %
{2,851) (5,862) {2.8911) {55
- [26,808) (26, E08) =

. {5,742) {5, 742)
(5.022) {26, 563) {20,671) [349)%
14,665 37,858 23,193 158 %
{31,054} (9,251} 22,703 71 %
- {1,148} 1. 148) .
31,954) {10,399} 21,555 BT T
19,148 [9,0:41) (28,169) {147
(1,B58) {1,853) - -
17,288 {10,900} (2B, 188) {163)5%
- 16,559 16,589 :
0,563 7E.682 0,119 13 %
60,563 95,242 25,673 3T

Thee wariance in supplies and services is due to a realignment of cosls folowing the finalisation of the 2014-15
machinany-of-Governmant (MOGE} transfer to PSEA, decreases in costs essociated with Special Services, and

transfers to PSBA for activities delivered on behall of the Quesnsland Police Service (PS5,
22(m) The wariance n proparty, plan and eguipment s due 1o funding ransfers to PSBA for acquisiion and mansgemsnt of

nen-current assets, including land and buikdings

22(n} The variance in cash al end of inancial year is due to the movermnenls in receivables, prepaymants, employes benafils

and pavablas,
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

2015-16 (cont’d)

Queensiand Police Service

Motes to and forming part of the financial statements 2015=16 (continued)

Schedule of administered items

Agministered revenues
Taxes, fess and fines
Cther

Total

Administered expenses

Todal

Operating surplus
Administered assets
Cnrern!

Cash

Receivables

Total currant assets
Total assels
Administered liabilities
Currat

Fayables

{0t gsr

Tobal liabities

Met administered assats

Explanation of major variances

22 Budgetary reporting (continuad)

Variance
Blabe

22(c)

Transfers of sdministerad revenue o government  Z2{o)

Original Actual Variance Variance
budget percentage
2016 2016
§oo0 £'000 S"000
8,711 12,450 3.738 43
&7T 2T {605} (i
8,588 12,722 3,134 33 %
9,688 12,722 3,134 33 %
9,588 12,722 3,734 33 %
= = - [
1,752 1,551 (201} (11 )5%
{13} [1]) 12 B
1,738 1,548 (180} {(11)%
1,739 1,549 [150) [11)%
1,738 523 {1,045) (B0)%%
1 BSE 855 100%
1,739 7,549 (180} (11%]
- = - 100%:

2H0) The increase in taxes, fees and fines revenues collected uncer the Weapons Aot 1850 s due o Bming of llcence
renewsats. The revenue collscted s subsequently ransferred o government.
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Management Certificate for the year ended 30 June 2016

Queensiand Police Service
Management Certificate for the year ended 30 June 2018

These genaral pumpose financial statements have been prepared pursuast 1o $.8201) of the Financial Accouniabiliy
Aot 2005 (the Acl), sedion 42 of the Firancial and Pardormance Managament Standsnd 2009 and olher prascribed
requiremants. in acoordance with s 62071 )b} of the Act we oerify thal in our opinon:

{a}ihe prescribed requisements for estabishing and kKesping the accouns have bean complied with in all materal
reEpEcls; and

() the financial statements have bean drawn up (o present & true and Fair view, in accordanos wilh prescribed
accounding standards, of the fransactions of the Cusensiand Police Service for the financial yaar ended 30 June 2016
ard of ha financial positoen of the department ai the end of that year; and

() these asgdiogs are based on an appropriate system of internal controls and risk management processes being

s

R Wilson
B.Bus {Mat), Grad Cerl Exec Leadshp, MIPA, GAICD

Accountable Officer Chiaf Finanoe Officer
Commissioner Execulive General Manages, Fublic Safety Business Agency

Da:%f I .-'f{_:, Date oy T Vi
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Accountable Officer of the Queensland Police Service

Report on the Financial Report

t have audited the accompanying financial repori of the Queensland FPolice Service, which
comprises the statement of financial position and statement of assets and liabilities by major
deparimental services as at 30 June 2018, the statermeni of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and statement of comprehensive income by major
departmental services for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the certificates given by
the Commissioner and Chief Finance Officer,

The Accountable Officer's Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Accountable Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with prescribed accounting requirements identified in the
Financial Accountability Act 2009 and the Financial and Performance Management Standard
2009, including compliance with Australian Accounting Standards. The Accountable Officer’s
responsibility also includes such internal control as the Accountable Officer determines is
necessary 10 enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and
is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Audifor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit. The audit
was conducted in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensiand Auditing Standards,
which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards reguire compliance
with relevant ethical reguirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit is planned
and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
report, whether due to fraud or efror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, bul not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control,
other than in expressing an opinion on compliance with prescribed requirements. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimales made by the Accountable Officer, as well as
avaluating the overall presentation of the financial report including any mandatory financial
reporting requirements approved by the Treasurer for application in Queensiand.

| believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audil opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (cont’d)

Independance

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all
authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland public sector entities
and can be removed only by Parliament.

The Auditor-General may conduct an audil in any way considered appropriate and is nol
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised.
The Auditor-General has for the purpeses of conducting an audit, access to all documents and
property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General's opinion are
significant.

Opinion
In accordance with 5. 40 of the Auditor-General Act 2008 —
(a) | have received all the information and explanations which | have required; and

(b) in rmy opinion -

(i} the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping of
accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

)] the financial reporl presenis a ifrue and fair view, in accordance with the
prescribed accounting standards, of the transactions of the Queensland Police
Service for the financial year 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016 and of the financial
position as af the end of thal year.

Other Matters - Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Report

Those viewing an electronic presentation of these financial statements should note that audit
does not provide assurance on the integrity of the information presented electronically and
does not provide an opinion on any information which may be hyperlinked to or from the
financial statements. If users of the financial stalements are concemed with the inherent risks
arising from electronic presentation of information, they are advised o refer to the printed copy
of the audited financial statements lo confirm the accuracy of this electronically presented
information.

(~RUDITOR_GEMERAT

" g C g 18

Cueensland Audit Office
Brishana
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Appendices

Government Bodies

Commissioner for Police Service Reviews

Act /instrument The Commissioner for Police Service Reviews is established under the Police Service
Administration Act 1990 and Police Service Administration (Review of Decisions) Regulation
1990.

Functions The Reyiew Commissioqer is responsible fqr hegring grie_vances from police officers relating
to appointments, promations, transfers or disciplinary actions made under the Act.
Appeals are heard before a Review Commissioner nominated by the Crime and Corruption
Commission yet otherwise independent of the Crime and Corruption Commission and the
QPS. Where a matter progresses to a hearing, the Review Commissioner will consider the
material presented and prepare written recommendations for the Police Commissioner who
will make the final decision. Where the Police Commissioner does not accept the
recommendation, reasons must be provided to the Review Commissioner.

The Crime and Corruption Commission provides a secretariat to support the review function.

Further information about the Commissioner for Police Service Reviews is available at: www.ccc.qld.gov.au/.

Controlled Operations Committee

Act The Controlled Operations Committee is established under the Police Powers and
Responsibilities Act 2000.

Functions The Controlled Operations Committee is responsible for considering and making
recommendations about applications for an authority, or variation to an authority, to conduct a
controlled operation under Chapter 11 of the Police Powers and Responsibilities Act 2000.

Achievements The committee provides its own annual report after 30 June each year, detailing the work and
activities of the QPS under Chapter 11 Controlled operations of the Act for the preceding
12 months.

The committee’s annual report is available online at www.parliament.qgld.gov.au/work-of-
assembly/tabled-papers.

Financial Records are inspected by the Chairperson of the Controlled Operations Committee.
reporting Transactions of the entity are accounted for in the QPS financial statements which are
certified by the Auditor-General of Queensland.
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Controlled Operations Committee (cont’d)

Remuneration
Position Name Meetings | Approved fee Approved Actual fees received
sub-
committee
fees
Chair John Jerrard 11 $167.00 per N/A $1,837.00
meeting (as Chair for 11 meetings)
Acting Chair Manus Boyce | 3 $167.00 per N/A $501.00
meeting

(as Acting Chair for three
meetings)

No. of scheduled | 14
meetings

Total out of N/A
pocket expenses

Public Interest Monitor

Act The Public Interest Monitor is appointed under the Police Powers and Responsibilities
Act 2000 and the Crime and Misconduct Act 2001.

Functions The Public Interest Monitor has the following functions for surveillance device warrants,
retrieval warrants, approvals of the use of surveillance devices under emergency
authorisations, and covert search warrants:

a) to monitor compliance by police officers with chapter 9 of the Police Powers and
Responsibilities Act 2000 (the Act) in relation to matters concerning applications for
covert search warrants

b) to monitor compliance by law enforcement officers with chapter 13 of the Act in relation to
matters concerning applications for surveillance device warrants, retrieval warrants and
approvals of the use of surveillance devices under emergency authorisations

c) to appear at any hearing of an application to a Supreme Court judge for a warrant or
approval mentioned in paragraph a) or b),or to a magistrate for a warrant mentioned in
paragraph b), to test the validity of the application, and for that purpose at the hearing,
to—

(i) present questions for the applicant to answer and examine or cross-examine any
witness
(i) make submissions on the appropriateness of granting the application

d) to appear at a consideration of a report made to a Supreme Court judge or a magistrate
or given to the monitor and referred to a judge or magistrate under section 357 of the Act

e) to gather statistical information about the use and effectiveness of covert search warrants
and surveillance device warrants

f) to report as required by this Act on any matter about which this Act expressly requires the
Public Interest Monitor to report

g) whenever the public interest monitor considers it appropriate

(i) to give to the Commissioner a report on noncompliance by police officers with
chapter 9 of the Act; or

(i) to give to the chief executive officer of a law enforcement agency a report on
noncompliance by law enforcement officers of the law enforcement agency with
chapter 13 of the Act.

114



2015-16 Annual Report
Queensland Police Service

Public Interest Monitor (cont’d)

Functions (cont’d) The Public Interest Monitor also has the following functions:

a) under the Criminal Code of the Commonwealth, to exercise the power conferred on the
monitor under the following sections —
e section 104.12 (Service, explanation and notification of an interim control order)
e section 104.14 (Confirming an interim control order)
o section 104.18 (Application by the person for a revocation or variation of a control
order)
e section 104.19 (Application by the Australian Federal Police Commissioner for a
revocation or variation of a control order)
e section 104.23 (Application by the Australian Federal Police Commissioner for
addition of obligations, prohibitions or restrictions)
b) under the Terrorism (Preventative Detention) Act 2005, to exercise the power conferred
on the monitor under the following sections —
o section 14 (General provisions that apply if the Public Interest Monitor must be
notified about an application to the issuing authority)
e section 73 (Supreme Court hearing and decision)
c) to gather statistical information about the use and effectiveness of control orders and
preventative detention orders under the Acts mentioned in paragraphs a) and b)
d) whenever the Public Interest Monitor considers it appropriate — to give to the
Commissioner a report on noncompliance by police officers with the Terrorism
(Preventative Detention) Act 2005.

The Telecommunications Interception Act 2009 enables the use by the QPS and the Crime
and Corruption Commission of telecommunications interception as a tool for the
investigation of serious offences. The Public Interest Monitor is responsible for the
recording, reporting and inspection regime for telecommunications interception. In
accordance with this legislation:

1) the Public Interest Monitor is entitled to appear at the hearing of the application for a
telecommunications interception warrant to test the validity of the application and, for
that purpose at the hearing, to —

a) ask questions of any person giving information to the eligible Judge or nominated
Administrative Appeals Tribunal member; and
b) make submissions to the eligible Judge or nominated Administrative Appeals
Tribunal member about the following maters —
() inrelation to an application for a warrant in relation to a telecommunications
service
(ii) in relation to an application for a warrant in relation to a person.

In addition, the Public Interest Monitor has record-keeping oversight to ensure eligible
authorities keep documents connected with the issue of warrants in accordance with the
Telecommunications Interception Act 2009.

As the inspecting entity for the QPS, the Public Interest Monitor:

a) must inspect the eligible authority’s records as required under section 23 of the
legislation to ascertain the extent of compliance by the authority’s officers

b) must report in writing to the Minister about the results of the inspections

c) may do anything necessary or convenient for the performance of the functions
mentioned in (a) and (b).

Achievements The annual report of the Public Interest Monitor is available at
www.parliament.qgld.gov.au/work-of-assembly/tabled-papers.

Financial reporting | Financial transactions made with the Public Interest Monitor are accounted for in the QPS
financial statements which are certified by the Auditor-General of Queensland.
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Remuneration

Position

Public Interest
Monitor

Deputy Public
Interest Monitor

Deputy Public
Interest Monitor

No of scheduled
meetings

Total out of
pocket expenses

Name Meetings

Peter Lyons 251

Nathan Jarro 32

Patricia 31
Kirkman-
Scroope

314

N/A

Approved fee

A service fee of
$400.00 per
hour to a
maximum of
$2,000.00 per
day

A service fee of
$400.00 per
hour to a
maximum of
$2,000.00 per
day

A service fee of
$400.00 per
hour to a
maximum of
$2,000.00 per
day
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Approved Actual fees received
sub-

committee

fees

N/A $225,150.19

N/A $29,320.00

N/A $26,620.00



Acronyms
ABS Australian Bureau of Statistics
ANZCTC Austre?lla-New Zgaland Counter-
Terrorism Committee
Annual report requirements for
ARRs .
Queensland Government agencies
CAD Computer Aided Dispatch
CCTV Closed-circuit television
CDOP Camera Detected Offence Program
CPIU Ch!ld Protection and Investigation
Units
Child Protection (Offender
CPOPOA Prohibition Order) Act 2008
Child Protection (Offender
SEOA Reporting) Act 2004
Department of Communities, Child
DCCSDS Safety and Disability Services
DNRM DeparFment of Natural Resources
and Mines
DTMR Department of Transport and Main
Roads
EBP Evidence Based Policing
ELT Executive Leadership Team
ESC Ethical Standards Command
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FAA

FPMS

GWN

ICT

IGEM

IPAA

JACET

MCAD

MoU

MPF

NHWQ

OMCG

PCC

PCYC

PSBA
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Financial Accountability Act 2009

Financial and Performance
Management Standard 2009

Government Wireless Network

Information and communications
technology

Inspector-General Emergency
Management

Institute of Public Administration
Australia

Joint Anti-Child Exploitation Team

Mobile Computer Aided Dispatch

Memorandum of Understanding

Mobile Police Facility

Neighbourhood Watch Queensland

Outlaw Motorcycle Gang

Police Communications Centre
Police-Citizens Youth Club

Public Safety Business Agency



Acronyms (cont’d)

PSRT

QAO

QAS

QCS

QFES

QGEA

QPCYWA

Public Safety Response Team

Queensland Audit Office
Queensland Ambulance Service
Queensland Corrective Services

Queensland Fire and Emergency
Services

Queensland Government
Enterprise Architecture

Queensland Police-Citizens Youth
Welfare Association

118

2015-16 Annual Report
Queensland Police Service

Queensland Police Records and
Information Exchange

Queensland Police Service
Queensland Rail

Rapid Action and Patrols

Safe night precincts

Volunteers in Policing



Compliance checklist

Summary of requirement
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Basis for requirement Page

reference

Letter of A letter of compliance from the accountable =~ ARRS — section 8 ii
compliance officer to the Minister
Accessibility Table of contents ARRs — section 10.1 1
Acronyms 117-118
Public availability ARRs — section 10.2 i
Interpreter service statement Queensland Government i
Language Services Policy
ARRs — section 10.3
Copyright notice Copyright Act 1968 i
ARRs — section 10.4
Information Licensing QGEA - Information Licensing i
ARRs — section 10.5
General Introductory information ARRs — section 11.1 4-19
information
Agency role and main functions ARRs - section 11.2 5, 10-19, 122
Operating environment ARRs — section 11.3 10-17
Non-financial Government's objectives for the community ~ ARRs — section 12.1 11
performance
Other whole-of-government plans/specific ARRs — section 12.2 28-55
initiatives
Agency objectives and performance ARRs — section 12.3 22-55
indicators
Agency service areas and service standards ~ ARRs — section 12.4 22-27
Financial Summary of financial performance ARRs — section 13.1 20-21
performance
Governance — Organisational structure ARRs — section 14.1 18
management
and structure Executive management ARRs — section 14.2 56-57
Government Bodies ARRSs — section 14.3 113-116
Public Sector Ethics Act 1994 Public Sector Ethics Act 1994 64-65
ARRs — section 14.4
Queensland public service values ARRs — section 14.5 13
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Compliance checklist (cont’d)

Summary of requirement Basis for requirement Page
reference
Governance — e Risk management ARRs — section 15.1 8-9, 61, 65
risk
g]nadnagement ¢ Audit committee ARRs — section 15.2 8-9, 61
accountability ]
¢ Internal audit ARRSs — section 15.3 72-73
e External Scrutiny ARRs — section 15.4 65-72
¢ Information systems and recordkeeping ARRs — section 15.5 73
Governance — e Workforce planning and performance ARRs — section 16.1 74-77
human
resources . N
e Early retirement, redundancy and Directive No. 11/12 Early 77
retrenchment Retirement, Redundancy and
Retrenchment
ARRs 16.2
Open data e Consultancies ARRs — section 17 1
ARRs — section 34.1
e Overseas travel ARRs — section 17 1
ARRs — section 34.2
e Queensland Language Services Policy ARRs — section 17 1
ARRs — section 34.3
Financial e Certification of financial statements FAA — section 62 109
statements

FPMS — sections 42, 43 and 50
ARRs — section 18.2

¢ Independent Auditor's Report FAA — section 62 110-111
FPMS — section 50
ARRs — section 18.2
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Contacts and key locations

Queensland
Police
Headquarters

Central Region

Brisbane
Region

Northern Region

South Eastern
Region

Southern
Region

200 Roma Street
Brisbane QIld 4000

Rockhampton Police
Complex

Floor 2
161 Bolsover Street
Rockhampton QIld 4700

20 Pickering Street
Alderley QIld 4051

Floor 2

Mundingburra Police
Complex

244-246 Charters Towers
Road

Hermit Park

Townsville QId 4812
Surfers Paradise Police
Complex

Level 7

68 Ferny Avenue

Surfers Paradise Qld 4217

52 Neil Street
Toowoomba Qld 4350

GPO Box 1440
Brisbane Qld 4001

PO Box 221
Rockhampton QIld 4700

GPO Box 1440
Brisbane Qld 4001

PO Box 3737
Hermit Park QId 4812

PO Box 561

Surfers Paradise QlId
4217

PO Box 144
Toowoomba QIld 4350
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(07) 3364 6464

(07) 4932 3400

(07) 3354 5005

(07) 4726 8777

(07) 5570 7924

(07) 4631 6777

QPS stations are located throughout Queensland. You can locate or contact your nearest station by
calling the regional office or 13 QGOV (13 74 68). Alternatively refer to the online station locator
accessible at www.police.gld.gov.au/apps/stationlocator/.

121


http://www.police.qld.gov.au/apps/stationlocator/

Queensland Police Service
20152016 Annual Report
www.police.gld.gov.an



